
Planning and Zoning Commission

City of Grand Prairie

Meeting Agenda - Final

City Hall

317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas

City Hall, Briefing Room5:30 PMMonday, October 7, 2019

Call to Order - Commissioner Briefing 

It is the intent of the Planning and Zoning Commission to be briefed by staff, and that all 

items on the agenda shall be available or open for discussion during the Briefing Session.  

The Planning and Zoning Commission may ask applicants and other interested parties for 

information or presentations.  All interested parties are invited to attend.  Briefings are 

taped.

Agenda Review

__________________________________

Public Hearing

6:30 p.m. Council Chambers 

__________________________________

Chairperson Joshua Spare Presiding

Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flags and to the Texas Flag

Public Hearing Consent Agenda

Items listed on the Public Hearing Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be 

approved by one motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of the Public 

Hearing Consent Agenda items unless requested.  If discussion is desired on an item, it will be 

considered separately.  The Commission may ask questions of those present on an item from 

the Public Hearing Consent Agenda.

1 19-9394 Approval of Minutes of the September 9, 2019 P&Z meeting.  

PZ Draft Minutes 09-09-19.pdfAttachments:

Page 1 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019



October 7, 2019Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

2 19-9395 P191001 - Final Plat - Forterra Addition, Lots 1, 2 & 3 (City Council District 1).  

Final Plat of Forterra Addition, Lots 1, 2 & 3, for three industrial lots on 276.85 

acres.  276.85 acres on multiple tracts out of the Robert R. Tucker Survey, Abstract 

No. 1472, Dudley F. Pearson, Abstract No. 1130, John W. Smith Survey, Abstract 

No. 1320 and James McLaughlin Survey, Abstract No. 846, City of Grand Prairie, 

Dallas County, Texas, and generally located at the northeast corner of Interstate Hwy 

30 Service Road and MacArthur Boulevard.  Zoned HI, Heavy Industrial district 

within the Interstate 30 (I-30) Corridor Overlay and addressed as 1000 MacArthur 

Blvd.  The agent is Jacob Sumpter, Mycoskie, Mcinnis & Associates and the owner 

Pipe Portfolio Owner.

Exhibit A - Location Map

Exhibit B - Final Plat

Attachments:

3 19-9396 P191002 - Amending Plat - Epic East Towne Crossing, Phase 1, Lots 4, 5 & 6 (City 

Council District 2).  Amending Plat of Epic East Towne Crossing Phase 1, Lots 4, 5, 

and 6, Block A, adding a drainage easement, water easement, and sidewalk 

easement.  Epic East Towne Crossing Phase 1, Lots 4, 5, and 6, Block A, City of 

Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-364, within the SH-161 Corridor 

Overlay District, generally located east of SH-161 and north of Mayfield Rd, and 

addressed as 3192 S HWY 161, 1040 Mayfield Rd, and 1050 Mayfield Rd. The 

applicant is Michael Davis, Bannister Engineering and the owner is Mark Davis, Epic 

East Towne Crossing, L.P.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Amending Plat.pdf

Attachments:

4 19-9408 P191004 - Final Plat - Burney 360 Addition, Lot 1, Block A (City Council District 

1).  Final Plat of Burney 360 Addition, Lots 1, Block A, for a commercial lot on 5.7 

acres, tract out of the L. Barnes Survey, Abstract No. 113 and M.K. Selvidge 

Survey, Abstract no. 1130, John W. Smith Survey, Abstract No. 1320 and James 

McLaughlin Survey, Abstract No. 1423, City of Grand Prairie, and City of Arlington, 

Tarrant County, Texas, and generally located at the southwest corner of State 

Highway 360 Service Road and Burney Road.  Zoned Planned Development-368 

(PD-368) District within the SH-360 Corridor Overlay and addressed as 1891 N. 

SH 360, Grand Prairie, TX. The applicant is Annalyse Valk and the owner is Shawn 

Valk, Platinum Storage.

Exhibit A - Location Map

Exhibit B - Final Plat

Exhibit B2 P191004 Final Plat

Attachments:

Page 2 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019



October 7, 2019Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

Public Hearing Postponement, Recess, and Continuations

In accordance with Section 1.11.5.7 of the Unified Development Code (UDC) a public hearing 

for which notice has been given may be postponed by announcing the postponement at or 

after the time and place the hearing is scheduled to begin.  A public hearing may be recessed 

and continued any time after the hearing has commenced. Section 1.11.5.7.C of the UDC 

states if a postponement or continuance of a public hearing is to a specific date and time no 

later than 60 days from the first or most recent hearing, the announcement of the 

postponement of continuance at the public hearing in which the application has been 

postponed or continued by the Planning and Zoning Commission shall be sufficient notice and 

no additional notice is required. However, the Planning and Zoning Commission may direct 

staff to re-notify postponed or continued applications for which public hearings have not yet 

commenced. 

None

Items for Individual Consideration

None

Public Hearing

Members of the public may address the Commission on items listed on the agenda under 

Public Hearing Items.  Persons wishing to address the Commission must first complete a 

request to speak card.  A person may also use the request to speak card to indicate his or her 

support or opposition to a case without speaking.  Cards may be picked up at the desk by the 

entrance to the City Council Chambers and may be deposited at the desk or given to a staff 

member.  Speaking time is generally limited to five minutes per speaker.  Per the by-laws of 

the Planning and Zoning Commission, the applicant and those favoring the request shall have 

a maximum of 30 minutes, including rebuttal, to present their arguments for the request.  

Those in opposition to a request shall have a maximum of 30 minutes to present their 

arguments against the request. When a large group is present, it is encouraged that 

representatives be appointed to speak for the group so that redundant testimony is minimized.  

Commissioners may have questions of those speaking at the public hearing. The time used to 

answer the Commission's questions will not be deducted from the allotted 30 minutes.  These 

rules may be temporarily suspended, in whole or in part, by a unanimous vote of the 

Commission.

Page 3 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019



October 7, 2019Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

5 19-9397 SU090104C - Specific Use Permit - Prince Motor Cars Amendment, Major Auto 

Repair (City Council District 5).  A Specific Use Permit Amendment for an existing 

Used Auto Dealer to add Private Vehicle Maintenance consisting of major repairs on 

0.47 acres at the address 3230 E. Main Street. Lot 702R, Block 1, Hensley Park 

Unit 1, Dallas County, Texas zoned C, Commercial District. The applicant is Tony 

Shotwell and the owner is Diamond Virami.

City Council Action: October 15, 2019 

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Operational Plan.pdf

Attachments:

6 19-9398 S191001 - Site Plan - Epic East Towne Crossing Retail (City Council District 2).  

Site Plan for Epic East Towne Crossing including 154,541 sq. ft. of retail and 

restaurants on 14.3 acres.  Epic East Towne Crossing Phase 1, Lots 2, 3, 7, and 8, 

Block A, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-364, within the 

SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, generally located east of SH-161 and north of 

Mayfield Rd, and addressed as 1010 Mayfield Rd, 1020 Mayfield Rd, 1030 

Mayfield Rd, 3162 S HWY 161, and 3182 S HWY 161. The applicant is William 

Winkelmann, Winkelmann & Associates and the owner is Mark Davis, Epic East 

Towne Crossing, L.P.

City Council Action: October 15, 2019 

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Building Elevations.pdf

Exhibit D - Landscape Plan.pdf

Attachments:

7 19-9399 SU191001 - Specific Use Permit - Epic East Towne Crossing, Phase II, Building B 

(City Council District 2).  Specific Use Permit for a Restaurant with a Drive-Through 

in a 16,000 sq. ft. retail building.  Epic East Towne Crossing Phase 1, Lots 2 and 3, 

Block A, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-364, within the 

SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, generally located east of SH-161 and north of 

Mayfield Rd, and addressed as 1030 Mayfield Rd and 1020 Mayfield Rd. The 

applicant is William Winkelmann, Winkelmann & Associates and the owner is Mark 

Davis, Epic East Towne Crossing, L.P.

City Council Action: October 15, 2019 

Exhibit A - Boundary Description.pdfAttachments:

Page 4 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019



October 7, 2019Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

8 19-9400 SU191002 - Specific Use Permit - Epic East Towne Crossing, Phase II, Building D 

(City Council District 2).  Specific Use Permit for a Restaurant with a Drive-Through 

in a 16,000 sq. ft. retail building.  Epic East Towne Crossing Phase 1, Lots 7 and 8, 

Block A, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-364, within the 

SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, generally located east of SH-161 and north of 

Mayfield Rd, and addressed as 3162 S HWY 161 and 3182 S HWY 161. The 

applicant is William Winkelmann, Winkelmann & Associates and owner is Mark 

Davis, Epic East Towne Crossing, L.P.

City Council Action: October 15, 2019 

Exhibit A - Boundary Description.pdfAttachments:

9 19-9401 SU191004/S191004 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - WoodSpring Suites Hotel 

(City Council District 4).  Specific Use Permit and Site Plan for a four-story, 

122-room hotel on 2.230 acres.  Tract 2B02 of Charles D. Ball Survey, Abstract 

197, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-29, within the IH-20 

Corridor Overlay District, and generally located north of IH-20, south of Sara Jane 

Pkwy, and west of Bob Smith Pkwy. The agent is Juan J. Vasquez, Vasquez 

Engineering LLC, the applicant: Ian McClure, Four VP GP Houston, Inc., and the 

owner is Sally Smith Mashburn, Bob Smith Management Company, LTD.

City Council Action: October 15, 2019 

Exhibit A - Boundary Description.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Building Elevations.pdf

Exhibit D - Landscape Plan.pdf

Exhibit E - Appendix F Checklist.pdf

Exhibit F - Operational Plan.pdf

Exhibit i - Hotel Height and FAR Comparison.pdf

Attachments:

10 19-9402 CPA191001- Comprehensive Plan Amendment- The Gibson Apartments (City 

Council District 2). Comprehensive Plan Amendment to change the Future Land Use 

Map from Commercial to High Density Residential on Lot 1, Block 1 out of the Allen 

Jenkins Survey Abstract No. 713. Located at 2422 S Carrier Parkway, Legally 

described as Lot 1, Block 1, being 4.418 acres out of the Allen Jenkins Survey, 

Abstract No. 713, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned GR, General 

Retail.

City Council Action: October 15, 2019 

Exhibit A- Location Map

Exhibit B- Land Use Map

Attachments:

Page 5 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019



October 7, 2019Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

11 19-9403 Z191001/S191005- Zoning Change/Site Plan- The Gibson Apartments (City Council 

District 2). A request to change the zoning from GR, General Retail to a PD, Planned 

Development District for Retail, Restaurant, and Apartment uses. Legally described 

as Lot 1 & 2, Block 1, being 5.928 acres out of the Allen Jenkins Survey, Abstract 

No. 713, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas. Located at 2422 S Carrier 

Parkway and 902 W Pioneer Parkway.  The agent is Jeff Linder, Bannister 

Engineering, the agent/applicant is Chase Debaun, Aerofirma Corporation, the owner 

is Isibelle Debaun, David Nicklas Organ Donor Awareness Foundation.

City Council Action: October 15, 2019 

Exhibit A- Location Map

Exhibit B- Site Plan.pdf

Exhibit C- Apartment Elevations.pdf

Exhibit D- Retail Elevations.pdf

Exhibit E- Landscape Plan.pdf

Exhibit F- PD Exhibit

Exhibit G- Amenity List

Attachments:

12 19-9404 CPA191002 - Comprehensive Plan Amendment (City Council District 4). 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment to change the Future Land Use Map designation 

from Commercial to Mixed Use for 21.8 acres. Sheffield Village Phase IV, Block 3, 

City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-140, within the IH-20 

Corridor Overlay District and the SH-360 Corridor Overlay District, and addressed 

as 3025 W IH-20.

City Council Action: October 15, 2019 

Exhibit A - Boundary Description.pdfAttachments:

13 19-9405 Z191003/CP191003 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan - Bardin Road Mixed Use 

(City Council District 4).  Zoning Change and Concept Plan for Multi-Family, Retail, 

Restaurants, and a Theater on 21.80 acres.  Sheffield Village Phase IV, Block 3, City 

of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-140, within the IH-20 Corridor 

Overlay District and the SH-360 Corridor Overlay District, and addressed as 3025 

W IH-20. The agent is Brian Moore, applicant is Hamilton Peck, Hamilton 

Commercial LLC, and the owner is Jeremy Welman, Harkins Grand Prairie.

City Council Action: October 15, 2019 

Exhibit A - Boundary Description.pdf

Exhibit B - Concept Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Conceptual Images.pdf

Attachments:

Page 6 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019



October 7, 2019Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

14 19-9406 CPA191003 - Comprehensive Plan Amendment - Riverside Mixed Use (City 

Council District 1). Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Open Space/Drainage to 

Mixed Use.  Lot 1-R, Block 1, Riverside Club Addition and an unplatted remainder 

situated in the N. Underwood Survey, Abstract No. T1582, the J. Estill Survey, 

Abstract No. 491, and an unknown survey, abstract No. T1904, City of Grand 

Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas. Zoned LI, Light Industrial within the SH 360 Overlay 

District and addressed as 3000 Riverside Parkway, Grand Prairie, Texas.

City Council Action: October 15, 2019 

Exhibit A - Location MapAttachments:

15 19-9407 Z191004/CP191004 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan - Riverside Hotel and 

Apartments (City Council District 1).  Zoning Change and Concept Plan to rezone 

approximately 260 acres of land from LI, Light Industrial to a Planned Development 

for Hotel, Apartment, and Golf Course uses.  Lot 1-R, Block 1, Riverside Club 

Addition and an unplatted remainder situated in the N. Underwood Survey, Abstract 

No. T1582, the J. Estill Survey, Abstract No. 491, and an unknown survey, abstract 

No. T1904, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas. Zoned LI, Light Industrial 

within the SH 360 Overlay District and addressed as 3000 Riverside Parkway, 

Grand Prairie, Texas. The owner is Howard Porteus.

City Council Action: October 15, 2019 

Exhibit A - Location Map

Exhibit B - Proposed PD

Exhibit i - Shared Parking Analysis

Attachments:

Adjournment

In accordance with Chapter 551, Subchapter C of the Government Code, V.T.C.A., the 

Planning and Zoning Commission agenda was prepared and posted on October 4, 2019.

Chris Hartmann

Planning Secretary 

The City Hall is wheelchair accessible.  If you plan to attend this public meeting and you 

have a disability that requires special arrangements, please call 972-237-8255 at least 24 

hours in advance. Reasonable accommodations will be made to assist your needs.

Page 7 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019



City Hall
317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 119-9394 Name: Approval of Minutes of the September 9, 2019 P&Z
meeting

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/26/2019 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:10/7/2019

Title: Approval of Minutes of the September 9, 2019 P&Z meeting.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: PZ Draft Minutes 09-09-19.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Chris Hartmann

Title
Approval of Minutes of the September 9, 2019 P&Z meeting.

Presenter
David P. Jones, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



1 
 

 
 

REGULAR PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING MINUTES 
 SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 

 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Chairperson Josh Spare, Commissioners Bill Moser, Shawn 
Connor, Warren Landrum, Eric Hedin, Cheryl Smith, Max Coleman.  
     
COMMISSIONERS ABSENT:  Clayton Fisher and Eduardo Carranza  
  
CITY STAFF PRESENT: Steve Norwood, Director of Development Services, David Jones, 
Chief City Planner, Charles Lee, Senior Planner, Savannah Ware, Senior Planner, Ted Helm, 
Planner, Nyliah Acosta, Planning, Mark Dempsey, Deputy City Attorney, Brett Huntsman, 
Transportation Planner, and Chris Hartmann, Executive Assistant. 
  
Chairperson Josh Spare called the meeting to order in the Council Chambers in the City Hall 
Building at 6:30 p.m. Commissioner Moser gave the invocation, Chairperson Spare led the 
pledge of allegiance to the US Flag, and the Texas Flag. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS #1: disapproval of plats without prejudice for the following 
Consent agenda Items P191001 - Final Plat - Forterra Addition, Lots 1, 2 & 3, P191002 - 
Amending Plat - Epic East Towne Crossing, Phase 1, Lots 4, 5 & 6, P191003 - Final Plat - 
Creekside at Grand Prairie Addition, and P191004 - Final Plat - Burney 360 Addition, Lot 1, 
Block A. 
 
AGENDA ITEM: #2-APPROVAL OF MINUTES: To approve the minutes of the Planning and  
Zoning Commission meeting of August 5, 2019.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING CONSENT AGENDA: Item #3- P190701 - Final Plat - The Lakes at Grand 
Prairie, Lot 1, Block A (City Council District 4).  Final Plat for The Lakes at Grand Prairie, Lot 
1, Block A.  Tract 6D and 5C, Jerome Lynn Survey, Abstract No. 972, City of Grand Prairie, 
Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-255B, within SH-360 Corridor Overlay District, and generally 
located east of SH-360 and south of Doryn Dr. The applicant is John Bezner, Civil Point 
Engineers and the owner is Vino Patel, Doryn Senior Ltd. 
 
Item #4-P190901 - Final Plat - The Harmony School Addition, Lot 1, Block 1 (City Council 
District 5). Final Plat to establish one non-residential lot, identify existing easement and establish 
boundaries to accommodate the improvements to an existing charter school on 5.305 acres, 
situated in the Michael Farrans Survey, Abstract No. 469, and Henry Bilsmirer Survey, Abstract 
No. 111, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Multifamily-1 (MF-1).  The 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 
 

2 
 

property is generally located at the southeast corner of NW 7th Street and W. Tarrant Road. 
Addressed at 1102 NW 7th Street.  The property lies within the Interstate Highway 30 (IH-30) 
Overlay Corridor District. The agent is Chris Rogers, Pape-Dawson Engineers, Inc. and the 
owner is Erol Kose, Cosmos Foundation DBA Harmony Public Schools. 
 
Item #5-SU180702A/S180702A - Specific Use Permit Renewal - Premier Adjusters, 1501 W. 
Shady Grove, Renewal (City Council District 1).  A request to approve a Specific Use Permit 
Renewal for the short-term parking of repossessed vehicles.  The 1.76 acre property is zoned LI, 
Light Industrial District.  The property is generally located on the south side of W. Shade Grove 
Road, approximately 1150-feet west of Hardrock Road.   
 
Item #6-SU890902A - Specific Use Permit Renewal/Site Plan Amendment - Ryder Truck Rental 
(City Council District 1).  A request to amend an existing Specific Use Permit (SUP-516) and 
Site Plan for a Commercial Truck Leasing/Rental  Services/Truck Maintenance use on 6.82 
acres.  The existing facility consisting of two lots is generally located at the northeast corner of 
S. Great Southwest Parkway and W.E. Roberts Street, specifically addressed at 500 S. Great 
Southwest Parkway.  The property is zoned Commercial Office (CO) District with Specific Use 
Permit -516 (SUP-516).  Ryder Truck Addition, Blk 1, Lot 1 (3.332 Acres) and County Line 
Addition, Blk 1, Lot1 (3.49 Acres) City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas.   The agent is 
John Ainsworth, Kimley-Horn and the owner is Matthew Dellorusso, Ryder Systems, Inc. 
 
Item #7-Z190901 - Zoning Change - 305 NE 10th Street, Residential (City Council District 5).  
A request to change the zoning from GR, General Retail to SF-4 Single-Family Four Residential 
District for a single-family dwelling Lot 7, Block A, Mikeska Addition, Dallas County, City of 
Grand Prairie, Texas. The applicant is Margarito Reyes and the owner is Mreyes Properties. 
 
Motion was made to approve the consent agenda items regarding the Disapproval of Plats 
without Prejudice pending completion of the City's review process and submittal of corrections by 
the applicants for cases P191001, P191002, P191003, and P191004, approve the minutes of 
August 5, 2019, and approve public hearing consent agenda items P190701, P190901, 
SU180702A/S180702A, SU890902A, and Z190901.  
 
Motion:  Connor     
Second:  Moser                                
Ayes:  Coleman, Connor, Hedin, Landrum, Moser, Smith, Spare  
Nays:  None  
Approved: 7-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
 
 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 
 

3 
 

PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #8- S190802 - Site Plan - Wildlife Commerce Park, 
Buildings 12a, 12b, 13, & 14 (City Council District 1).  Senior Planner Charles Lee presented the 
case report and gave a Power Point presentation for a Site plan request to authorize construction 
for three office/warehouse buildings on 73.06 acres, with an option to consider a one-million sq. 
ft. office/warehouse facility on the same property.  The proposed development is situated in the 
Benjamin S. Reed Survey, Abstract No. 1225 and the David Bradshaw Survey, Abstract No. 121, 
Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, generally located south of W. Wildlife Blvd. approximately 
1,444 feet west of N. Belt Line Rd more specifically addressed at 401 W. Wildlife Boulevard.  
The property is zoned Planned Development 217C District. The agent is Richard Nordyke, 
O'Brien Architecture. 
 
Mr. Lee stated the 73.06-acre property is the undeveloped. Primary access to the site is by 
Wildlife Parkway. The orientation of proposed buildings 12, 13 and 14 are laid out in a north-
south configuration with the truck docks facing east-west, with extended wing-walls obstructing 
the view of proposed loading areas.  Alternative Building 12 is a two-story, million square feet, 
cross-dock facility, fronting Wildlife Parkway.  Three commercial drives serves the facility via 
Wildlife Parkway with median openings at each approach. Appendix X provides three specific 
regulations regarding warehouse/industrial proposals, these include but not limited to: 
 

 Site Design 
 Building Design & Materials 
 Landscaping & Screening 

 
Mr. Lee said Appendix X, Section 6, recognizes the benefits of integrating all three elements 
mentioned above when large, multi-phased industrial campus/site are being planned.  The 
applicant's overall design theme of building materials, architectural style, truck docks and 
integrated commercial drive locations adheres to more viable and sustainable environment.  In 
addition, significant tree canopies are being preserved on properties adjacent to this site 
conserving the areas natural resources, ground water, plant life and other desirable environmental 
surroundings. The primary building facade for buildings 12, 13 & 14 consist of two contrasting 
colors of textured painted concrete tilt-wall, conforming to the masonry requirement. The 
buildings comply with the articulation standard by providing glass/window storefront systems 
located on each corner of the buildings, each system incorporates a 10’ metal canopy supported 
by metal columns extending along the façade to meet compliance length in order to satisfy the 
articulation requirement. This design conforms to the look and materials of the buildings 
constructed within the Wildlife Commerce Park, consistent with the overall architectural design 
and construction in the industrial park.  The design as proposed does not satisfy the 30% or more 
window requirement of the overall vertical surface area for each façade as indicated in each 
table. However, the applicant is seeking a variance to that requirement in return for Tree 
Preservation Credits. A Tree Survey and Tree Protection Plan has been submitted by the 
applicant seeking relief and relaxation of the building design standards as applied to the Tree 
Preservation Incentives section of Appendix X. The Industrial Development Standards offer 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 
 

4 
 

credits/waiver to certain design standards for builder/developer efforts in on-site tree 
preservation. Tree Preservation Incentives provides an opportunity for flexibility in overall 
design by recognizing and incorporating natural environments and the community’s value in 
protection natural usable open space. The proposed site exceeds the minimum landscaping 
requirements for Section 5, Appendix X Industrial Developments.  The site provides 26% of 
landscaping. The proposed landscape plan requires 1250 trees.  The development provides a total 
of 577 trees, including 115 parking lot trees.   
 
Mr. Lee stated the site proposes a five-foot wide decomposed granite pedestrian trail/path 
constructed along the western and northwestern portion of the site, providing benches and 
seating areas leading to the open space shaded lawn area with sculpture, benches with tree 
canopy and garden area. The overall 5.1-acre open space shall feature 3,590 l.f. of walking paths, 
58 bench limestone seating areas and 28,000 s.f. of garden area. Tree Preservation Incentives 
requires minimum 6” caliper trees or greater be preserved on the same property as the 
development via submission and review of Tree Survey and Tree Protection Plan. Once 
confirmed, the Builder/Developer has an opportunity to request Section 4.2 and/or Section 4.4 
Building Design standards be relaxed.  The applicant has identified 886 trees located on abutting 
properties east and west of the site to be preserved seeking 1802 Tree Credits in the area abutting 
to the east and 1023 Tree Credits from properties adjacent to the west. The applicant is proposing 
to build a 12’ X 12’ masonry dumpster enclosure that will be clad in the same masonry materials 
as the building.  Each building shall be provided with a dumpster enclosure, which is located on 
the southeastern area of each building. The enclosure shall conform to city standards. The 
proposal for a three warehouse/distribution facility generally conforms to the recently adopted 
requirements.  Option/Alternative Building 12 does not conform to the overall concept plan for 
Wildlife Commerce Park. Adequate and safe access and parking is being provided.  The site 
generally conforms to Appendix X’s building design in offering alternating materials and design 
including horizontal & vertical articulations.   
 
Mr. Lee stated the site does not comply with the 30% window requirement of the overall vertical 
surface area for each façade. A Tree Survey/Tree Preservation Plan has been submitted to allow 
for relaxation of this requirement. Preservation areas abutting the site to remain in its natural 
state by preserving dozens of large caliper trees in addition to providing a decomposed granite 
walking trail leading to open space and tree canopies with planned benches and seating areas 
provides a desirable balance in the development of this phase to the Wildlife Commerce 
Industrial Park. The applicant is requesting relaxation to the building design be waived based on 
tree preservation incentives and tree credits offered. The applicant is seeking: 
 

 Reduction of the 30% window requirement of the overall vertical surface area for each 
façade to allow 12-14% glass on building sides facing Wildlife Pkwy. 

 The applicant requests the orientation of the dock doors for Option 2 allow for the docks 
to face Wildlife Parkway. 

 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 
 

5 
 

Mr. Lee stated the Development Review Committee recommends approval of Option 1 
(buildings 12-14) but not Option 2 (Alternate building 12) due to dock door alignment along 
Wildlife Pkwy. 

 
Commissioner Connor asked if there are other warehouses of this size within the city.  Mr. Lee 
stated there could be one located at the Grand Lakes off I-30. 
 
Commissioner Smith said her concern is the square footage and having so much industrial space, 
has a Traffic Impact Analysis been conducted for this site.  Transportation Planner Brett 
Huntsman replied a TIA was not required for this development.  Ms. Smith asked if part of the 
property was located within the floodplain.  Mr. Lee replied yes, the developer would need to do 
some mitigation prior to construction.  
 
Chairperson Spare stated there were no more questions for staff, opened the public hearing, and 
called for individuals wishing to speak on this item. 
 
Brad Cooper, 3819 Maple Avenue, Dallas, TX was present representing the case and to answer 
questions from the commission. Mr. Cooper stated it is unusual to present two different options 
they have been working with staff and Economic Development on a user for this site.  
 
Commissioner Moser asked in the future do they have room to expand to the west and how many 
warehouses of this size do they have in the metroplex.  Mr. Cooper replied they do not have the 
room to expand and this would be the first development of this size.  
 
Commissioner Coleman asked if they would be tying into the city’s sewer and do they own any 
land to the north of Hunter Ferrell.  Mr. Cooper replied yes they would be tying into the city 
sewer, but would be very expensive to do so.  They do own property to the north, but it would be 
utilized as mitigation pond.  
 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Moser moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case S190802 as presented, including both Options 1 and 2. The action and 
vote being recorded as follows:   

Motion: Moser       
Second: Connor                                 
Ayes:  Coleman, Connor, Hedin, Landrum, Moser, Smith, Spare  
Nays:  None  
Approved: 7-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
 
 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 
 

6 
 

Chairperson Spare noted the following cases would be presented together, but voted on 
individually.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #9- CPA190801 - Comprehensive Plan Amendment to 
change the Future Land Use Map from Open Space/Drainage and Mixed Use to Mixed Use on 
14.27 acres. Planner Nyliah Acosta presented the case report and gave a Power Point 
presentation for the 14.27 acres out of the Hein Bilsmirer Tract 3 & 11 Abstract No. 111, and 
Pablo Mansola Tract 1 Abstract No. 993, Dallas County, City of Grand Prairie, Texas, zoned 
“SF-4” Single-Family Four Residential District and “CO” Commercial Office District within the 
Highway 161 Corridor, generally located northeast of the intersection of Highway 161 and Hill 
Street addressed as 1614 Hill Street, 1610 Hill Street, and 906 Hwy 161. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #10- Z190801/CP190801 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan - 
Presidium Hill Street (City Council District 5).  Planner Nyliah Acosta presented the case report 
and gave a Power Point presentation for a Planned Development request and Concept Plan for 
Multi-Family and Retail/Restaurant uses on 14.27 acres. The Concept Plan depicts a multi-
family development up to 26 units per acre (371 units) on the east side of Hill Street and the 
frontage of N Highway 161. 14.27 acres out of the Hein Bilsmirer Tract 3 & 11 Abstract No. 
111, and Pablo Mansola Tract 1 Abstract No. 993, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, 
zoned “SF-4” Single-Family Four Residential District and “CO” Commercial Office District 
within the Highway 161 Corridor, generally located northeast of the intersection of Highway 161 
and Hill Street addressed as 1614 Hill Street, 1610 Hill Street, and 906 Hwy 161. 
 
Ms. Acosta stated the applicant is requesting to construct a high density multi-family and 
retail/restaurant development. The request is for a change from Open Space/Drainage and Mixed 
Use designation to Mixed Use on the Future Land Use Map. The purpose of this request is to 
change the zoning on 14.27 acres from “SF-4” and “CO” to “PD” to allow for a Multi-Family 
and Commercial development. The development includes four apartment buildings accessible 
from Hill St, a clubhouse, and dog park. Along the N SH 161 frontage, the applicant is proposing 
retail/restaurant uses The lot reasonably accommodates multi-family and commercial uses, and 
staff has found no indication of adverse impacts on neighboring lands in relation to the zone 
change, or adverse effects on the public health, safety, or welfare. Approving the change to a 
Planned Development will allow the owner to develop the underutilized parcels. In addition, 
high density residential uses are ideal along major arterials, and act as a buffer between less 
intense residential uses. The proposal is consistent with goals, policies, and objectives in the 2018 
Comprehensive Plan, including: Achieve a broad housing selection for a diverse population; 
Provide housing options that serve the needs of the population throughout the stages of their lives; A 
mix of residential densities offers the City opportunities to attract and retain businesses as well as 
generate higher ad valorem tax revenues than through low density residential alone; and Locate 
higher density residential uses along roadways designated as minor arterials, principle arterials or 
limited access thoroughfares.   A Site Plan is required for any multi-family use on the property. 
Planned Developments require a Site Plan for any construction, and UDC Articles VII and 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 
 

7 
 

Appendix W require Site Plan approval. Approval of the Concept Plan does not confer any 
variances to the property or to future development. The existing base zoning is “SF-4” and 
“CO”. The proposed base zoning for the 14.27 acres is “MF-3” Multi-Family Three Residential 
District and "GR-1" General Retail District. All zoning will defer to the Unified Development 
Code as amended.   
 
Ms. Acosta stated the following outlines the minimum dimensional requirements of the “MF-3” 
and “GR” districts and provides an analysis of the proposed compliance with the district. The site 
has frontage along Hill Street; the Concept Plan depicts two access points on Hill Street to access 
the multi-family development. Approval of this Concept Plan will be considered part of 
TXDOT’s process to approve the access from the SH 161 Frontage Road. Multi-Family 
development is required to meet the standards contained in Appendix W of the UDC. These 
standards include building articulation, materials, architectural features, and other design 
elements and will be evaluated for at the Site Plan phase. All variances pertain to the multi-
family component of the request. 
 

1. 65% one bedroom units (60% is standard). 
2. 15 foot front yard setback (30 feet is standard). 
3. 10 foot side yard setback on street (30 feet is standard). 
4. 20% garage parking (30% is standard). 
5. 1 parking space for 1 bedroom units (1.25 per 1 bedroom unit is standard). 
6. Both garage parking and tandem parking behind the garage are included in the parking 

calculation (standard is to include tandem parking in calculation, not both garage and 
tandem parking). 

 
Ms. Acosta said a petition with 192 signatures was submitted, 28 of which are within the 300 
foot buffer, making up 13.46% of the total land area.  
 
Ms. Acosta noted the Development Review Committee recommends approval of the requested 
amendment to the FLUM and recommends approval of the proposed zone change from “SF-4” 
Single-Family Four Residential District and “CO” Commercial Office District to "PD" Planned 
Development District.  
 
Chairperson Spare asked if there was a parking plan submitted. Ms. Acosta replied no, but they 
would be providing 270 to 290 parking spaces and the parking and garages would be addressed 
during the site plan approval process.  
 
Commissioner Moser asked at this current time and with existing zoning could single family 
homes be constructed on this site.  Ms. Acosta replied yes, but the property would need to be 
replatted.  
 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 
 

8 
 

Chairperson Spare stated there were no more questions for staff, opened the public hearing, and 
called for individuals wishing to speak on this item. 
 
Tony Shotwell, 309 NE 31st Street, Grand Prairie, TX stepped forward in support of this request.  
Mr. Shotwell said when he was on the Council he received a lot of complaints about not having a 
grocery store on the north side of town, but he understands if there are not enough roof tops these 
types of uses would not come in this is the opportunity to bring more roof tops to the area. The 
multi-family standards have been upgraded and we are seeing nice luxury apartments being 
build, just because it is an apartment does not mean they bring bad people.   
 
Jason Knotowiez, 3100 McKinney Street, Dallas, TX was present representing the case and to 
answer questions from the commission. Mr. Knotowiez gave a presentation of the proposed use 
and who they are as a developer.   
 
Mick Grayland, Architect with O’Brien Architects, 5310 Harvest Hill Road, Dallas, TX stepped 
forward in support of the request. He said they would be preserving as many trees as they can 
and would be providing great amenities for the community.  The community would be gated this 
development would be esthetically attractive with a contemporary look.   
 
Bill Dahlstrom, 2323 Ross Avenue, Ste 600, Dallas, TX addressed the neighborhoods concerns. 
He said this site is not suitable for single family homes or retail, because of the floodplain on the 
site. They met with the neighborhood on two occasions, but the turnout was not in great 
numbers.   
 
Chairperson Spare asked why do they want less parking and were are the guess parking spaces 
located. Mr. Knotowiez stated there are parking constraints on the site they are requesting more 
carports than garages the guess parking would be located towards the front of the property.  
 
Commissioner Smith stated the setback requirements are 30 feet and they are proposing 15 feet, 
this is very concerning to her. Mr. Knotowiez stated they want to provide a greater 
distance/buffer between the complex and the adjacent residences.   
 
Commissioner Moser noted the petition states the development would be 4-stories, what is the 
distance to height of Hwy 161.   
 
Jonathan Kerbel, 13455 Noel Road, Dallas, TX stated he is not sure of the topography along 
Hwy 161.  
 
Commissioner Connor asked if the other properties they own are fully occupied, because his 
concern with apartments is that at first they look really nice then in a couple of years they don’t 
look so nice and cannot keep them occupied.    
 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 
 

9 
 

Chairperson Moser noted parking for 1 bedroom are 1.5 spaces, parking for 2 and 3 bedrooms 
are 2 spaces.   
 
James Holiday, 1601 Roman Road, Grand Prairie, TX stepped forward in opposition to this 
request and to speak on behalf of the Holiday Hill Estates neighborhood. They submitted a 
petition in opposition with 200 signatures, there would be no privacy with a 4-story complex 
next to their homes this development would bring more people to their neighborhood, their park, 
traffic, and crime would become a bigger concern to the neighborhood. This development would 
affect their property values the people in this area would like to be heard this development 
affects all of them and asked that the developer look at a different location. 
 
Commissioner Connor asked how many property owners showed up to the meetings with the 
developer.   Mr. Holiday said most of the homeowners were not aware of the development.  
 
Commissioner Coleman asked what he envisions for this area. Mr. Holiday said he would like to 
see some offices or a shopping center at this location.  Mr. Coleman stated this property is not 
ideal for retail, because of the access.  
 
Commissioner Connor asked if some of the issues are, because the development would be 4-
stories.  Mr. Holiday replied yes this is only one issue.  
 
Kathy NcNiel, 1517 Capetown Drive, Grand Prairie, TX stepped forward in opposition, what 
concerns her is the traffic and the safety of their children what they need in this area is more 
retail and a grocery store. She said they love their neighborhood and want to keep it safe.  
 
Brenda Ferman, 1513 Capetown Drive, Grand Prairie, TX stated she purchased her home over 
10 years ago and she also has small children she worries about, if we allow more traffic and 
crime to come into their neighborhood. She did not attend any of the neighborhood meetings, but 
stated this development would take away from their neighborhood.  
 
Bill Villars, 1418 Roman Road, Grand Prairie, TX stated he is opposed to this development he 
has lived in Grand Prairie all his life this is a 4-story complex in a single family residential 
neighborhood.  The traffic is horrible it takes him 20 minutes just to get out of Roman Road, he 
asked that this case be denied or reduced the number of stories of the complex.  
 
Brian Stump, 1306 Capetown Drive, Grand Prairie, TX stated he is opposed to this development. 
Traffic is horrible and will get worse he lives adjacent to an apartment complex and he cannot 
spend time in his back yard. Mr. Moser asked when he purchased his home.  Mr. Stump replied 
in 2007 and yes he was aware of the apartments behind him.  
 
Bill Dahlstom stepped forward for a rebuttal he said Hill Street is designated to handle the 
additional traffic.   



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 
 

10 
 

Mark Farrell, Presidium President, 3100 McKinnon Street, Suite 250, Dallas, TX stated they 
would be constructing a very nice complex advertising to the young professionals.  Grand Prairie 
is in a good location between Dallas and Fort Worth, if the Commission wishes they can meet 
the setbacks, they want to be a good neighbor.  
 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Moser moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case CPA190801 as presented. The action and vote being recorded as 
follows:   

Motion: Moser      
Second:  Smith                                
Ayes:  Coleman, Connor, Hedin, Landrum, Moser, Smith  
Nays:  Spare   
Approved: 6-1 
Motion:  carried.  
 
Commissioner Connor moved to close the public hearing and approve case Z190801/CP190801 
with the following conditions: Approve; the 65% one bedroom units, the 4.20% garage parking, 
both garage parking and tandem parking behind the garage are included in the parking 
calculation, and Disapprove; the 15 foot front yard setback, the 10 foot side yard setback on 
street, and the 1 parking space for 1 bedroom units. The action and vote being recorded as 
follows:   
 
Motion: Connor       
Second:  Moser                                
Ayes:  Coleman, Connor, Hedin, Landrum, Moser  
Nays:  Spare, Smith    
Approved: 5-2 
Motion:  carried.  
 
The Commission took a 10 minute break at 9:00 p.m.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #11- Z190902 - Zoning Change - 201 NW 16th St, Planned 
Development (City Council District 5). Planner Ted Helm presented the case report and gave a 
Power Point presentation for a request to change the zoning from C, Commercial District to a 
Planned Development for C, Commercial District to allow for metal parts manufacturing and 
assembly in an existing steel building.  The property is located at the northwest corner of NW 
16th Street and NW Dallas Street on Lots 10, 11 & 12, Block 52, Dalworth Park Addition, City 
of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas. The applicant is Raul Rendon. 
 
Mr. Helm stated the applicant is proposing to continue the use of metal parts manufacturing and 
assembly on this site. The site can be accessed from NW 16th Street. The 2018 Comprehensive 
Plan’s Future Land Use Map designates the rezoning area as Mixed Use. The proposed Planned 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 
 

11 
 

Development fits with the character of the area but not the FLUM. Staff recommends that the parts 
assembly use be allowed to continue as it fits with the character and fabric of the neighborhood, but 
to not be open to other more intense industrial uses. The Development Review Committee 
recommends approval of the requested Zoning Change for a planned development under the 
following condition: Outside storage of parts and materials is restricted, and that the use of parts 
manufacturing and assembly will be void if discontinued more than 6 months. An amendment to 
the PD is required to establish any future industrial uses or other non-commercial or retail use. 
 
Chairperson Spare stated there were no questions for staff, opened the public hearing, and called 
for individuals wishing to speak on this item. 
 
Raul Rendon, 2834 Alcott Lane, Grand Prairie, TX was present representing the case and to 
answer questions from the commission.  
 
Commissioner Moser stated Mr. Emmons used to own the property when did he purchased the 
property.  Mr. Rendon stated he purchased the property through a realtor in February of this year.  
Mr. Moser asked where they park and where is the customer parking.  Mr. Rendon stated they 
park inside the building the customers park on the NW Dallas side.  
 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Moser moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case Z190902 as presented and recommended by staff. The action and vote 
being recorded as follows:   
 
Motion:  Moser     
Second:  Connor                                
Ayes:  Coleman, Connor, Hedin, Landrum, Moser, Smith, Spare  
Nays:  None  
Approved: 7-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #12- SU180504A – Specific Use Permit Renewal - 3025 
Hardrock Rd. (City Council District 1).  Senior Planner Charles Lee presented the case report 
and gave a Power Point presentation for a request for a renewal for existing Specific Use Permit 
-1044 (SUP-1044) allowing for Trucking and Storage Terminal Facility on2.94 acres. The 
subject property is zoned Planned Development -39 (PD-39 District and is located in the State 
Highway 161 (SH-161) Overlay Corridor District; located at the northeast corner of Hardrock 
Rd and Oakdale Rd.  
 
Mr. Lee stated as required by Ordinance No. 10466-2018 for Specific Use Permit 1044 the City 
Council shall conduct a public hearing one year after City Council adoption of this Ordinance to 
confirm compliance with all applicable codes which shall include, but not be limited to, the 
requirements of this SUP Ordinance, the Unified Development Code, The City of Grand Prairie 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 
 

12 
 

Code of Ordinances, City adopted building codes, city adopted fire codes and other applicable 
regulatory requirements and/or enforced by the state and federal government. Development 
Review Committee recommends Planning & Zoning Commission allow the applicant six months to 
establish compliance and that any subsequent violations will result in staff bringing back for 
revocation. 
 
Chairperson Spare stated there were no questions for staff, opened the public hearing, and called 
for individuals wishing to speak on this item. 
 
Sushil Chaugai, 3025 Hardrock Road, Grand Prairie, TX where present representing the case, he 
has been adding more trucks on his site and wants to change the Specific Use Permit to allow 
him to do so.  
 
Commissioner Moser stated as the owner he is required to meet the city’s code and follow the 
rules he can allow him six months to come into compliance, but he could be risking his business 
if he does not comply.  
 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Moser moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case SU180504A as presented and recommended by staff. The action and 
vote being recorded as follows:   

Motion:   Moser    
Second:   Landrum                               
Ayes:  Coleman, Connor, Hedin, Landrum, Moser, Smith, Spare  
Nays:  None  
Approved: 7-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #13- SU190902 - Specific Use Permit - Rocha Trucking 
(City Council District 5).  Planner Ted Helm presented the case report and gave a Power Point 
presentation for a Specific Use Permit for Major Auto Repair and Inoperable Vehicle Storage on 
1.1 acres at the address 308 Bill Irwin Street.  The subject property is zoned LI-LS, Light 
Industrial Limited Standards District. The property is located within Lots 13, 14 & 15, the south 
80 feet of Lots 16 through 20, 21, 22, 23 & 24, Block L, Twin Airports Industrial Addition, and 
Lot 25R, Block L, Twin Airports Addition Revision, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, 
Texas. The agent is Tony Shotwell and the owner is Patricio Rocha. 
 
Mr. Helm stated this Specific Use Permit is being requested in order to bring the site and its 
various suites under compliance as well as establish a site plan. As per Exhibit D of the 
Operational Plan, the site is to be paved in phases. During the second year of operation, 33% of 
the crushed concrete is to be paved. An additional 33% of the crushed concrete is to be paved the 
third year. During the fourth year of operation, the rest of the crushed concrete will be paved to 
completion. Additionally, two suites are being added to the site plan outside of Rocha Trucking’s 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 
 

13 
 

existing operation. They are RC Auto, Suite B, and Pancho Automotive, Suite C as listed on 
Exhibit B and D of the Operational and Site Plans. Staff inspected the property and operations on 
August 20th and was accompanied by the Code Enforcement Division and the Environmental 
Services Department. The inspections conducted indicated that there are several violations that 
will need to be addressed before a CO is issued. Inspections noted the following violations: 
 

 Work not being done under the canopy. 
 Fire lane was not clear. 
 Parts stored in the back of vehicles. 
 Ledger of all the existing vehicles was unavailable. 
 Vehicles double stacked and parked too close. 
 Vehicles stored on crushed concrete did not have spill mats under them. 

 
Mr. Helm stated the DRC recommends the Planning & Zoning Commission approve this 
Specific Use Permit with the following conditions: 
 

 No paint and body work on-site. 
 No salvaging of vehicles on-site. 
 No repair work will be permitted outside of the canopied footprint. 
 Shall comply with approved Site & Operational Plan. 
 That the fire lane be clear at all times. 
 That the gas storage tank on the site be designated as empty. 
 That the crushed concrete is maintained until paved according to Exhibit D of the 

Operational Plan. 
 Any non-permitted uses must cease before a CO is issued. 
 That a courtesy inspection be performed after 6 months to verify compliance. 

 
Chairperson Spare stated there were no questions for staff, opened the public hearing, and called 
for individuals wishing to speak on this item. 
 
Tony Shotwell, 309 NE 31st Street, Grand Prairie, TX was present representing Mr. Rocha and to 
answer questions from the commission. Mr. Shotwell said Mr. Rocha was not aware that he had 
to keep a vehicle ledger, but would begin right of way he has been working on taking care of the 
violations.  
 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Coleman moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case SU190902 per staff’s conditions. The action and vote being recorded 
as follows:   

Motion:  Coleman    
Second:   Moser                              
Ayes:  Coleman, Connor, Hedin, Landrum, Moser, Smith, Spare  



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 
 

14 
 

Nays:  None  
Approved: 7-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #14- RP190802 - Replat - 307 Gilbert Circle Addition 
(City Council District 1).  Planner Ted Helm presented the case report and gave a Power Point 
presentation for a request for a replat a 2.739 acre property into a single lot to allow for an 
Industrial Development.  The 2.739 acre property is part of The John N. Gainer Survey and Lots 
1 & 2, Block A, K&S Addition, Dallas County, Texas and is currently zoned Light Industrial 
District. The property is located at the address 307 Gilbert Circle and is generally located east 
side of Gilbert Circle. The agent is Lance Van Winkle and the owner is Nelson Braddy. 
 
Mr. Helm stated the purpose of this Replat is to clean up the lot lines and add proper right-of-way 
dedications for tax purposes. The property was previously platted as K&S Addition on March 19, 
1984. The lot has access form Gilbert Circle. The plat depicts required utility easements but does 
not depict required right-of-way dedications. The plat does not meet all the dimensional and 
development standards required by the UDC. Per Section 19, Article 12 of the Unified 
Development Code, "Street right-of-way and pavement widths shall be provided as shown on the 
adopted Master Transportation Plan, Article 23, and Thoroughfare Map for each classification of 
roadway. The Planning and Zoning Commission may grant an exception to this requirement 
upon recommendation of the Director of Transportation when a property is being platted or re-
platted, when: 1. The adjacent street is already improved with curb and gutter (Gilbert road is 
asphalt and bar ditch); 2. The adjacent street is functioning adequately; and 3. There are no plans 
to improve the street in the following five years. 
 
Mr. Helm stated due to required right-of-way dedications not being provided the Development 
Review Committee recommends denial of the requested Replat. 
 
Chairperson Spare stated there were no questions for staff, opened the public hearing, and called 
for individuals wishing to speak on this item. 
 
Lance Van Winkle, 307 Gilbert Circle, Grand Prairie, TX was present representing the case and 
to answer questions from the commission. They want to replat the property there are no plans to 
construct onsite at this time, they will withdraw the case if they do not receive the variance.  
 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Smith moved to close the public 
hearing and deny case RP190802.  The action and vote being recorded as follows:   

Motion: Smith       
Second: Landrum                                 
Ayes:   Landrum, Smith, Spare  
 
 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 
 

15 
 

Nays:   Coleman, Connor, Hedin, Moser  
Motion Failed: 3-4 
 
Commissioner Moser moved to table case RP190802. The action and vote being recorded as 
follows:   
 
Motion: Moser       
Second: Connor                                  
Ayes:   Coleman, Connor, Hedin, Moser, Smith 
Nays:   Spare, Landrum  
Approved: 5-2 
Motion:  carried.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #15- TA180201A - Amending Appendix W, "Residential 
Development Standards" of the Unified Development Code of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas.  
Chief City Planner David Jones presented the case report and gave a Power Point presentation to 
amend Appendix W, "Residential Development Standards" of the Unified Development Code of 
the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, to comply with recently adopted state legislation governing the 
regulation of building materials and construction methods. 
 
Mr. Jones stated in response to HB 2437, which prohibits cities from passing an ordinance 
prohibiting or requiring developers use certain materials, staff proposes the following changes to 
Appendix W -Residential Development Standards: 
 
Landscaping Requirements: Increase landscaping requirements for residential from 1 tree in 
front yard + 1 tree anywhere on the property to 2 + 2, but allow credit to be claimed for using 
recommended building materials (similar to Article 6). 
 
Multi-Family Incentives: Allow increase in density, reduction in garage parking, or reduction in 
landscaping for multi-family developments that provide preferred materials. 
 
Variance Language: The city receives frequent requests from developers for variances to a 
range of items, including lot sizes and garage orientation on single-family residential lots, and to 
limitations on 1-bedroom units and enclosed garage parking on multi-family residential 
developments. Staff proposes to modify the existing variance language for single-family and 
townhomes to allow for reduction in lot widths, setbacks, and garage orientation if recommended 
materials are used, and modify language for multi-family to establish that a credit may be 
granted towards 1-bedroom restrictions and number of enclosed garages if preferred materials 
and methods are used. 
 
Multi-Family Amenities: The current ordinance contains three categories of amenities and 
requires that a developer select a certain number from two of the three categories to receive 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 
 

16 
 

approval. In the 18 months since the ordinance was adopted, each multi-family development has 
met these requirements. Staff proposes to modify amenities requirements for multi-family to 
require that more amenities be provided while still only requiring amenities from two of the three 
categories; as an exception, if the development does not use recommended materials and 
methods, amenities are required to be provided from all three categories rather than two. 
 
Chairperson Spare stated there were no questions for staff, opened the public hearing, and called 
for individuals wishing to speak on this item. 
 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Moser moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case TA180201A as recommended by staff. The action and vote being 
recorded as follows:   

Motion: Moser     
Second: Connor                                
Ayes:  Coleman, Connor, Hedin, Landrum, Moser, Smith, Spare  
Nays:  None  
Approved: 7-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #16- TA180701C – Amendment to Appendix X, 
"Industrial Development Standards" of the Unified Development Code of the City of Grand 
Prairie, Texas.  Chief City Planner David Jones presented the case report and gave a Power Point 
presentation for an amendment to Appendix X, "Industrial Development Standards" of the 
Unified Development Code of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, to comply with recently adopted 
state legislation governing the regulation of building materials and construction methods. 
 
Mr. Jones stated in response to HB 2437, which prohibits cities from passing an ordinance 
prohibiting or requiring developers use certain materials, staff proposes the following changes to 
Appendix X - Industrial Development Standards: 
 
Square Footage Threshold: Since the ordinance has passed, staff has found that the existing 
20,000 square foot threshold has an adverse impact on smaller, local businesses looking to 
construct purpose-built industrial buildings, and that spec buildings which are constructed 
without a tenant and often sit vacant for long periods of time tend to be larger than 50,000 square 
feet. In response, staff proposes that the threshold for a development falling under Appendix X 
be increased from 20,000 square feet or greater to 50,000 square feet or greater. 
 
Tree Preservation: Change tree preservation approach from incentive for tree preservation to 
requirement for tree preservation. Under the current ordinance, an industrial developer can 
receive credit towards architectural and building materials requirements by preserving existing 
trees on the site. This has proven popular with developers, particularly on sites that are adjacent 
to waterways with thick tree canopies. With the city's ability to require materials and 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 
 

17 
 

architectural methods restricted, the incentive for tree preservation is also lost. One of the 
primary intents of the industrial standards is the mitigation of harmful airborne pollutants and 
noise often created by large warehouses and trucking operations. Staff proposes that a 
requirement to preserve 30 percent of existing caliper inches be put in place of the existing 
incentive-based approach to ensure developers continue to preserve valuable existing trees, 
which tend to have a higher rate of survival than most new plantings and are more effective at 
screening and carbon sequestration. 
 
Building Materials Menu: Move building materials and windows requirements to menu items 
and grant relief from current landscaping or open space features requirements if preferred 
architectural methods or building materials are used. This would move the base requirement for 
masonry construction and windows on 30% of primary facade to the list of optional menu items. 
As an incentive to developers to use preferred materials and architectural methods, the base 
landscaping requirement of 1 tree per 250 square feet would be progressively reduced to 1 per 
500 or 1 per 1,000, or outdoor/open space amenities requirements can be reduced, depending on 
how many of the preferred methods are adopted. 
  
Chairperson Spare stated there were no questions for staff, opened the public hearing, and called 
for individuals wishing to speak on this item. 
 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Moser moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case TA180701C as recommended by staff. The action and vote being 
recorded as follows:   

Motion:  Moser     
Second:  Landrum                                
Ayes:  Coleman, Connor, Hedin, Landrum, Moser, Smith, Spare  
Nays:  None  
Approved: 7-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #17- TA181002A – Amendment to Appendix F, "Corridor 
Overlay Development Standards" of the Unified Development Code of the City of Grand Prairie, 
Texas. Chief City Planner David Jones presented the case report and gave a Power Point 
presentation to comply with recently adopted state legislation governing the regulation of 
building materials and construction methods. 
 
Mr. Jones stated the purpose of this text amendment is to comply with Title 10, Government 
Code, Subtitle Z which states: Cities cannot adopt regulation that prohibits or limits, directly or 
indirectly, the use or installation of a building product or material on a building that is allowed in 
a national model code published within the last three code cycles; and Cities cannot establish a 
standard for a building product, material or aesthetic method on a building if more stringent than 
a standard in a national model code published within the last three code cycles. Appendix F no 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 
 

18 
 

longer includes base requirements for building materials and architectural methods.  Instead, in 
order to gain City Council approval, developers will have to accrue at least 100 points by 
providing features from at least two out of four categories.  The four categories are listed below.  
Selection of features related to building materials and aesthetic method is voluntary. 
 

1. Usable Open Space and Pedestrian Linkages; 
2. Site Design and Building Orientation; 
3. Building Design; and 
4. Healthy, Smart, and Sustainable Community. 

 
Chairperson Spare stated there were no questions for staff, opened the public hearing, and called 
for individuals wishing to speak on this item. 
 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Moser moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case TA181002A as recommended by staff. The action and vote being 
recorded as follows:   

Motion: Moser      
Second:  Smith                                
Ayes:  Coleman, Connor, Hedin, Landrum, Moser, Smith, Spare  
Nays:  None  
Approved: 7-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #18- TA190901 – Amending Article 1, “General 
Provisions”, Article 6, “Density and Dimensional Requirements”, Article 12, "Platting", and 
Article 16, “Site Plan Approval” of the Unified Development Code of the City of Grand Prairie, 
Texas.  Chief City Planner presented the case report and gave a Power Point presentation to 
comply with recently adopted state legislation governing the processing of subdivision plats and 
site plans related to subdivisions. 
 
Mr. Jones stated in response to HB 2439 restrictions on city ordinances prohibiting and requiring 
certain building materials, and HB 3167 establishment of a "shot clock" for approval or denial of 
Site Plans and Plats (previously, the Commission was only required to act on Plats within 30 
days), staff proposes the following changes to Article 1, Article 6, Article 12, and Article 16.  
 
Chairperson Spare stated there were no questions for staff, opened the public hearing, and called 
for individuals wishing to speak on this item. 
 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Moser moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case TA190901 as recommended by staff. The action and vote being 
recorded as follows:   



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 
 

19 
 

Motion: Moser      
Second:  Coleman                               
Ayes:  Coleman, Connor, Hedin, Landrum, Moser, Smith, Spare  
Nays:  None  
Approved: 7-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #19- Z190302/CP190302 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan – 
Kalterra Mixed Use Development, Highway 161 & Forum Drive (City Council District 2).                        
Senior Planner Savannah Ware presented the case report and gave a Power Point presentation for 
a Zoning Change and Concept Plan for a horizontal mixed use development on 55.5 acres, 
including Commercial, Retail, Multi-Family, and Single Family Townhouse uses, and allowing 
for two restaurants with drive-through, two hotels, and a bank with a drive-through by right. 
Tract 7, William Reed Survey, Abstract No. 1193, and Tract 1.1, Frederick Dohme Survey, 
Abstract No. 395, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-331, within the SH-
161 Overlay District, and generally located on the northwest corner of S Forum Dr. and SH-161. 
The applicant is Clint Nolen and the owner is Sunny Sheu. 
 
Ms. Ware stated the purpose of the request is to create a planned development for single family 
townhouse, multi-family, and commercial uses in the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District. At its 
May 6, 2019 meeting, the Planning and Zoning Commission voted 8-0 to deny Case Number 
Z190302/CP190302. The applicant appealed the Planning and Zoning Commission’s decision to 
deny, requesting that the case be forwarded to City Council.  The applicant made the following 
changes to the concept plan: shifted the location of uses in Zone B so that multi-family uses 
framed the ceremonial drive, eliminated an alternative that would allow a portion of Zone C to 
be developed for commercial use, and reduced the number of fast food restaurants allowed by 
right from two to one. At its May 21, 2019 meeting, City Council remanded the case back to the 
Planning and Zoning Commission due to the scope of changes made by the applicant.   On July 
22, 2019, the applicant submitted a Traffic Impact Analysis to the Transportation Department for 
review.  In response to Transportation Department’s comments, the applicant eliminated two of 
the drives off of SH-161 and added decel lanes for the remaining three drives. The Concept Plan 
depicts a horizontal mixed use development.   
 
Ms. Ware stated Mixed Use development should include a mixture of retail, high density 
residential, personal service and some limited office uses in a pedestrian oriented development.  The 
proposal is consistent with the FLUM and following goals, policies, and objectives in the 2010 
Comprehensive Plans. The applicant is proposing a base zoning district of General Retail-One.  
Allowable uses will be those provided for in the Unified Development Code for General Retail-One 
Districts with the changes; the applicant is proposing to prohibit Convenience Stores with Gasoline 
Sales in this zone.  The UDC allows Convenience Stores with Gasoline Sales with City Council 
approval of a Specific Use Permit; and the applicant is also proposing to allow one Restaurant with 
a Drive-Through by right. The UDC allows Restaurants with a Drive-Through with City Council 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 
 

20 
 

approval of a Specific Use Permit. The applicant is proposing base zoning districts of Multi-Family 
Three and General Retail-One.  Commercial development will be subject to the proposed General 
Retail-One Standards.  Allowable uses will be those provided for in the Unified Development Code 
for General Retail-One Districts with the changes listed below. 
 

 The applicant is proposing to prohibit Convenience Stores with Gasoline Sales in this zone.  
The UDC allows Convenience Stores with Gasoline Sales with City Council approval of a 
Specific Use Permit. 

 The applicant is proposing to allow two Hotels by right.  A hotel requires City Council 
approval of a Specific Use Permit when located within 300 feet of a residential zoning 
district, within a designated overlay district, or within 900 feet of a similar use. 

 
Ms. Ware stated Multi-family development will be subject to standards for Multi-Family Three 
District with some modifications. The applicant is proposing a parking ratio of 1.3 parking spaces 
per unit and that garages account for 10% of the required parking spaces. The applicant is proposing 
to develop Zone C for townhomes or hybrid housing and a child care facility allowed by right.  
Townhouse development would be subject to development standards for Single Family Townhouse 
District with some modifications. The applicant is proposing that attached garages account for 25% 
of required parking spaces.  Appendix W of the UDC requires two garage spaces for each unit with 
two or more bedrooms and one garage space for each unit with one bedroom. Hybrid housing 
development would be subject to the development standards for Multi-Family One District with 
some modifications.  The applicant is proposing that attached garages account for a minimum of 
20% of required parking spaces and carports account for a minimum of 30% of required parking 
spaces. The applicant is proposing to allow a child care facility by right.  The UDC requires a 
Specific Use Permit in all zoning districts. 
 
Ms. Ware stated staff is supportive of a horizontal mixed use development at this location and is 
comfortable with the proposed mix of uses.  However, an appropriate mix of uses is not the only 
element needed to create a successful mixed use development.  A strong vision ensures that all 
elements (including the integration, mix, and placement of uses) are designed around the 
pedestrian.  A well thought-out, master planned approach prioritizes the vision throughout the 
design and construction of all phases.  This approach ensures that the orientation of buildings, 
spacing of driveways, and location of parking areas support the vision instead of accommodating 
a single lot or use. Staff recommends approval with no variances and the following conditions: 
 

1. Development must meet the requirements and intent of Appendix F and Appendix W; 

2. Both sides of the promenade must be built together or with a park on one side; 

3. The developer shall establish an HOA for the townhomes and the HOA shall be 
responsible for maintaining the entire exterior including landscaping and residences; 

4. Hybrid Homes shall have the same appearance on all four sides; 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 
 

21 
 

5. Parallel parking shall be the only parking along the north-south drive and promenade; and 

6. Buildings shall maintain a consistent build-to line.  
 
Chairperson Spare stated there were no questions for staff, opened the public hearing, and called 
for individuals wishing to speak on this item. 
 
ShaQuandi Eaves, 2007 Paducah Lane, Grand Prairie, TX spoke in opposition to this request. 
The townhomes and the hotels would be too close to her neighborhood and would become an 
eyesore at this location there is a lot of multi-family coming into the area. Traffic is already a 
major concern at this location.  
 
Commissioner Smith asked if the developer has spoken to the community regarding this 
development. Mrs. Eaves replied no.  
 
Clint Nolan, 3710 Rawlins Street, Ste 1310, Dallas, TX stated they have been working with staff 
for several months this case should not have been presented back in May it was not ready the 
owner purchased this property with the intent to construct a furniture retail store. He said the can 
remove some of the variances.   
 
Commissioner Moser stated he does not see any changed from the last time this case came before 
the commission or the original proposal that was denied, he has an issue with the number of 
variances that are being requested.   
 
Commissioner Connor stated his concern is the best use of the land there are enough apartments 
and tiny homes being approved in the area.   
 
Commissioner Coleman stated he does not have a problem moving forward with staff’s 
recommendations.       
 
Chairperson Spare stated he has a problem rezoning land for more apartments, but has to think 
about what is the best use for this property and the area.  
 
Commissioner Smith agrees with Mr. Connor and Mr. Spare, we already have a number of 
apartment complexes coming into this area.  
 
Commissioner Hedin stated by adding big boxes would this be any better than what is being 
proposed, because development will happen.  
 
 
 
 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 
 

22 
 

There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Smith moved to close the public 
hearing and deny case Z190302/CP190302.  The action and vote being recorded as follows:   
 
Motion: Smith     
Second: Landrum                                 
Ayes:  Connor, Landrum, Moser, Smith, Spare  
Nays:  Coleman, Hedin  
Denied: 5-2 
Motion:  carried.  
 
Commissioners or Citizens Comments:  None  
 
Commission Moser moved to adjourn the meeting of September 9, 2019.  The meeting adjourned 
at 11:15 p.m. 
 
 
 
_______________________  
Joshua Spare, Chairperson  
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________  
Max Coleman, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
An audio recording of this meeting is available on request at 972-237-8255. 



City Hall
317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 119-9395 Name: P191001 - Final Plat - Forterra Addition, Lots 1, 2 &
3

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/26/2019 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:10/7/2019

Title: P191001 - Final Plat - Forterra Addition, Lots 1, 2 & 3 (City Council District 1).  Final Plat of Forterra
Addition, Lots 1, 2 & 3, for three industrial lots on 276.85 acres.  276.85 acres on multiple tracts out of
the Robert R. Tucker Survey, Abstract No. 1472, Dudley F. Pearson, Abstract No. 1130, John W.
Smith Survey, Abstract No. 1320 and James McLaughlin Survey, Abstract No. 846, City of Grand
Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, and generally located at the northeast corner of Interstate Hwy 30
Service Road and MacArthur Boulevard.  Zoned HI, Heavy Industrial district within the Interstate 30 (I-
30) Corridor Overlay and addressed as 1000 MacArthur Blvd.  The agent is Jacob Sumpter,
Mycoskie, Mcinnis & Associates and the owner Pipe Portfolio Owner.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map

Exhibit B - Final Plat

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Chris Hartmann

Title
P191001 - Final Plat - Forterra Addition, Lots 1, 2 & 3 (City Council District 1).  Final Plat of Forterra
Addition, Lots 1, 2 & 3, for three industrial lots on 276.85 acres.  276.85 acres on multiple tracts out of the
Robert R. Tucker Survey, Abstract No. 1472, Dudley F. Pearson, Abstract No. 1130, John W. Smith Survey,
Abstract No. 1320 and James McLaughlin Survey, Abstract No. 846, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County,
Texas, and generally located at the northeast corner of Interstate Hwy 30 Service Road and MacArthur
Boulevard.  Zoned HI, Heavy Industrial district within the Interstate 30 (I-30) Corridor Overlay and addressed
as 1000 MacArthur Blvd.  The agent is Jacob Sumpter, Mycoskie, Mcinnis & Associates and the owner Pipe
Portfolio Owner.

Presenter
Charles Lee, AICP, Senior Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:
Consider a Final Plat to establish three industrial lots, identify existing easement and establish boundaries on
276.85 acres. The 276.85 acres is on multiple tracts out of the Robert R. Tucker Survey, Abstract No. 1472,
Dudley F. Pearson, Abstract No. 1130, John W. Smith Survey, Abstract No. 1320 and James McLaughlin
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9395, Version: 1

Dudley F. Pearson, Abstract No. 1130, John W. Smith Survey, Abstract No. 1320 and James McLaughlin
Survey, Abstract No. 846, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, and generally located at the northeast
corner of Interstate Hwy 30 Service Road and MacArthur Boulevard. Zoned Heavy Industrial (HI) District and
lies within the Interstate 30 (I-30) Overlay Corridor District. The current address is 1000 MacArthur Blvd.
The property lies in City Council District #1.

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing land use for surrounding properties.

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North Heavy Industrial (HI) District Undeveloped

South Light Industrial (LI) & Single Family-4 (SF-4)
Districts

Partially Developed South of I-30

East Heavy Industrial (HI) District Undeveloped

West Light Industrial (LI) District Partially developed

COMMENTS:
The 276.85 -acre property is generally located at the northeast corner of Interstate Highway (I-30) Service Road
and MacArthur Boulevard. The property is zoned Heavy Industrial (HI) District and lies within the I-30
Overlay Corridor District. Fonterra Pipe, formally Hanson Pipe provides industrial concrete storm sewer and
drainage pipe for construction projects. The property is roughly 5,900’ in width and approximately 3,200’
depth. An existing 65’-100’ in width railroad spur extends from the southwestern portion of the property further
south of I-30 through properties on the south (Grand Lakes Industrial & Burbank Gardens Residential)
eventually connecting to the east-west Union Pacific Railway. The final plat as submitted establishes property
boundaries, dedicates and reflects the existing easements on the property including existing wetlands on the
eastern portion of the property.

RECOMMENDATION:
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the final plat

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



E Ih 30 Eb  

E Ih 30 Wb  

He
ns

ley
 D

r

Grand Lakes Way

Ne
 29

th
 St

Ne
 28

th
 St

Gr
an

d L
ak

es
 B

lvd

Johnson St

Ne
 31

st 
St

Ne 33rd St

Ne 32nd St

M
acarthur Blvd

No Official Name

Bowles StNe
 31

st 
St

Ne
28

t h
St

No Official Name

Bowles St

M
ac

ar
th

ur
 B

lvd

Ne
 28

th
 St

E Ih 30 Wb  E Ih 30 Eb  

Grand Lakes Way

Ne
 33

rd
 St

Ne
 32

nd
 St

M
acarthur Blvd

Ne
 29

th
 St

Ne
 31

st 
St

M
ac

ar
th

ur
 B

lvd

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number: P191001

Forterra Addition, Lots 1, 2 & 3
´ Planning and Development

(972) 237-8257 www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

EXHIBIT A



Exhibit B - Final Plat
Page 1 of 3



Exhibit B - Final Plat
Page 2 of 3



Exhibit B - Final Plat
Page 3 of 3



City Hall
317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 119-9396 Name: P191002 - Amending Plat - Epic East Towne
Crossing, Phase 1, Lots 4, 5 & 6

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/26/2019 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:10/7/2019

Title: P191002 - Amending Plat - Epic East Towne Crossing, Phase 1, Lots 4, 5 & 6 (City Council District 2).
Amending Plat of Epic East Towne Crossing Phase 1, Lots 4, 5, and 6, Block A, adding a drainage
easement, water easement, and sidewalk easement.  Epic East Towne Crossing Phase 1, Lots 4, 5,
and 6, Block A, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-364, within the SH-161 Corridor
Overlay District, generally located east of SH-161 and north of Mayfield Rd, and addressed as 3192 S
HWY 161, 1040 Mayfield Rd, and 1050 Mayfield Rd. The applicant is Michael Davis, Bannister
Engineering and the owner is Mark Davis, Epic East Towne Crossing, L.P.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Amending Plat.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Chris Hartmann

Title
P191002 - Amending Plat - Epic East Towne Crossing, Phase 1, Lots 4, 5 & 6 (City Council District 2).
Amending Plat of Epic East Towne Crossing Phase 1, Lots 4, 5, and 6, Block A, adding a drainage easement,
water easement, and sidewalk easement.  Epic East Towne Crossing Phase 1, Lots 4, 5, and 6, Block A, City of
Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-364, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, generally
located east of SH-161 and north of Mayfield Rd, and addressed as 3192 S HWY 161, 1040 Mayfield Rd, and
1050 Mayfield Rd. The applicant is Michael Davis, Bannister Engineering and the owner is Mark Davis, Epic
East Towne Crossing, L.P.

Presenter
Savanna Ware, AICP, Senior Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:

Amending Plat of Epic East Towne Crossing Phase 1, Lots 4, 5, and 6, Block A, adding a drainage easement
and water easement. Epic East Towne Crossing Phase 1, Lots 4, 5, and 6, Block A, City of Grand Prairie,
Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-364, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, generally located east of SH

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9396, Version: 1

-161 and north of Mayfield Rd, and addressed as 3192 S HWY 161, 1040 Mayfield Rd, and 1050 Mayfield Rd.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of this Amending Plat is to add easements to three platted lots.

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-364 Undeveloped

South PD-294 IKEA

West PD-364 Undeveloped; Retail/Restaurant

East PD-364 Undeveloped

HISTORY:

· August 7, 2017: The Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Preliminary Plat for Epic East
Towne Crossing Phase 1 (Case Number P170804).

· September 11, 2017: The Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Final Plat for Epic East Towne
Crossing Phase 1 (Case Number P170903).

PLAT FEATURES:

The plat depicts the necessary easements and meets applicable dimensional requirements.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



Ro
bi

ns
on

 R
d

Mayfield Rd
S Hwy 161 Sb  

S Hwy 161 Nb  

W Warrior Trl

S Hwy 161 Svc Sb Rd

Es
pl

an
ad

e  

S Hwy 161 Svc Nb Rd

Ikea Pl

Ik
ea

 W
ay

Meadows Dr

Qu
an

na
h D

r

Brian Dr

Kelley Ln

Meadow Park Ln

Ca
th

ed
er

al 
Dr

Frances Dr

Brentwood Dr

Earnest Dr

Prairie Creek Dr

Kalgary Ln

Over Ridge Dr

Forest Oaks Dr

Da
le 

Ln

Springwood Dr

Cedarbrook Cir

Gr
ee

n B
ra

nc
h D

r
West Grove Ln

Plains Ct

Fa
irf

iel
d D

r

Pr
air

ie
Cr

ee
kC

t

Su
m

m
er

fie
ld

 Ln

S Hwy 161 Svc Nb Rd

CASE LOCATION MAPCase Number P191002
Epic East Towne Crossing, Lots 4, 5, and 6 ´

Planning and Development
(972) 237-8257
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit B - Amending Plat
Page 1 of 3



Exhibit B - Amending Plat
Page 2 of 3



Exhibit B - Amending Plat
Page 3 of 3



City Hall
317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 119-9408 Name: P191004 - Final Plat - Burney 360 Addition, Lot 1,
Block A

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/26/2019 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:10/7/2019

Title: P191004 - Final Plat - Burney 360 Addition, Lot 1, Block A (City Council District 1).  Final Plat of
Burney 360 Addition, Lots 1, Block A, for a commercial lot on 5.7 acres, tract out of the L. Barnes
Survey, Abstract No. 113 and M.K. Selvidge Survey, Abstract no. 1130, John W. Smith Survey,
Abstract No. 1320 and James McLaughlin Survey, Abstract No. 1423, City of Grand Prairie, and City
of Arlington, Tarrant County, Texas, and generally located at the southwest corner of State Highway
360 Service Road and Burney Road.  Zoned Planned Development-368 (PD-368) District within the
SH-360 Corridor Overlay and addressed as 1891 N. SH 360, Grand Prairie, TX. The applicant is
Annalyse Valk and the owner is Shawn Valk, Platinum Storage.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map

Exhibit B - Final Plat

Exhibit B2 P191004 Final Plat

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Chris Hartmann

Title
P191004 - Final Plat - Burney 360 Addition, Lot 1, Block A (City Council District 1). Final Plat of Burney 360
Addition, Lots 1, Block A, for a commercial lot on 5.7 acres, tract out of the L. Barnes Survey, Abstract No.
113 and M.K. Selvidge Survey, Abstract no. 1130, John W. Smith Survey, Abstract No. 1320 and James
McLaughlin Survey, Abstract No. 1423, City of Grand Prairie, and City of Arlington, Tarrant County, Texas,
and generally located at the southwest corner of State Highway 360 Service Road and Burney Road.  Zoned
Planned Development-368 (PD-368) District within the SH-360 Corridor Overlay and addressed as 1891 N. SH
360, Grand Prairie, TX. The applicant is Annalyse Valk and the owner is Shawn Valk, Platinum Storage.

Presenter
Charles Lee, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
Consider a Final Plat to establish a commercial lot and identify easements to accommodate the multi-story self-
storage facility on the property.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9408, Version: 1

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing land use for surrounding properties.

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North Light Industrial (LI) District Commercial Office Uses

South Light Industrial (LI) Undeveloped

East Light Industrial (LI) State Highway SB Service Road

West City of Arlington-PD Commercial Undeveloped

Primary access to the facility shall be from proposed 30’ commercial drive via Barney Road to the along the
northern property boundary and secondary/emergency gated access via a 30’ commercial drive along the
southern boundary via private drive (Burney Oaks Drive).

COMMENTS:

The 5.7-acre property is uniquely located in both the City of Grand Prairie and the City of Arlington’s corporate
boundary; with approximately 50% of the property located in each city. The preliminary plat as submitted
establishes property boundaries and existing easements and will dedicate easements necessary to accommodate
the development of the property as well as dedicate rights-of-way. Extension of utilities as well as permitting
and construction of the building will be done through City of Arlington in accordance with the terms of an
Interlocal Agreement between Grand Prairie and Arlington approved in 2018.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee recommends approval.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



N 
Hw

y 3
60

 Sb
  

Fountain Pkwy

Avenue R  

N 
Hw

y 3
60

 N
b  

Burney Rd
St

oc
kto

n D
r

N 
Hw

y 3
60

 Sb
  

N 
Hw

y 3
60

 N
b  N 

Hw
y 3

60
 Sb

  

N 
Hw

y 3
60

 N
b  

N 
Hw

y 3
60

 N
b  

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number: P191004

Burney 360 Addition, Lot 1, Block A
´ Planning and Development

(972) 237-8257 www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

EXHIBIT A



Exhibit B - Final Plat



EXHIBIT B SHEET 2



City Hall
317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 119-9397 Name: SU090104C - Specific Use Permit - Prince Motor
Cars Amendment, Major Auto Repair

Status:Type: Ordinance Public Hearing

File created: In control:9/26/2019 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:10/7/2019

Title: SU090104C - Specific Use Permit - Prince Motor Cars Amendment, Major Auto Repair (City Council
District 5).  A Specific Use Permit Amendment for an existing Used Auto Dealer to add Private Vehicle
Maintenance consisting of major repairs on 0.47 acres at the address 3230 E. Main Street. Lot 702R,
Block 1, Hensley Park Unit 1, Dallas County, Texas zoned C, Commercial District. The applicant is
Tony Shotwell and the owner is Diamond Virami.
City Council Action: October 15, 2019

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Operational Plan.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Chris Hartmann

Title

SU090104C - Specific Use Permit - Prince Motor Cars Amendment, Major Auto Repair (City Council District
5).  A Specific Use Permit Amendment for an existing Used Auto Dealer to add Private Vehicle Maintenance
consisting of major repairs on 0.47 acres at the address 3230 E. Main Street. Lot 702R, Block 1, Hensley Park
Unit 1, Dallas County, Texas zoned C, Commercial District. The applicant is Tony Shotwell and the owner is
Diamond Virami.
City Council Action: October 15, 2019

Presenter

David P. Jones, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

Consider a request for a Specific Use Permit Amendment for an existing Used Auto Dealer to add Private
Vehicle Maintenance consisting of major repairs on 0.47 acres at the address 3230 E. Main Street. The subject
property is zoned C, Commercial District. The property is located on Lot 702R, Block 1, Hensley Park Unit 1,

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9397, Version: 1

Dallas County, Texas.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Zoning and Land Use

                 Direction         Zoning                                                   Existing Use

                   North           SF-4                                                    Residential

                    East              C                                                  Grocery Store

                  South              LI                                                 Light Industrial

                   West              C                                           USA #1 Transmissions

HISTORY:

· The property was originally platted in 1951

· The SUP was established in 2009 for Used Auto Sales

· The fence and paving that was required in the previous SUP renewal has been completed

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

This Specific Use Permit amendment is being requested in order to expand the current allowable use to include
major repair of private vehicles, not open to the public, with the existing Used Auto Dealer. As per the
operational plan, this will be only for vehicles owned by Prince Motor Cars and will not be available for public
use.

STATUS:

Staff inspected the property and operations on October 2nd and was accompanied by the Code Enforcement
Division. The inspections conducted indicated that there is a violation that will need to be addressed before a
CO is issued. Inspections noted the following violation:

· Fire lane was not clear.

RECOMMENDATION:

DRC recommends the Planning & Zoning Commission approve this Specific Use Permit with the following
conditions:

· Auto repair will be strictly for vehicles owned by Prince Motor Cars.

· The right to conduct private major auto repair on-premise is not transferrable and will expire if the
property is transferred to another owner or operator or if subdivided.

· No paint and body work on-site.

· No salvaging of parts on-site.

· Shall comply with approved Site & Operational Plan.

· That the fire lane be clear at all times.

· Any non-permitted uses must cease before a CO is issued.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9397, Version: 1

· That a courtesy inspection be performed after 6 months to verify compliance.

Body

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



Purcell St

E Main St

Ne
 35

th
 St

Trible Dr

Rinehart Dr

Ne
 32

nd
 St

He
ns

ley
 D

r

He
ns

ley
 D

r

Trible Dr

Ne
 35

th
 St

Ne
 32

nd
 St

E Main St

E Main St
E Main St

Trible Dr

Rinehart Dr

E Main St E Main St

Ne
 32

nd
 St

He
ns

ley
 D

r

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number: SU090104C

Prince Motor Cars Amendment
´ Planning and Development

(972) 237-8257 www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

Exhibit A



Exhibit B - Site Plan



Exhibit C



City Hall
317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 119-9398 Name: S191001 - Site Plan - Epic East Towne Crossing
Retail

Status:Type: Agenda Item Public Hearing

File created: In control:9/26/2019 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:10/7/2019

Title: S191001 - Site Plan - Epic East Towne Crossing Retail (City Council District 2).  Site Plan for Epic
East Towne Crossing including 154,541 sq. ft. of retail and restaurants on 14.3 acres.  Epic East
Towne Crossing Phase 1, Lots 2, 3, 7, and 8, Block A, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas,
zoned PD-364, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, generally located east of SH-161 and
north of Mayfield Rd, and addressed as 1010 Mayfield Rd, 1020 Mayfield Rd, 1030 Mayfield Rd, 3162
S HWY 161, and 3182 S HWY 161. The applicant is William Winkelmann, Winkelmann & Associates
and the owner is Mark Davis, Epic East Towne Crossing, L.P.
City Council Action: October 15, 2019

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Building Elevations.pdf

Exhibit D - Landscape Plan.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Chris Hartmann

Title
S191001 - Site Plan - Epic East Towne Crossing Retail (City Council District 2).  Site Plan for Epic East Towne
Crossing including 154,541 sq. ft. of retail and restaurants on 14.3 acres.  Epic East Towne Crossing Phase 1,
Lots 2, 3, 7, and 8, Block A, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-364, within the SH-161
Corridor Overlay District, generally located east of SH-161 and north of Mayfield Rd, and addressed as 1010
Mayfield Rd, 1020 Mayfield Rd, 1030 Mayfield Rd, 3162 S HWY 161, and 3182 S HWY 161. The applicant is
William Winkelmann, Winkelmann & Associates and the owner is Mark Davis, Epic East Towne Crossing, L.P.
City Council Action: October 15, 2019

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Senior Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:

Site Plan for Epic East Towne Crossing including 154,541 sq. ft. of retail and restaurants on 14.3 acres. Epic

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9398, Version: 1

Site Plan for Epic East Towne Crossing including 154,541 sq. ft. of retail and restaurants on 14.3 acres. Epic
East Towne Crossing Phase 1, Lots 2, 3, 7, and 8, Block A, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned
PD-364, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, generally located east of SH-161 and north of Mayfield
Rd, and addressed as 1010 Mayfield Rd, 1020 Mayfield Rd, 1030 Mayfield Rd, 3162 S HWY 161, and 3182 S
HWY 161.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The applicant intends to construct Epic East Towne Crossing Phase 2, which includes over 150,000 sq. ft. for
retail and restaurants. Any development in a Planned Development District or Corridor Overlay District
requires City Council approval of a Site Plan. Development at this location requires City Council approval of a
Site Plan because the property is zoned PD-364 and within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-364 Undeveloped

South PD-364; PD-294 Undeveloped; Retail (IKEA)

West PD-364 Retail/Restaurants

East PD-364; PD-91 Undeveloped; Church; Floodway/Floodplain

HISTORY:

· July 18, 2017: City Council approved a Zoning Change and Concept Plan (Case Number Z170401),
creating a planned development district for Commercial and Multi-Family uses (PD-364).

· August 7, 2017: The Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Preliminary Plat for Epic East
Towne Crossing Phase 1 (Case Number P170804).

· September 11, 2017: The Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Final Plat for Epic East Towne
Crossing Phase 1 (Case Number P170903).

· The proposal is located on Lots 2, 3, 7, and 8 of Epic East Towne Crossing Phase 1. The applicant will
replat the property to create two lots out of the existing four.

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The proposal includes a junior anchor lineup (tenant spaces range from 9,000 sq. ft. to 55,215 sq. ft.) and retail
inline along the east property line and two freestanding retail buildings. Retail B (14,096 sq. ft.) and Retail D
(16,000 sq. ft.) both include spaces for a Restaurant with a Drive-Through.

The site will be accessible from Mayfield Rd. and the SH-161 frontage road. Internal drives established by
cross-access easements and Epic East Towne Crossing’s covenants, conditions, and restrictions will provide
access and circulation throughout the development. The applicant will need to make off-site improvements
with the construction of Epic East Towne Crossing Phase 2. These improvements include an access drive along
the east property line, a bridge across Kirby Creek, a driveway on Warrior Trail, and a connection to an existing
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9398, Version: 1

the east property line, a bridge across Kirby Creek, a driveway on Warrior Trail, and a connection to an existing
driveway on the SH-161 frontage road.

ZONING REQUIREMENTS:

Density and Dimensional Requirements

The subject property is zoned PD-364 with a base zoning district of Commercial (C). Development is subject
to the standards in PD-364 and the Unified Development Code (UDC). The following table evaluates the
density and dimensional standards of the proposed development. The proposal meets or exceeds the density
and dimensional requirements.

Table 2: Site Data Summary

Standard Required Provided 8R Provided 9 Meets

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.)5,000 398,761 224,171 Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.)50 248.83 359.15 Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.)100 663 662.92 Yes

Front Setback (Ft.)25 401.42 103.16 Yes

Rear Setback (Ft.)0 70.27 49.8 Yes

Max. Height (Ft.)25 25 25 Yes*

Max. Floor Area Ratio.5:1 .249:1 .246:1 Yes

*The roof line for the junior anchor line up and retail inline does not exceed 25 ft. The height including parapet walls and
articulated public entrances ranges from 25.5 ft. to 36 ft. Article 30 of the UDC excludes parapet walls not exceeding ten
feet in height from the calculation of building height.

Landscape and Screening

The property is subject to landscape and screening requirements in Article 8 and Appendix F of the UDC and
PD-364. The table below summarizes these requirements. The proposal meets the landscape and screening
requirements.

Table 3: Landscape & Screening Requirements for Lot 8R

Standard Required Provided Meets

Landscape Area (Sq. Ft.) 40,046 55,825 Yes

Trees 117 105* Yes

Shrubs 801 924 Yes

Pollinator Friendly Plants (Container Gallons)801 1189 Yes

*120 shrubs are substituted for 12 trees at a rate of 1 tree equals 10 shrubs.

Table 4: Landscape & Screening Requirements for Lot 9

Standard Required Provided Meets

Landscape Area (Sq. Ft.) 22,418 31,277 Yes

Trees 71 60* Yes

Shrubs 449 562 Yes

Pollinator Friendly Plants (Container Gallons)450 895 Yes

*110 shrubs are substituted for 11 trees at a rate of 1 tree equals 10 shrubs.

Building Materials and Design

The exterior finish materials include stone, brick, texture-coated concrete, stucco, and architectural panels. The

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9398, Version: 1

The exterior finish materials include stone, brick, texture-coated concrete, stucco, and architectural panels. The
proposed building elevations meet the stone/brick accent, articulation, and covered walkways requirements and
exceed the windows requirement in PD-364.

Appendix F Standards

The building materials and design requirements for inline buildings and multi-tenant buildings were established
with creation of PD-364 in 2017. Since then, City Council has approved revisions to Appendix F: Corridor
Overlay District Standards.

The applicant has worked with Staff to show how the proposed building elevations compare to the revised
Appendix F standards. Appendix F now requires that windows account for 30% of the area of street facing
facades. The table below shows the percentage of windows of street-facing facades for the retail inline
(Building A), Building B, and Building D. These percentages are consistent with Appendix F window
requirements for street-facing facades.

Table 5: Windows for Street-Facing Facades

Facade Windows

Retail A West 32.5%

Retail A South 34%

Retail D West 32.5%

Retail B West 32.7%

The applicant has also included eight Building Design Menu Items, exceeding the six Menu Items required by
the new standards.

EXCEPTIONS OR APPEALS:

1. Variance to the Side Yard Setback: The applicant intends to replat the existing four lots into two lots.
The new lot line would run between Anchor and Junior Anchor 2 and create a zero ft. setback when a 20
ft. setback is required.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



Ro
bi

ns
on

 R
d

Mayfield Rd
S Hwy 161 Sb  

S Hwy 161 Nb  

W Warrior Trl

S Hwy 161 Svc Sb Rd

Es
pl

an
ad

e  

S Hwy 161 Svc Nb Rd

Ikea Pl

Ik
ea

 W
ay

Meadows Dr

Qu
an

na
h D

r

Brian Dr

Kelley Ln

Meadow Park Ln

Ca
th

ed
er

al 
Dr

Frances Dr

Brentwood Dr

Earnest Dr

Prairie Creek Dr

Kalgary Ln

Over Ridge Dr

Forest Oaks Dr

Da
le 

Ln

Springwood Dr

Cedarbrook Cir

Gr
ee

n B
ra

nc
h D

r
West Grove Ln

Plains Ct

Fa
irf

iel
d D

r

Pr
air

ie
Cr

ee
kC

t

Su
m

m
er

fie
ld

 Ln

S Hwy 161 Svc Nb Rd

CASE LOCATION MAPCase Number S191001
Epic East Towne Crossing Retail ´

Planning and Development
(972) 237-8257
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit B - Site Plan
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 1 of 8



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 2 of 8



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 3 of 8



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 4 of 8



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 5 of 8



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 6 of 8



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 7 of 8



Exhibit C - Building Elevations
Page 8 of 8



Exhibit D - Landscape Plan
Page 1 of 7



Exhibit D - Landscape Plan
Page 2 of 7



Exhibit D - Landscape Plan
Page 3 of 7



Exhibit D - Landscape Plan
Page 4 of 7



Exhibit D - Landscape Plan
Page 5 of 7



Exhibit D - Landscape Plan
Page 6 of 7



Exhibit D - Landscape Plan
Page 7 of 7



City Hall
317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 119-9399 Name: SU191001 - Specific Use Permit - Epic East Towne
Crossing, Phase II, Building B

Status:Type: Ordinance Public Hearing

File created: In control:9/26/2019 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:10/7/2019

Title: SU191001 - Specific Use Permit - Epic East Towne Crossing, Phase II, Building B (City Council
District 2).  Specific Use Permit for a Restaurant with a Drive-Through in a 16,000 sq. ft. retail
building.  Epic East Towne Crossing Phase 1, Lots 2 and 3, Block A, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas
County, Texas, zoned PD-364, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, generally located east of
SH-161 and north of Mayfield Rd, and addressed as 1030 Mayfield Rd and 1020 Mayfield Rd. The
applicant is William Winkelmann, Winkelmann & Associates and the owner is Mark Davis, Epic East
Towne Crossing, L.P.
City Council Action: October 15, 2019

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Boundary Description.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Chris Hartmann

Title

SU191001 - Specific Use Permit - Epic East Towne Crossing, Phase II, Building B (City Council District 2).
Specific Use Permit for a Restaurant with a Drive-Through in a 16,000 sq. ft. retail building.  Epic East Towne
Crossing Phase 1, Lots 2 and 3, Block A, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-364, within
the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, generally located east of SH-161 and north of Mayfield Rd, and
addressed as 1030 Mayfield Rd and 1020 Mayfield Rd. The applicant is William Winkelmann, Winkelmann &
Associates and the owner is Mark Davis, Epic East Towne Crossing, L.P.
City Council Action: October 15, 2019

Presenter

Savananh Ware, AICP, Senior Planner

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

Specific Use Permit for a Restaurant with a Drive-Through in a 16,000 sq. ft. retail building. Epic East Towne
Crossing Phase 1, Lots 2 and 3, Block A, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-364, within
the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, generally located east of SH-161 and north of Mayfield Rd, and

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9399, Version: 1

addressed as 1030 Mayfield Rd and 1020 Mayfield Rd.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The applicant intends to construct Epic East Towne Crossing Phase 2, which includes over 150,000 sq. ft. of
retail and restaurants. Building B will include a Restaurant with a Drive-Through. Restaurants with a Drive-
Through that are located in a Corridor Overlay District require a Specific Use Permit. The purpose of this
request is to obtain a Specific Use Permit for the Restaurant with a Drive-Through in Building B.

The Site Plan, Building Elevations, and Landscape Plan for Epic East Towne Crossing Phase 2 is under
concurrent review (Case Number S191001).

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-364 Undeveloped

South PD-364; PD-294 Undeveloped; IKEA

West PD-364 Undeveloped

East PD-364; PD-91 Undeveloped; Church; Floodway/Floodplain

HISTORY:

· July 18, 2017: City Council approved PD-364 (Case Number Z170401), a planned development for
commercial and multi-family uses.

· August 7, 2017: The Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Preliminary Plat for Epic East
Towne Crossing Phase 1 (P170804).

· September 11, 2017: The Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Final Plat for Epic East Towne
Crossing Phase 1 (Case Number P170903).

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The drive-through lane begins on the east side of the building and wraps around the north side of the building.
The proposed drive-through lane includes sufficient stacking spaces, has minimal visibility from Mayfield
Road, and does not disrupt pedestrian circulation.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval.

Body

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9399, Version: 1

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



Ro
bi

ns
on

 R
d

Mayfield Rd
S Hwy 161 Sb  

S Hwy 161 Nb  

W Warrior Trl

S Hwy 161 Svc Sb Rd

Es
pl

an
ad

e  

S Hwy 161 Svc Nb Rd

Ikea Pl

Ik
ea

 W
ay

Meadows Dr

Qu
an

na
h D

r

Brian Dr

Kelley Ln

Meadow Park Ln

Ca
th

ed
er

al 
Dr

Frances Dr

Brentwood Dr

Earnest Dr

Prairie Creek Dr

Kalgary Ln

Over Ridge Dr

Forest Oaks Dr

Da
le 

Ln

Springwood Dr

Cedarbrook Cir

Gr
ee

n B
ra

nc
h D

r
West Grove Ln

Plains Ct

Fa
irf

iel
d D

r

Pr
air

ie
Cr

ee
kC

t

Su
m

m
er

fie
ld

 Ln

S Hwy 161 Svc Nb Rd

CASE LOCATION MAPCase Number SU191001
Epic East Towne Crossing Building B ´

Planning and Development
(972) 237-8257
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 1 of 2



Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 2 of 2



City Hall
317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 119-9400 Name: SU191002 - Specific Use Permit - Epic East Towne
Crossing, Phase II, Building D

Status:Type: Agenda Item Public Hearing

File created: In control:9/26/2019 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:10/7/2019

Title: SU191002 - Specific Use Permit - Epic East Towne Crossing, Phase II, Building D (City Council
District 2).  Specific Use Permit for a Restaurant with a Drive-Through in a 16,000 sq. ft. retail
building.  Epic East Towne Crossing Phase 1, Lots 7 and 8, Block A, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas
County, Texas, zoned PD-364, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, generally located east of
SH-161 and north of Mayfield Rd, and addressed as 3162 S HWY 161 and 3182 S HWY 161. The
applicant is William Winkelmann, Winkelmann & Associates and owner is Mark Davis, Epic East
Towne Crossing, L.P.
City Council Action: October 15, 2019

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Boundary Description.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Chris Hartmann

Title

SU191002 - Specific Use Permit - Epic East Towne Crossing, Phase II, Building D (City Council District 2).
Specific Use Permit for a Restaurant with a Drive-Through in a 16,000 sq. ft. retail building.  Epic East Towne
Crossing Phase 1, Lots 7 and 8, Block A, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-364, within
the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, generally located east of SH-161 and north of Mayfield Rd, and
addressed as 3162 S HWY 161 and 3182 S HWY 161. The applicant is William Winkelmann, Winkelmann &
Associates and owner is Mark Davis, Epic East Towne Crossing, L.P.
City Council Action: October 15, 2019

Presenter

Savannah Ware, AICP, Senior Planner

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

Specific Use Permit for a Restaurant with a Drive-Through in a 16,000 sq. ft. retail building. Epic East Towne
Crossing Phase 1, Lots 2 and 3, Block A, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-364, within
the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, generally located east of SH-161 and north of Mayfield Rd, and

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9400, Version: 1

the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, generally located east of SH-161 and north of Mayfield Rd, and
addressed as 1030 Mayfield Rd and 1020 Mayfield Rd.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The applicant intends to construct Epic East Towne Crossing Phase 2, which includes over 150,000 sq. ft. of
retail and restaurants. Building D will include a Restaurant with a Drive-Through. Restaurants with a Drive-
Through that are located in a Corridor Overlay District require a Specific Use Permit. The purpose of this
request is to obtain a Specific Use Permit for the Restaurant with a Drive-Through in Building D.

The Site Plan, Building Elevations, and Landscape Plan for Epic East Towne Crossing Phase 2 is under
concurrent review (Case Number S191001).

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-364 Undeveloped

South PD-364; PD-294 Undeveloped; IKEA

West PD-364 Undeveloped

East PD-364; PD-91 Undeveloped; Church; Floodway/Floodplain

HISTORY:

· July 18, 2017: City Council approved PD-364 (Case Number Z170401), a planned development for
commercial and multi-family uses.

· August 7, 2017: The Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Preliminary Plat for Epic East
Towne Crossing Phase 1 (P170804).

· September 11, 2017: The Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Final Plat for Epic East Towne
Crossing Phase 1 (Case Number P170903).

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The drive-through lane begins on the east side of the building and wraps around the north side of the building.
The proposed drive-through lane includes sufficient stacking spaces, has minimal visibility from SH-161, and
does not disrupt pedestrian circulation.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval.

Body

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



Ro
bi

ns
on

 R
d

Mayfield Rd
S Hwy 161 Sb  

S Hwy 161 Nb  

W Warrior Trl

S Hwy 161 Svc Sb Rd

Es
pl

an
ad

e  

S Hwy 161 Svc Nb Rd

Ikea Pl

Ik
ea

 W
ay

Meadows Dr

Qu
an

na
h D

r

Brian Dr

Kelley Ln

Meadow Park Ln

Ca
th

ed
er

al 
Dr

Frances Dr

Brentwood Dr

Earnest Dr

Prairie Creek Dr

Kalgary Ln

Over Ridge Dr

Forest Oaks Dr

Da
le 

Ln

Springwood Dr

Cedarbrook Cir

Gr
ee

n B
ra

nc
h D

r
West Grove Ln

Plains Ct

Fa
irf

iel
d D

r

Pr
air

ie
Cr

ee
kC

t

Su
m

m
er

fie
ld

 Ln

S Hwy 161 Svc Nb Rd

CASE LOCATION MAPCase Number SU191002
Epic East Towne Crossing Building D ´

Planning and Development
(972) 237-8257
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 1 of 2



Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 2 of 2



City Hall
317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 119-9401 Name: SU191004/S191004 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan
- WoodSpring Suites Hotel

Status:Type: Ordinance Public Hearing

File created: In control:9/26/2019 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:10/7/2019

Title: SU191004/S191004 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - WoodSpring Suites Hotel (City Council District
4).  Specific Use Permit and Site Plan for a four-story, 122-room hotel on 2.230 acres.  Tract 2B02 of
Charles D. Ball Survey, Abstract 197, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-29,
within the IH-20 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located north of IH-20, south of Sara Jane
Pkwy, and west of Bob Smith Pkwy. The agent is Juan J. Vasquez, Vasquez Engineering LLC, the
applicant: Ian McClure, Four VP GP Houston, Inc., and the owner is Sally Smith Mashburn, Bob Smith
Management Company, LTD.
City Council Action: October 15, 2019

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Boundary Description.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Building Elevations.pdf

Exhibit D - Landscape Plan.pdf

Exhibit E - Appendix F Checklist.pdf

Exhibit F - Operational Plan.pdf

Exhibit i - Hotel Height and FAR Comparison.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Chris Hartmann

Title

SU191004/S191004 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - WoodSpring Suites Hotel (City Council District 4).
Specific Use Permit and Site Plan for a four-story, 122-room hotel on 2.230 acres.  Tract 2B02 of Charles D.
Ball Survey, Abstract 197, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-29, within the IH-20
Corridor Overlay District, and generally located north of IH-20, south of Sara Jane Pkwy, and west of Bob
Smith Pkwy. The agent is Juan J. Vasquez, Vasquez Engineering LLC, the applicant: Ian McClure, Four VP GP
Houston, Inc., and the owner is Sally Smith Mashburn, Bob Smith Management Company, LTD.
City Council Action: October 15, 2019

Presenter

Savannah Ware, AICP, Senior Planner

Recommended Action

Approve

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 1 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9401, Version: 1

Analysis

SUMMARY:

Specific Use Permit and Site Plan for a four-story, 122-room hotel on 2.230 acres. Tract 2B02 of Charles D.
Ball Survey, Abstract 197, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-29, within the IH-20
Corridor Overlay District, and generally located north of IH-20, south of Sara Jane Pkwy, and west of Bob
Smith Pkwy.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The applicant intends to construct a 122-room hotel in the IH-20 Corridor. Hotels require a Specific Use
Permit when located within a Corridor Overlay District, 300 feet of residential zoning, or 900 feet of a similar
use. Any development in a Planned Development District or Corridor Overlay District requires City Council
approval of a Site Plan. Development at this location requires Specific Use Permit/Site Plan approval by City
Council because the property is zoned PD-29, within the IH-20 Corridor Overlay District, within 300 feet of
residential zoning and 900 feet of a similar use.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-353 Multi-Family Residential

South PD-250 Commercial

West PD-29 Undeveloped (Site Plan approved for Texas Roadhouse)

East PD-29 Undeveloped

HISTORY:

· February 15, 1972: City Council approved PD-29, a planned development district for retail, apartment,
office, and service uses.

· May 4, 2015: The Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Preliminary Plat for Lots 1-5, Block 1
of Smith I-20 Addition (Case Number P150501).  The preliminary plat has expired.

· April 1, 2019: The Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Preliminary Plat for Lots 1-4, Block 1
of Smith I-20 Addition (Case Number P190402).

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The site is directly accessible from Sara Jane Pkwy and IH-20. The Site Plan depicts the 4-story, 122-room
hotel, parking, and dumpster enclosure.

ZONING REQUIREMENTS:

Density and Dimensional Requirements

The subject property is zoned PD-29 with a base zoning district of General Retail (GR). Development is
subject to the standards in Article 6 of the Unified Development Code (UDC). The following table evaluates
the density and dimensional standards of the proposed development. The proposal requires two variances from
the density and dimensional requirements.

Table 2: Site Data Summary

Standard Required Provided Meets

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.)5,000 97,136 Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.)50 258.88 Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.)100 369.39 Yes

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 25 Yes

Rear Setback (Ft.) 0 0 Yes

Max. Height (Ft.) 25 48.5 No

Max. Floor Area Ratio.35:1 .50:1 No

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 2 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9401, Version: 1

Table 2: Site Data Summary

Standard Required Provided Meets

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.)5,000 97,136 Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.)50 258.88 Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.)100 369.39 Yes

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 25 Yes

Rear Setback (Ft.) 0 0 Yes

Max. Height (Ft.) 25 48.5 No

Max. Floor Area Ratio.35:1 .50:1 No

Landscape and Screening

The property is subject to landscape and screening requirements in Article 8 and Appendix F of the UDC. The
table below summarizes these requirements. The proposed Landscape Plan exceeds the landscape and
screening requirements.

Table 3: Landscape & Screening Requirements

Standard Required Provided Meets

Landscape Area (Sq. Ft.) 9,714 22,327 Yes

Trees 33 47 Yes

Shrubs 195 204 Yes

Seasonal Plantings (Container Gallons)147 165 Yes

Dumpster Enclosure Masonry Enclosure Masonry Enclosure Yes

Building Materials and Design

The exterior finish materials include stone and three colors of stucco.

Building Design Menu Items include materials mix, stone accent, color contrast, articulated public entrance,
roof profile variation, and articulation elements.

Appendix F has two windows requirements. The first is that windows account for 30% of the area of street-
facing facades. The second is that windows account for 50% of the area of all facades or 50% of the length of
all facades.  The applicant is requesting exceptions to both of the window requirements.

Table 4: Required Windows

Standard Required Provided Meets

North Facade 30% 11.7% No

South Facade 30% 11.7% No

Total Length 50% 21% No

Total Area 50% 11.8% No

Appendix F Design and Menu Items

Appendix F requires that applicants provide Menu Items from four categories: Usable Open and Pedestrian
Walkways, Site Design and Building Orientation, Building Design, and Healthy, Smart, and Sustainable
Community. The table below lists the Menu Items included in the proposal. The proposal provides 11.5 Menu
Items.

Table 5: Appendix F Menu Items

Category Amenity

Site Design & Building Orientation 100% Parking at side of building

Site Design & Building Orientation Add Parking Lot Trees

Site Design & Building Orientation 15% Permeable Surface

Building Design Materials Mix

Building Design Stone Accent

Building Design Color Contrast

Building Design Articulated Public Entrance

Building Design Roof Profile Variation

Building Design Articulation Elements

Healthy, Smart & Sustainable Community 70% Native Plants

Healthy, Smart & Sustainable Community Ride-Sharing Drop-Off

Healthy, Smart & Sustainable Community Pollinator Friendly Flowers

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 3 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9401, Version: 1

Table 5: Appendix F Menu Items

Category Amenity

Site Design & Building Orientation 100% Parking at side of building

Site Design & Building Orientation Add Parking Lot Trees

Site Design & Building Orientation 15% Permeable Surface

Building Design Materials Mix

Building Design Stone Accent

Building Design Color Contrast

Building Design Articulated Public Entrance

Building Design Roof Profile Variation

Building Design Articulation Elements

Healthy, Smart & Sustainable Community 70% Native Plants

Healthy, Smart & Sustainable Community Ride-Sharing Drop-Off

Healthy, Smart & Sustainable Community Pollinator Friendly Flowers

EXCEPTIONS OR APPEALS:

1. Maximum Allowable Height: The maximum allowable height in the General Retail District is 25 ft.
The proposed building has a height of 48.5 ft.  Staff does not object to this request:

· City Council has approved similar height exceptions in the past several years (see Exhibit i -
Hotel Height and FAR Comparison).

2. Maximum Allowable Floor-Area-Ratio (FAR): The maximum allowable FAR is .35:1. The proposal
has a FAR of .50:1.  Staff does not object to this request:

· City Council has approved similar FAR exceptions in the past several years (see Exhibit i - Hotel
Height and FAR Comparison).

3. Windows for Street-Facing Facades: Appendix F requires that windows account for 30% of the north
and south facades.  Windows account for 11.7% of the north facade and 11.7% of the south facade.

4. Windows for Building: Appendix F requires that windows account for 50% of the area of all facades or
50% of the length of all facades. Windows account for 11.8% of the area of all facades and 21% of the
length of all facades.

5. Covered Walkways: Appendix F requires covered walkways, awnings, or canopies along 30% of the
length of all facades. The proposed elevations do not include covered walkways along 30% of the
length of all facades.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee recommends approval with the following conditions:

1. The applicant shall provide additional windows or spandrel glazing on the north and south facades so
that windows and spandrel glazing account for at least 15% of each facade. The last hotel approved by
City Council included 15% windows on the north and south facades.

2. The applicant shall update the Landscape Plan so that the plant schedule reflects the required plantings
shown in the summary table and identifies native and pollinator friendly plants.

Body

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 4 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9401, Version: 1

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 5 of 5

powered by Legistar™



Being that certain 2.230 acre tract of land situated in the Charles D. Ball Survey, Abstract No. 197, and the Charles 

D. Ball Survey, Abstract No. 1699, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas and Tarrant County, Texas, and being a portion of 

the remainder of those certain tracts of land to Bob Smith Management Company, Ltd., by the deed thereof 

recorded in Volume 13017, Page 28, Deed Records, Tarrant County, Texas, and also recorded in Volume 97244, 

Page 4353, Deed Records, Dallas County, Texas, and being more particularly described as follows: 

COMMENCING at a 5/8 inch iron rod found with orange cap stamped "Spooner" for the southwest corner of the 

remainder of said Bob Smith Management Company tract, same being the southeast corner of that certain called 

2.751 acre tract of land from Bob Smith Management Company, Ltd. to Infinite Hospitality Management and 

Development, LLC, by deed recorded in Instrument No. D218281837, Official Public Records, Tarrant County, 

Texas, same being in the north line of a called 40 foot wide road formerly known as Pleasant Ridge Road (portion 

in Tarrant County) Fish Creek Road (portion in Dallas County) (collectively known as County Road 2043) now 

recognized in name only as the north line Interstate 20 (I‐20) (no dedication document found for the said 40 foot 

wide road/portion of I‐20); 

THENCE North 89 deg. 30 min. 13 sec. East, along the common line of said Bob Smith Management Company tract, 

and the north right‐of‐way line of said I‐20, a distance of 295.15 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod found with orange cap 

stamped "Spooner" for the southwest corner of the herein described tract, same being the POINT OF BEGINNING; 

THENCE North 00 deg. 00 min. 53 sec. East, through the interior of said Bob Smith Management Company tract, a 

distance of 369.39 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod found with orange cap stamped "Spooner" for the northwest corner 

of the herein described tract, same being in the south right‐of‐way line of Sara Jane Parkway (a 70 foot right‐of‐

way), by deed to the City of Grand Prairie recorded in Instrument Number D212138855, said Official Public 

Records, Tarrant County, Texas, and also recorded in Instrument Number 201200165519, Official Public Records, 

Dallas County, Texas; 

THENCE North 88 deg. 23 min. 48 sec. East, along the south right‐of‐way line of said Sara Jane Parkway, a distance 

of 262.16 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod set with red cap stamped "Peiser & Mankin Surv" (hereinafter referred to as 

1/2 inch iron rod set) for the northeast corner of the herein described tract, from which a 1/2 inch iron rod found 

for an angle point in said Sara Jane Parkway bears North 88 deg. 23 min. 48 sec. East, 9.19 feet; 

THENCE through the interior of said Bob Smith Management Company tract as follows: 

South 00 deg. 00 min. 53 sec. West, a distance of 270.88 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod set for an angle point; 

North 89 deg. 59 min. 07 sec. West, a distance of 3.18 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod set for an internal corner; 

South 00 deg. 00 min. 53 sec. West, a distance of 103.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod set for the southeast corner of 

the herein described tract, same being in the south line of said Bob Smith Management Company tract, same being 

in the north right‐of‐way line of aforesaid I‐20; 

THENCE South 89 deg. 30 min. 13 sec. West, along the common line of said Bob Smith Management Company 

tract, and the north right‐of‐way line of said I‐20, a distance of 258.88 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and 

containing 97,136 square feet or 2.230 acres of computed land, more or less. 

Metes and Bounds Description

Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 1 of 2



W Ih 20 Eb  
W Ih 20 Wb  

Sara Jane Pkwy

W Bardin Rd

M
at

th
ew

 R
d

Augusta Ln

Ri
alt

o W
ay

Sa
n R

em
o D

r

Sg
t G

re
g L

 H
un

te
r L

n

Tiber River Ln

Lin
k D

r

Stresa Ln

S Forum Dr

Ernie Ln

Vicky Ln

Bo
b S

m
ith

 Pk
wy

CASE LOCATION MAPCase Number SU191004/S191004
WoodSpring Suites ´

Planning and Development
(972) 237-8257
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 2 of 2



Exhibit B - Site Plan
Page 1 of 1







Exhibit D - Landscape Plan
Page 1 of 2



Exhibit D - Landscape Plan
Page 2 of 2



Exhibit E - Appendix F Checklist
Page 1 of 4



Exhibit E - Appendix F Checklist
Page 2 of 4



Exhibit E - Appendix F Checklist
Page 3 of 4



Exhibit E - Appendix F Checklist
Page 4 of 4



Exhibit F - Operational Plan
Page 1 of 2



Exhibit F - Operational Plan
Page 2 of 2



Table 1: Hotel Height and FAR Comparison 

Case Number Hotel Height FAR Exceptions Required Exceptions Granted 

SU170103/S170601 Staybridge 49’ 0.61 Yes Yes 

SU160903/S160903 Hilton Tru Hotel 67’ 0.71 Yes Yes 

SU160702/S160702 Hyatt Place Hotel 67’ 0.48 Yes Yes 

SU150407/S150402 Comfort Suites 50’ 0.73 No - 

SU140801/S140801 Home 2 64’ 0.73 Yes Yes 

SU170804/S170806 Courtyard by Marriott 56’ 0.52 Yes Yes 

SU181001/S181001 Avid Hotel 50’ 0.51 No - 

SU190703/S190703 Hyatt Place Hotel (IH-20) 67’ 0.52 Yes Yes 

 

Exhibit i - Hotel Height and FAR Comparison
Page 1 of 1



City Hall
317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 119-9402 Name: CPA191001- The Gibson Apartments

Status:Type: Ordinance Public Hearing

File created: In control:9/26/2019 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:10/7/2019

Title: CPA191001- Comprehensive Plan Amendment- The Gibson Apartments (City Council District 2).
Comprehensive Plan Amendment to change the Future Land Use Map from Commercial to High
Density Residential on Lot 1, Block 1 out of the Allen Jenkins Survey Abstract No. 713. Located at
2422 S Carrier Parkway, Legally described as Lot 1, Block 1, being 4.418 acres out of the Allen
Jenkins Survey, Abstract No. 713, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned GR, General
Retail.
City Council Action: October 15, 2019

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A- Location Map

Exhibit B- Land Use Map

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Chris Hartmann

Title

CPA191001- Comprehensive Plan Amendment- The Gibson Apartments (City Council District 2).
Comprehensive Plan Amendment to change the Future Land Use Map from Commercial to High Density
Residential on Lot 1, Block 1 out of the Allen Jenkins Survey Abstract No. 713. Located at 2422 S Carrier
Parkway, Legally described as Lot 1, Block 1, being 4.418 acres out of the Allen Jenkins Survey, Abstract No.
713, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned GR, General Retail.
City Council Action: October 15, 2019

Presenter

Nyliah Acosta, Planner

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

Comprehensive Plan Amendment to amend the Future Land Use Map from Commercial/Retail/Office to High
Density Residential on lot 1, Block 1, being 4.418 acres out of the Allen Jenkins Survey, Abstract No. 713,
City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned GR, General Retail, within the Highway 161 Corridor,
located at 2422 S Carrier Parkway.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9402, Version: 1

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The applicant is requesting to construct a high density multi-family development. The request is for a change
from Commercial/Retail/Office to High Density Residential on the Future Land Use Map (FLUM). The 2018
update to the Comprehensive Plan defines these categories as follows:

Commercial/Retail/Office (pg. 58 of the Comprehensive Plan):
Commercial uses are more intense than retail establishments, yet also provide goods and services for the public.
Examples of commercial establishments would include hotels, automotive services, and big box retailers. The
following are policies to guide development of commercial areas:

• They are located along major arterial, super arterial and freeway corridors.
• Outside storage associated with commercial activity should be screened from the primary

roadway on which the establishment is located
• Commercial activity should be buffered from low density residential areas through the use of

enhanced landscaping, increased rear setbacks, the use of medium density residential, and by
floodplains or other man-made features.

Retail
This land use type is intended to provide for a variety of restaurants, shops, grocery stores, and personal service
establishments. Retail uses require high visibility locations and should be located in high-traffic areas such as
along arterial roadways. The following are policies to guide retail areas:

• Retail should be located in areas with high visibility.
• Retail uses should provide services to support neighboring residential areas.
• They should serve as a buffer and transition between higher and lower intensity uses.

Office
Office areas provide for low- to medium-rise suburban-scale developments. Generally, permitted uses include
corporate, professional, medical and financial offices as well as offices for individuals and non-profit
organizations. These areas can also serve as a lower intensity transitional use to adjacent residential areas. The
following are policies to guide office areas:

• A combination of screening, increased rear setbacks, and enhanced landscaping should be used to
ensure adequate buffering from adjacent residential areas.

• Buildings adjacent to residential areas should be two stories or less.
• They provide a transitional land use between residential uses and higher intensity commercial land

uses.

High Density Residential (pg. 57 of the Comprehensive Plan):
High density residential is reflective of multi-family apartments. Depending on location, densities in high
density residential may vary significantly. Garden style apartments have densities between 12 and 20 dwelling
units per acre. Newer construction, particularly if a mixed- use configuration, have densities above 20 dwelling
units per acre. The following are policies to guide high density residential areas:

• They are appropriate along major collector or arterial roadways.
• They serve as a buffer between commercial or retail uses and lower density residential areas.

ANALYSIS:

This request is consistent with the current pattern of development in the area. The surrounding uses are
commercial and multi-family, which would be mirrored in the proposed commercial/multi-family development.
Staff believes that high-density residential development would benefit and enhance the overall underutilized
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9402, Version: 1

Staff believes that high-density residential development would benefit and enhance the overall underutilized
parcels.

The proposal is also in alignment with several goals within the Comprehensive Plan to include: promoting and
enhancing economic development, and providing a mix of housing options by allowing a mix of densities to
create housing variety that strengthens the housing market to help ensure there is housing for different income
levels, ages and lifestyles.

RECOMMENDATION:

Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval of the requested amendment to the FLUM.

Body

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



S C
ar

rie
r P

kw
y

W Pioneer Pkwy
S C

ar
rie

r P
kw

y
W Pioneer Pkwy

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number: Z191001/S191005 

The Gibson Apartments
´ Planning and Development

(972) 237-8257 www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

Exhibit A- Location Map



C/R/O

R

260 2600 Ft CPA191001 Date: 10/2/2019 Time: 2:34:30 PM

This data has been compiled by the City of Grand
 Prai rie IT/GIS department. Various official and
 unofficial  sources were used to gather this
 in formation. Every effort was made to ensure
 the accuracy of this data, however, no guarantee
 is g iven or implied as to  the accuracy of said data.

Exhibit B- Land Use Map



City Hall
317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 119-9403 Name: Z191001/S191005- Zoning Change/Site Plan- The
Gibson Apartments

Status:Type: Ordinance Public Hearing

File created: In control:9/26/2019 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:10/7/2019

Title: Z191001/S191005- Zoning Change/Site Plan- The Gibson Apartments (City Council District 2). A
request to change the zoning from GR, General Retail to a PD, Planned Development District for
Retail, Restaurant, and Apartment uses. Legally described as Lot 1 & 2, Block 1, being 5.928 acres
out of the Allen Jenkins Survey, Abstract No. 713, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas. Located
at 2422 S Carrier Parkway and 902 W Pioneer Parkway.  The agent is Jeff Linder, Bannister
Engineering, the agent/applicant is Chase Debaun, Aerofirma Corporation, the owner is Isibelle
Debaun, David Nicklas Organ Donor Awareness Foundation.
City Council Action: October 15, 2019

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A- Location Map

Exhibit B- Site Plan.pdf

Exhibit C- Apartment Elevations.pdf

Exhibit D- Retail Elevations.pdf

Exhibit E- Landscape Plan.pdf

Exhibit F- PD Exhibit

Exhibit G- Amenity List

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Chris Hartmann

Title

Z191001/S191005- Zoning Change/Site Plan- The Gibson Apartments (City Council District 2). A request to
change the zoning from GR, General Retail to a PD, Planned Development District for Retail, Restaurant, and
Apartment uses. Legally described as Lot 1 & 2, Block 1, being 5.928 acres out of the Allen Jenkins Survey,
Abstract No. 713, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas. Located at 2422 S Carrier Parkway and 902 W
Pioneer Parkway.  The agent is Jeff Linder, Bannister Engineering, the agent/applicant is Chase Debaun,
Aerofirma Corporation, the owner is Isibelle Debaun, David Nicklas Organ Donor Awareness Foundation.
City Council Action: October 15, 2019

Presenter

Nyliah Acosta, Planner

Recommended Action

Approve

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 1 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9403, Version: 1

Analysis

SUMMARY:

Planned Development request and Site Plan for Multi-Family, Retail, and Restaurant uses on 5.928 acres. The
Site Plan depicts a Multi-Family development with up to 199 units on West Pioneer Parkway and South Carrier
Parkway on 4.418 acres, and Retail/Restaurant uses on Pioneer Parkway on 1.510 acres. Legally described as
Lot 1 & 2, Block 1, being 5.928 acres out of the Allen Jenkins Survey, Abstract No. 713, City of Grand Prairie,
Dallas County, Texas, zoned “GR” General Retail within the Highway 161 Corridor, addressed as 2422 S
Carrier Parkway and 902 W Pioneer Parkway.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and

Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North GR School, Vacant Lots

South GR Shopping Strip Center

West GR Shopping Strip Center

East GR, C CVS Pharmacy, Dental Office

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of this request is to change the zoning on 5.928 acres from GR, General Retail to PD, Planned
Development District for Retail, Restaurant, and Apartment uses. The development includes one apartment
building, and a clubhouse accessible from W Pioneer Pkwy and S Carrier Pkwy. Amenities include a clubhouse,
pool, and tuck under parking. Along the W Pioneer Pkwy frontage, the applicant is proposing retail and
restaurant uses. The lot reasonably accommodates multi-family and commercial uses, and staff has found no
indication of adverse impacts on neighboring lands in relation to the zone change, or adverse effects on the
public health, safety, or welfare. Approving the change to a Planned Development will allow the owner to
develop the underutilized parcels. In addition, high density residential uses are ideal along major arterials, and
act as a buffer between less intense residential uses. The most recent apartment complexes were constructed in
2004, Oak Timbers and Mountain Creek, however both are senior living. The proposed apartments will be the
first built in the area within the last 33 years. The development will aid in closing the gap of housing options
being provided.

CONFORMANCE WITH COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:

The Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designates the subject property as Commercial/Retail/Office. Multi-family
uses are not consistent with the current FLUM designation. The applicant is requesting a plan amendment
(CPA191001) to change the FLUM to High Density Residential. The proposed FLUM change will mirror the
pattern of development across Carrier, and will be consistent.

The proposal is in alignment with goals, policies, and objectives of the 2018 Comprehensive Plan, including:

· Achieve a broad housing selection for a diverse population;

· Provide housing options that serve the needs of the population throughout the stages of their lives;

· A mix of residential densities offers the City opportunities to attract and retain businesses as well as
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 2 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9403, Version: 1

· A mix of residential densities offers the City opportunities to attract and retain businesses as well as
generate higher ad valorem tax revenues than through low density residential alone; and

· Locate higher density residential uses along roadways designated as minor arterials, principle arterials
or limited access thoroughfares.

· On May 7, 2019, City Council adopted a policy position on development stating that multi-family
projects should be built on properties already zoned for multi-family development. While this property
is currently zoned and developed for commercial uses, the current buildings are over 50 years old and
contain significant amounts of asbestos. The lot itself is irregularly-shaped, relatively small, and has
poor visibility from Carrier Pkwy. With the new retail buildings the applicant is proposing along
Pioneer, staff believes this redevelopment project maximizes the visibility of the property while
increasing its utility with the proposed multi-family in the rear of the property. This would be the first
signifcant residential construction in the area since 2004.

ZONING REQUIREMENTS

The existing base zoning is GR, General Retail. The proposed base zoning for the 5.928 acres is “MF-3” Multi-
Family Three Residential District and "GR" General Retail District. All zoning will defer to the Unified
Development Code (UDC) as amended.

Dimensional Requirements

The following outlines the minimum dimensional requirements of the “MF-3” and “GR” districts and provides
an analysis of the proposed compliance with the district.

Table 2: Site Data Summary MF-3 Dimensional Requirements

Standard Appendix W Provided

Max. Density (Units Per Acre) 26 47

Min. Living Area Studio (Sq.

Ft.)

- 554*

Minimum Living Area (Sq. Ft.)600 727

Max. Single-Bed Units (%) 60 67

Min. Area (Sq. Ft.) 12,000 192,452

Min. Width (Ft.) 100 100

Min. Depth (Ft.) 120 150

Min. Front Setback (Ft.) 30 30

Min. Rear Setback (Ft.) 45+ 60

Min. Side Setback (Ft.) 45+ 10*

Min. Side Setback Street (Ft.) 30 30

Max. Height (Ft.) 60 75*

*Denotes that a variance is required.

Table 3: GR Dimensional Requirements

Standard Required Provided

Min. Area (Sq. Ft.)5,000 20,000

Min. Width (Ft.) 50 100

Min. Depth (Ft.) 100 150

Min. Front Setback (Ft.)25 25

Min. Rear Setback (Ft.)0 0

Min. Side Setback (Ft.)15 15

Max. Height (Ft.) 25 50*

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 3 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9403, Version: 1

Table 3: GR Dimensional Requirements

Standard Required Provided

Min. Area (Sq. Ft.)5,000 20,000

Min. Width (Ft.) 50 100

Min. Depth (Ft.) 100 150

Min. Front Setback (Ft.)25 25

Min. Rear Setback (Ft.)0 0

Min. Side Setback (Ft.)15 15

Max. Height (Ft.) 25 50*

*Denotes that a variance is required.

Parking

The table below evaluates the parking requirements. The proposal does not meet the required total parking
spaces, or garage parking spaces

Table 4: Parking

Tract 1 (Multi-Family)

Standard Required Provided Meets

Studios N/A 13 N/A

1.25 Parking Spaces/One-Bedroom167 166 No

2 Parking Spaces/Two-Bedroom112 93 No

Garage Spaces (% of Total)30 0* No

Carports (% of Total)20 35 Yes

Total Parking Spaces279 272 No

Tract 2 (General Retail)

Standard Required Provided Meets

Retail /1 Space Per 275 Square Feet45 54 Yes

Restaurant/ 1 Space Per 100 SF*- * No

* Square Feet of Designated Dining and Waiting Areas, Including Outdoor Dining Areas

SITE LAYOUT:

The site has frontage along W. Pioneer Pkwy and S. Carrier Pkwy; The Site Plan depicts two access points on
W. Pioneer Pkwy to access the retail and restaurants fronting W. Pioneer Pkwy, and the multi-family
development is directly behind the retail/restaurants, also accessible from Pioneer Pkwy or Carrier Pkwy.

Landscape and Screening

The property is subject to landscape and screening requirements in Article 8 of the UDC. The table below
summarizes these requirements.

Table 5: Landscape & Screening Requirements

Tract 1 (Multi-Family)

Standard Required Provided

Landscape Area (Sq. Ft.)28,868 45,320

Trees 58 58

Shrubs 578 577

Dumpster Enclosure Masonry Enclosure Masonry Enclosure

 Tract 2 (GR)

Landscape Area (Sq. Ft.)6,578 6,779

Trees 3 16

Shrubs 132 136

Dumpster Enclosure Masonry Enclosure Masonry Enclosure

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 4 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9403, Version: 1

Table 5: Landscape & Screening Requirements

Tract 1 (Multi-Family)

Standard Required Provided

Landscape Area (Sq. Ft.)28,868 45,320

Trees 58 58

Shrubs 578 577

Dumpster Enclosure Masonry Enclosure Masonry Enclosure

 Tract 2 (GR)

Landscape Area (Sq. Ft.)6,578 6,779

Trees 3 16

Shrubs 132 136

Dumpster Enclosure Masonry Enclosure Masonry Enclosure

Exterior Building Materials

The exterior building materials include five earth tone stuccos, one accent stucco, and cultured stone. It should
be noted, that the applicant is using 100% stucco on all facades for the multi-family component of the request,
which is the preferred material, and is meeting the intention of Appendix W's building design. Because of this,
the applicant is allowed to increase the number of single bedroom units by 10%.

EXCEPTIONS OR APPEALS:

The applicant is requesting the following variances:
1.  Minimum Living Area
2. Minimum 45+ Side Interior Setback for Building A
3. Minimum 30% Garage Parking
4. Maximum 60 ft Height for MF-3
5. Maximum 25 ft Height for GR
6. Minimum Parking requirement for MF-3
7. Minimum Parking Requirement for GR
8. Pole Sign Relocation

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval of the proposed zone change from GR,
General Retail to PD, Planned Development District.

Body

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 5 of 5

powered by Legistar™



S C
ar

rie
r P

kw
y

W Pioneer Pkwy
S C

ar
rie

r P
kw

y
W Pioneer Pkwy

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number: Z191001/S191005 

The Gibson Apartments
´ Planning and Development

(972) 237-8257 www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

Exhibit A- Location Map



Ex. 18" SD

Ex. 18" SD
Ex. 18" SD

Ex. 18" SD
Ex. 18" SD

Ex. 18" SD
Ex. 18" SD

Ex. 18" SD Ex. 36" SD Ex. 36" SD Ex. 42" SD Ex. 42" SD

D
Ex. 48" SD

Ex. 48" SD
Ex. 48" SD

Ex. 48" SD
Ex. 48" SD

Ex. 48" SD
Ex. 48" SD

Ex. 48" SD
Ex. 42" SD

Ex. 42" SD
Ex. 42" SD

Ex. 42" SD
Ex. 42" SD

Ex. 42" SD
Ex. 42" SD

Ex. 42" SD
Ex. 42" SD

Ex. 42" SD
Ex. 42" SD

Ex. 42" SD
Ex. 42" SD

Ex. 42" SD
Ex. 42" SD

Ex. 42" SD
Ex. 42" SD

Ex. 24" SD

EXH
-A

SITE PLAN

LOT 1 & 2 - BLOCK 1
 Being 5.928 acres out of the

 ALLEN JENKINS SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 713
in the City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas

October 4, 2019
258,238 SF

ENGINEER
BANNISTER ENGINEERING L.L.C.

240 N. M
ITCHELL ROAD

M
ANSFIELD, TEXAS 76063

(817)
842-2094

SH
EET N

U
M

BER

B A N N I S T E R 
240 North Mitchell Road Mansfield, TX 76063 817.842.2094 817.842.2095 fax
REGISTRATION # F-10599 (TEXAS)

303 REDEVELOPMENT
902 WEST PIONEER PARKWAY

GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS E N G I N E E R I N G

C
ASE N

U
M

BER
 Z191001 / S191005

OW
NER / DEVELOPER: 

DAVID NICKLAS ORGAN
DONOR AW

ARENESS
FOUNDATION, INC.

2935 SOUTH BELTLINE ROAD
GRAND PRAIRIE, TX 75225
CONTACT: C

h
a

se
 D

e
B

a
u

n
P

H
O

N
E

: 9
7

2
- 2

6
3

-6
7

9
6

c
h

a
se

@
a

e
ro

firm
a

o
ffic

e
.c

o
m

VICIN
ITY M

AP
N

O
T TO

 SCALE

G
R

AN
D

 PR
AIR

IE, TEXAS

SITE D
ATA TABLE

Exhibit B- Site Plan



H
C
 1

 B
D

R
M

H
C
-S

T
UD

IO

H
C
 2

 B
D

R
M

1
1/

8
"=

1'
0

"

P
A
R

T
IA

L
 S

O
UT

H
 E

L
E
V

A
T
IO

N

N
.T

.S
.

K
E
Y
 P

L
A
N

2
1/

8
"=

1'
0

"

S
O

UT
H
E
A
S
T
 E

L
E
V

A
T
IO

N

3
1/

8
"=

1'
0

"

P
A
R

T
IA

L
 S

O
UT

H
 E

L
E
V

A
T
IO

N

3
1/

8
"=

1'
0

"

P
A
R

T
IA

L
 S

O
UT

H
 E

L
E
V

A
T
IO

N

4
1/

8
"=

1'
0

"

P
A
R

T
IA

L
 E

A
S
T
 E

L
E
V

A
T
IO

N
4

1/
8
"=

1'
0

"

P
A
R

T
IA

L
 E

A
S
T
 E

L
E
V

A
T
IO

N

Exhibit C- Elevations



H
C
 1

 B
D

R
M

H
C
-S

T
UD

IO

H
C
 2

 B
D

R
M

N
.T

.S
.

K
E
Y
 P

L
A
N

2
1/

8
"=

1'
0

"

P
A
R

T
IA

L
 N

O
R

T
H
 E

L
E
V

A
T
IO

N

3
1/

8
"=

1'
0

"

W
E
S
T
 E

L
E
V

A
T
IO

N

1
1/

8
"=

1'
0

"

P
A
R

T
IA

L
 N

O
R

T
H
 E

L
E
V

A
T
IO

N

Exhibit C- Elevations



H
C
 1

 B
D

R
M

H
C
-S

T
UD

IO

H
C
 2

 B
D

R
M

N
.T

.S
.

K
E
Y
 P

L
A
N

1/
8
" 
= 

1'
-0

"
1/

8
" 
= 

1'
-0

"
1/

8
" 
= 

1'
-0

"

1/
8
" 
= 

1'
-0

"

1/
8
" 
= 

1'
-0

"

Exhibit C- Elevations



Exhibit C- Elevations



B
R

IC
K
 C

A
L
C
UL

A
T
IO

N

Al
l m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 s
ha

ll 
be

 fr
om

 fo
un

da
tio

n 
to

 to
p 

pl
at

es
 a

t g
ab

le
s.

Al
l m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 s
ha

ll 
be

 fr
om

 fo
un

da
tio

n 
to

 b
ric

k 
fri

ez
e 

at
 h

ip
s.

N
O

R
TH

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
SO

U
TH

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
EA

ST
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

W
ES

T
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

TOTAL MASONRY PERCENTAGE

1.
 G

ro
ss

 A
re

a
2
4
8
9

2
4
8
9

2
10

0
2
10

0
2.

 G
ro

ss
 A

re
a 

of
 M

as
on

ry
97

6
97

6
97

6
97

6
3.

 A
re

a 
of

 M
as

on
ry

O
pe

ni
ng

s
4
0

0
4
0

0
4
0

0
4
0

0

4.
 N

et
 M

as
on

ry
 A

re
a

5
76

5
76

5
76

5
76

5.
 G

ro
ss

 A
re

a 
of

 S
tu

cc
o

15
13

15
13

11
2
4

11
2
4

6.
 A

re
a 

of
 S

tu
cc

o 
O

pe
ni

ng
s

70
4
75

2
75

2
75

7.
 N

et
 S

tu
cc

o 
Ar

ea
14

4
3

10
3
8

8
4
9

8
4
9

8.
 T

ot
al

 N
et

 A
re

a
2
0

19
16

14
14

2
5

14
2
5

9.
 M

as
on

ry
 %

2
9%

3
6
%

4
0

%
4
0

%
3
6
%

B
R

IC
K
 C

A
L
C
UL

A
T
IO

N

Al
l m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 s
ha

ll 
be

 fr
om

 fo
un

da
tio

n 
to

 to
p 

pl
at

es
 a

t g
ab

le
s.

Al
l m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 s
ha

ll 
be

 fr
om

 fo
un

da
tio

n 
to

 b
ric

k 
fri

ez
e 

at
 h

ip
s.

N
O

R
TH

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
SO

U
TH

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
EA

ST
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

W
ES

T
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

TOTAL MASONRY PERCENTAGE

1.
 G

ro
ss

 A
re

a
2
4
8
9

2
4
8
9

2
10

0
2
10

0
2.

 G
ro

ss
 A

re
a 

of
 M

as
on

ry
97

6
97

6
97

6
97

6
3.

 A
re

a 
of

 M
as

on
ry

O
pe

ni
ng

s
4
0

0
4
0

0
4
0

0
4
0

0

4.
 N

et
 M

as
on

ry
 A

re
a

5
76

5
76

5
76

5
76

5.
 G

ro
ss

 A
re

a 
of

 S
tu

cc
o

15
13

15
13

11
2
4

11
2
4

6.
 A

re
a 

of
 S

tu
cc

o 
O

pe
ni

ng
s

70
4
75

2
75

2
75

7.
 N

et
 S

tu
cc

o 
Ar

ea
14

4
3

10
3
8

8
4
9

8
4
9

8.
 T

ot
al

 N
et

 A
re

a
2
0

19
16

14
14

2
5

14
2
5

9.
 M

as
on

ry
 %

2
9%

3
6
%

4
0

%
4
0

%
3
6
%

B
R

IC
K
 C

A
L
C
UL

A
T
IO

N

Al
l m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 s
ha

ll 
be

 fr
om

 fo
un

da
tio

n 
to

 to
p 

pl
at

es
 a

t g
ab

le
s.

Al
l m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 s
ha

ll 
be

 fr
om

 fo
un

da
tio

n 
to

 b
ric

k 
fri

ez
e 

at
 h

ip
s.

N
O

R
TH

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
SO

U
TH

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
EA

ST
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

W
ES

T
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

TOTAL MASONRY PERCENTAGE

1.
 G

ro
ss

 A
re

a
2
4
8
9

2
4
8
9

2
10

0
2
10

0
2.

 G
ro

ss
 A

re
a 

of
 M

as
on

ry
97

6
97

6
97

6
97

6
3.

 A
re

a 
of

 M
as

on
ry

O
pe

ni
ng

s
4
0

0
4
0

0
4
0

0
4
0

0

4.
 N

et
 M

as
on

ry
 A

re
a

5
76

5
76

5
76

5
76

5.
 G

ro
ss

 A
re

a 
of

 S
tu

cc
o

15
13

15
13

11
2
4

11
2
4

6.
 A

re
a 

of
 S

tu
cc

o 
O

pe
ni

ng
s

70
4
75

2
75

2
75

7.
 N

et
 S

tu
cc

o 
Ar

ea
14

4
3

10
3
8

8
4
9

8
4
9

8.
 T

ot
al

 N
et

 A
re

a
2
0

19
16

14
14

2
5

14
2
5

9.
 M

as
on

ry
 %

2
9%

3
6
%

4
0

%
4
0

%
3
6
%

B
R

IC
K
 C

A
L
C
UL

A
T
IO

N

Al
l m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 s
ha

ll 
be

 fr
om

 fo
un

da
tio

n 
to

 to
p 

pl
at

es
 a

t g
ab

le
s.

Al
l m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 s
ha

ll 
be

 fr
om

 fo
un

da
tio

n 
to

 b
ric

k 
fri

ez
e 

at
 h

ip
s.

N
O

R
TH

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
SO

U
TH

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
EA

ST
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

W
ES

T
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

TOTAL MASONRY PERCENTAGE

1.
 G

ro
ss

 A
re

a
2
4
8
9

2
4
8
9

2
10

0
2
10

0
2.

 G
ro

ss
 A

re
a 

of
 M

as
on

ry
97

6
97

6
97

6
97

6
3.

 A
re

a 
of

 M
as

on
ry

O
pe

ni
ng

s
4
0

0
4
0

0
4
0

0
4
0

0

4.
 N

et
 M

as
on

ry
 A

re
a

5
76

5
76

5
76

5
76

5.
 G

ro
ss

 A
re

a 
of

 S
tu

cc
o

15
13

15
13

11
2
4

11
2
4

6.
 A

re
a 

of
 S

tu
cc

o 
O

pe
ni

ng
s

70
4
75

2
75

2
75

7.
 N

et
 S

tu
cc

o 
Ar

ea
14

4
3

10
3
8

8
4
9

8
4
9

8.
 T

ot
al

 N
et

 A
re

a
2
0

19
16

14
14

2
5

14
2
5

9.
 M

as
on

ry
 %

2
9%

3
6
%

4
0

%
4
0

%
3
6
%

1/
8
"=

1'
0

"

N
O

R
T
H
 E

L
E
V

A
T
IO

N

1/
8
"=

1'
0

"

W
E
S
T
 E

L
E
V

A
T
IO

N

1
1/

8
"=

1'
0

"

S
O

UT
H
 E

L
E
V

A
T
IO

N

1/
8
"=

1'
0

"

E
A
S
T
 E

L
E
V

A
T
IO

N

Exhibit D- Retail Elevations



(V
AR

IA
BL

E 
R

.O
.W

.)
W

. P
IO

N
EE

R
 P

AR
KW

AY
 (S

.H
. 3

03
)

R
ET

AI
L

R
ET

AI
L

AL
LE

N JE
NKIN

S S
URV

EY

AB
ST

RA
CT

 NUMBE
R 7

13

Ex
.8

"W
L

Ex
.8

"W
L

Ex
.8

"W
L

Ex
.8

"W
L

Ex
.8

"W
L

Ex
.8

"W
L

Ex
.8

"W
L

Ex
.8

"W
L

Ex
.8

"W
L

Ex
.8

"W
L

Ex
.8

"W
L

Ex.8"WL

EA
GL

E 
AD

VA
NT

AG
E 

AD
DI

TI
ON

IN
ST

RU
M

EN
T 

NU
M

BE
R 

20
11

00
08

56
40

O.
P.

R.
D.

C.
T.

15
' U

TI
LI

TY
 E

AS
EM

EN
T

IN
ST

RU
M

EN
T 

NU
M

BE
R 

20
11

00
08

56
40

O.
P.

R.
D.

C.
T.

15
' U

TI
LI

TY
 E

AS
EM

EN
T

IN
ST

RU
M

EN
T 

NU
M

BE
R 

20
11

00
08

56
40

O.
P.

R.
D.

C.
T.

M
AH

ER
 N

. G
UI

RG
UI

S 
AN

D/
OR

 J
AN

ET
 I.

GU
IR

GU
IS

, A
S 

TR
US

TE
ES

 O
F 

TH
E 

M
AH

ER
 N

.
GU

IR
GU

IS
 A

ND
 J

AN
ET

 I.
 G

UI
RG

UI
S

RE
VO

CA
BL

E 
LI

VI
NG

 T
RU

ST
 D

AT
ED

 6
TH

 D
AY

OF
 M

AR
CH

, 1
99

8
AN

D
PE

TE
R 

GU
IR

GU
IS

IN
ST

RU
M

EN
T 

NU
M

BE
R 

20
17

00
03

21
49

O.
P.

R.
D.

C.
T.

LO
T 

1R
, B

LO
CK

 1
AF

CO
 A

DD
IT

IO
N

VO
LU

M
E 

99
15

5,
 P

AG
E 

19
O.

P.
R.

D.
C.

T.

25
' B

UI
LD

IN
G 

LI
NE

VO
LU

M
E 

99
15

5,
 P

AG
E 

19
O.

P.
R.

D.
C.

T.

25' BUILDING LINE
VOLUME 99155, PAGE 19

O.P.R.D.C.T.

20
' U

TI
LI

TY
 E

AS
EM

EN
T

VO
LU

M
E 

99
15

5,
 P

AG
E 

19
O.

P.
R.

D.
C.

T.
15

' U
TI

LI
TY

 E
AS

EM
EN

T
VO

LU
M

E 
78

22
0,

 P
AG

E 
10

53
O.

P.
R.

D.
C.

T.

15
' E

AS
EM

EN
T

VO
LU

M
E 

77
06

4,
 P

AG
E 

54
8

O.
P.

R.
D.

C.
T.

UT
IL

IT
Y 

EA
SE

M
EN

T
VO

LU
M

E 
99

15
5,

 P
AG

E 
19

O.
P.

R.
D.

C.
T.

PI
ON

EE
R 

PA
RK

W
AY

AL
SO

 K
NO

W
N 

AS
 S

TA
TE

 H
IG

HW
AY

 3
03

13
0'

 R
IG

HT
-O

F-
W

AY
VO

LU
M

E 
55

84
, P

AG
E 

48
3,

 D
.R

.D
.C

.T
.

Ex
.1

2"
W

L
Ex

.1
2"

W
L

Ex
.1

2"
W

L
Ex

.1
2"

W
L

Ex
.1

2"
W

L
Ex

.1
2"

W
L

Ex
.1

2"
W

L
Ex

.1
2"

W
L

Ex
.1

2"
W

L
Ex

.1
2"

W
L

Ex
.1

2"
W

L
Ex

.1
2"

W
L

Ex
.1

2"
W

L
Ex

.1
2"

W
L

Ex
.1

2"
W

L
Ex

.1
2"

W
L

Ex
. 1

8"
 S

D

Ex
. 1

8"
 S

D
Ex

. 1
8"

 S
D

Ex
. 1

8"
 S

D
Ex

. 1
8"

 S
D

Ex
. 1

8"
 S

D
Ex

. 1
8"

 S
D

Ex
. 1

8"
 S

D

Ex. 18" SDEx. 18" SDEx. 36" SDEx. 36" SDEx. 36" SDEx. 42" SDEx. 42" SD

Ex
.8

"W
L

Ex
.8

"W
L

Ex
.8

"W
L

Ex
.8

"W
L

Ex
.8

"W
L

Ex
.8

"W
L

Ex
.1

2"
W

L

Ex
. 4

8"
 S

D
Ex

. 4
8"

 S
D

Ex
. 4

8"
 S

D
Ex

. 4
8"

 S
D

Ex
. 4

8"
 S

D
Ex

. 4
8"

 S
D

Ex
. 4

2"
 S

D
Ex

. 4
2"

 S
D

Ex
. 4

2"
 S

D
Ex

. 4
2"

 S
D

Ex
. 4

2"
 S

D
Ex

. 4
2"

 S
D

Ex
. 4

2"
 S

D
Ex

. 4
2"

 S
D

Ex
. 4

2"
 S

D
Ex

. 4
2"

 S
D

Ex
. 4

2"
 S

D
Ex

. 4
2"

 S
D

Ex
. 4

2"
 S

D
Ex

. 4
2"

 S
D

Ex
. 4

2"
 S

D
Ex

. 4
2"

 S
D

Ex
. 4

2"
 S

D
Ex

. 4
2"

 S
D

Ex
. 4

2"
 S

D
Ex

. 4
2"

 S
D

Ex
. 4

2"
 S

D

Ex. 2
4" SD

10
' L

ON
E 

ST
AR

 G
AS

CO
M

PA
NY

 E
AS

EM
EN

T
VO

LU
M

E 
92

7,
 P

AG
E 

79
5

D.
R.

D.
C.

T.

TEXA
S P

OWER & LIG
HT COMPANY E

ASEM
EN

T

VOLUME 3
131

, PA
GE 3

36,
 D.R.D.C.T.

(BLANKET EA
SEM

EN
T)

100
' BUILD

ING REST
RICTION LIM

ITS

SUPPL
EM

EN
TAL E

ASEM
EN

T

DATED
 19

63

VOLUME 1
31,

 PA
GE 1

435
, D

.R.D.C.T.

(EQ
UIPM

EN
T IN

STALLA
TION)

25
' R

EC
IP

RO
CA

L 
EA

SE
M

EN
T

VO
LU

M
E 

99
17

3,
 P

AG
E 

70
03

O.
P.

R.
D.

C.
T.

AS
SU

M
PT

IO
N 

OF
 E

AS
EM

EN
T 

AG
RE

EM
EN

T
VO

LU
M

E 
99

17
3,

 P
AG

E 
70

45
O.

P.
R.

D.
C.

T.

30
' R

EC
IP

RO
CA

L 
EA

SE
M

EN
T

VO
LU

M
E 

99
17

3,
 P

AG
E 

70
03

O.
P.

R.
D.

C.
T.

AS
SU

M
PT

IO
N 

OF
 E

AS
EM

EN
T 

AG
RE

EM
EN

T
VO

LU
M

E 
99

17
3,

 P
AG

E 
70

45
O.

P.
R.

D.
C.

T.

20
' S

AN
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 E

AS
EM

EN
T

VO
LU

M
E 

99
17

3,
 P

AG
E 

70
03

O.
P.

R.
D.

C.
T.

AS
SU

M
PT

IO
N 

OF
 E

AS
EM

EN
T 

AG
RE

EM
EN

T
VO

LU
M

E 
99

17
3,

 P
AG

E 
70

45
O.

P.
R.

D.
C.

T.
DR

AI
NA

GE
 A

ND
 U

TI
LI

TY
 E

AS
EM

EN
T

VO
LU

M
E 

99
12

7,
 P

AG
E 

21
96

O.
P.

R.
D.

C.
T.

15
' P

ER
M

AN
EN

T 
EA

SE
M

EN
T

VO
LU

M
E 

78
22

0,
 P

AG
E 

10
53

O.
P.

R.
D.

C.
T.

25
' B

UI
LD

IN
G 

LI
NE

15
' S

OU
TH

W
ES

TE
RN

 B
EL

L
TE

LE
PH

ON
E 

EA
SE

M
EN

T
VO

LU
M

E 
77

17
5,

 P
AG

E 
82

9
O.

P.
R.

D.
C.

T.

10
' T

EA
S 

EL
EC

TR
IC

 S
ER

VI
CE

CO
M

PA
NY

 E
AS

EM
EN

T
VO

LU
M

E 
77

19
2,

 P
AG

E 
26

33
O.

P.
R.

D.
C.

T.

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

CARRIER PARKWAY
FORMERLY KNOWN AS BELT LINE ROAD

100' RIGHT-OF-WAY
VOLUME780PAGE220DRDCT

JU
LI

AH
 G

AR
CI

A 
CA

RR
ER

A 
(7

5%
 IN

TE
RE

ST
)

M
AX

IM
IN

O 
GA

RC
IA

 (2
5%

 IN
TE

RE
ST

)
VO

LU
M

E 
89

03
9,

 P
AG

E 
24

47
O.

P.
R.

D.
C.

T.

LO
T 

1
4.

41
8 

AC
RE

S 
OR

19
2,

45
2 

SQ
UA

RE
 F

EE
T

LO
T 

2
1.

51
0 

AC
RE

S 
OR

65
,7

86
 S

QU
AR

E 
FE

ET

BL
OC

K 
1

PL
AT

 N
AM

E

ZO
NE

D:
 G

EN
ER

AL
 R

ET
AI

L 
DI

ST
RI

CT
ZO

NE
D:

 G
EN

ER
AL

 R
ET

AI
L 

DI
ST

RI
CT

ZO
NE

D:
 G

EN
ER

AL
 R

ET
AI

L 
DI

ST
RI

CT

ZO
NE

D:
 G

EN
ER

AL
 R

ET
AI

L 
DI

ST
RI

CT

ZO
NE

D:
 C

OM
M

ER
CI

AL

T

10
' L

ON
E 

ST
AR

 G
AS

CO
M

PA
NY

 E
AS

EM
EN

T
VO

LU
M

E 
92

7,
 P

AG
E 

79
5

D.
R.

D.
C.

T.

B
 A

 N
N

I S
 T

 E
 R

 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I

N
G

24
0 

N.
 M

itc
he

ll 
Ro

ad
M

an
sf

ie
ld

, T
X 

76
06

3
81

7.
84

2.
20

94
81

7.
84

2.
20

95
 fa

x
RE

GI
ST

RA
TI

ON
 #

 F
-1

05
99

 (T
EX

AS
)

E 
R

 

C
O

N
C

EP
T 

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

PL
AN

fo
r

M
U

LT
I-F

AM
IL

Y 
AN

D
 C

O
M

M
ER

C
IA

L
R

ED
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T
5.

9 
AC

R
ES

 - 
ZO

N
ED

 'G
R

'
G

R
AN

D
 P

R
AI

R
IE

, T
EX

AS
10

-0
4-

20
19

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
TA

BU
LA

TI
ON

S:

C
AS

E 
N

U
M

BE
R

: Z
19

10
01

 / 
S1

91
00

5

Exhibit E- Landscape Plan



1 of 2 

EXHIBIT F

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO._____ 

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

Tract 1 – Multi-Family Residential District 

Development shall take place in accordance with the use and development standards established for the 

“MF-3” Multi-Family Residential zoning district in the Grand Prairie Unified Development Code (UDC) 

except as otherwise listed below.  Site Plan approval will be required for all development within the 

proposed planned development district.   

1. The multi-family district shall not exceed 4.418 acres.

2. Multi-family development shall comply with the Multi-Family Three (MF-3) district provisions

contained in the UDC, as amended with the exception of the following:

a. Maximum Density:

i. Forty-six and two tenths (46.2) dwelling units per acre.

ii. The density calculation shall be based on net acreage, in accordance with UDC,

as amended.

iii. Maximum Height:

1. 75 feet or five stories

iv. Minimum Building Setbacks:

1. The minimum front yard setback shall be 10 feet.

2. The minimum rear yard setback shall be 10 feet.

3. The minimum interior side yard setback shall be 20 feet.

4. The minimum street side yard setback shall be 10 feet.

b. Building Materials:

1. All building facades shall be 100% stucco.

c. Required Parking Ratio:

1. Studio Unit: 1.25 spaces/unit

2. One Bedroom Unit: 1.25 spaces/unit

3. Two Bedroom Unit: 1.64 spaces/unit

d. Maximum Parking Spaces Between Landscape Islands:  Twenty-one

e. Covered Parking:

1. A minimum of 40% of the required parking shall be covered parking.

2. Access from a covered parking spot into the building’s hall corridor may

be provided in lieu of direct access to individual dwelling units.

3. Tier III, Category 1 Elements to be Utilized:

a. LED Lighting

b. Additional Insulation

c. Native Landscaping

d. Outdoor Recreation Spaces

e. Dog Park



2 of 2 

 

Tract 2 – General Retail District 

 

Tract 2 is intended to provide a high level of service to the residents of Tract 1 as well as the general public. 

It is anticipated that a significant portion of the clientele will walk from the multi-family development to 

shop and eat.  For this reason, the overall parking requirement for this tract has been reduced.  Otherwise, 

development shall take place in accordance with the use and development standards established for the 

“GR” General Retail zoning district in the Grand Prairie Unified Development Code (UDC) except as 

otherwise listed below.  Site Plan approval will be required for all development within the proposed planned 

development district.   

 

1. Use Restrictions:  Uses permitted in the “GR” General Retail zoning district 

2. Minimum Lot Size:  20,000 square feet 

3. Minimum Lot Width/Depth: 100’x150’ 

4. Maximum Height: 50’ 

5. Minimum Landscaping: 10% of the lot 

6. Required Parking: 

a. 1.0 space/225 square feet 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



The Gibson Amenity List 
 
 
 

Below is a list of unit amenities: 
• Granite countertops 
• Smart energy efficient thermostats 
• Smart door locks 
• USB outlets 
• Walk in showers 
• Full tile backsplash in kitchens 
• All wood construction cabinets 
• Stainless steel appliances 
• Wood look vinyl flooring 
• LED lights 
• High efficiency windows 
• Washer & dryers provided 
• Energy star rated appliances 

 
 
Below is a list of the complex amenities: 

• Tuck under parking 
• Covered parking 
• State of the art fitness room 
• Mail and parcel room 
• Access controlled public areas 
• Community WiFi 
• Gathering area with pool table, computer station, beverage center and sitting area 
• Modern leasing office 
• Amenity space with warming drawer, microwave and refrigerator 
• Interior courtyard with luxurious pool, covered BBQ area, & yard games 
• Dog park 
• Roof top patio with fire pit, pergola, sitting area and outdoor TV’s 

Exhibit G- Amenity List



City Hall
317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 119-9404 Name: CPA191002 - Comprehensive Plan Amendment -
3025 W IH-20

Status:Type: Agenda Item Public Hearing

File created: In control:9/26/2019 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:10/7/2019

Title: CPA191002 - Comprehensive Plan Amendment (City Council District 4). Comprehensive Plan
Amendment to change the Future Land Use Map designation from Commercial to Mixed Use for 21.8
acres. Sheffield Village Phase IV, Block 3, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-
140, within the IH-20 Corridor Overlay District and the SH-360 Corridor Overlay District, and
addressed as 3025 W IH-20.
City Council Action: October 15, 2019

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Boundary Description.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Chris Hartmann

Title

CPA191002 - Comprehensive Plan Amendment (City Council District 4). Comprehensive Plan Amendment to
change the Future Land Use Map designation from Commercial to Mixed Use for 21.8 acres. Sheffield Village
Phase IV, Block 3, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-140, within the IH-20 Corridor
Overlay District and the SH-360 Corridor Overlay District, and addressed as 3025 W IH-20.
City Council Action: October 15, 2019

Presenter

Savannah Ware, AICP, Senior Planner

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

Comprehensive Plan Amendment to change the Future Land Use Map designation from Commercial to Mixed
Use for 21.8 acres. Sheffield Village Phase IV, Block 3, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned
PD-140, within the IH-20 Corridor Overlay District and the SH-360 Corridor Overlay District, and addressed
as 3025 W IH-20.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9404, Version: 1

The purpose of the request is to amend the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) from Commercial to Med-Density
Residential on 18.92 acres so that the FLUM is consistent with a development proposed at this location.

ANALYSIS:

Mixed-use areas are intended to provide flexibility in order to encourage innovative, unique, and sustainable
developments. Areas designated for Mixed Use include a mixture of non-residential and residential uses and
require a well thought-out, master planned approach. Additionally, these developments should be designed
around the pedestrian, with walkable connections to shopping and dining as key components.

The proposal is consistent with goals, policies, and objectives in the 2010 and 2018 Comprehensive Plans,
including:

· Encourage development that will reduce urban sprawl;

· Encourage land use patterns that reflect a mix of integrated community uses;

· Locate higher density residential uses along roadways designated as minor arterials, principle arterials
or limited access thoroughfares.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval.

Body

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



W Ih 20 Eb  

S H
wy

 36
0 S

b  

W Ih 20 Wb  

W Bardin Rd

S H
wy

 36
0 N

b  

Outlet Pkwy

En
di

co
tt 

Dr

Fenwick St

Earle Dr

Mag
na

 Ca
rta

 Bl
vd

Linden Ln

North Hampton Dr

W
als

h L
n

La
Va

lse
St

Sonata St

Ta
rp

on
 Ln

Stinwick Ln

Serenade StRh
ap

so
dy

 St

Spinner Ln

Pl
ym

ou
th

 D
r

Ke
nt

sh
ire

 D
r

CASE LOCATION MAPCase Number Z191003/CP191003
Bardin Road Mixed Use ´

Planning and Development
(972) 237-8257
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 1 of 2

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number CPA191002
Bardin Road Mixed Use



Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 2 of 2



City Hall
317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 119-9405 Name: Z191003/CP191003 -  Bardin Road Mixed Use

Status:Type: Ordinance Public Hearing

File created: In control:9/26/2019 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:10/7/2019

Title: Z191003/CP191003 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan - Bardin Road Mixed Use (City Council District 4).
Zoning Change and Concept Plan for Multi-Family, Retail, Restaurants, and a Theater on 21.80 acres.
Sheffield Village Phase IV, Block 3, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-140, within
the IH-20 Corridor Overlay District and the SH-360 Corridor Overlay District, and addressed as 3025
W IH-20. The agent is Brian Moore, applicant is Hamilton Peck, Hamilton Commercial LLC, and the
owner is Jeremy Welman, Harkins Grand Prairie.
City Council Action: October 15, 2019

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Boundary Description.pdf

Exhibit B - Concept Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Conceptual Images.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Chris Hartmann

Title

Z191003/CP191003 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan - Bardin Road Mixed Use (City Council District 4).
Zoning Change and Concept Plan for Multi-Family, Retail, Restaurants, and a Theater on 21.80 acres.
Sheffield Village Phase IV, Block 3, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-140, within the IH-
20 Corridor Overlay District and the SH-360 Corridor Overlay District, and addressed as 3025 W IH-20. The
agent is Brian Moore, applicant is Hamilton Peck, Hamilton Commercial LLC, and the owner is Jeremy
Welman, Harkins Grand Prairie.
City Council Action: October 15, 2019

Presenter

Savannah Ware, AICP, Senior Planner

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

Zoning Change and Concept Plan for Multi-Family, Retail, Restaurants, and a Theater on 21.80 acres.
Sheffield Village Phase IV, Block 3, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-140, within the IH-

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 1 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9405, Version: 1

20 Corridor Overlay District and the SH-360 Corridor Overlay District, and addressed as 3025 W IH-20.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of the request is to create a Planned Development District for multi-family, retail, restaurant, and
cinema uses on 21.80 acres.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-327; PD-37A Light Industrial, Commercial, Retail Uses

South PD-140; PD-140B Medical Offices, Multi-Family, Undeveloped

West City of Arlington SH 360; Industrial uses

East PD-140 Concorde Career College

HISTORY:

· September 13, 1983: City Council approved a request to create a Planned Development District (PD-
140) for commercial, office, and single family detached uses. The subject property is part of a tract
designated for Commercial use. Allowed uses for commercial tracts include: Community Unit
Development, Hotel or Motel, and Condo - High Rise.

· February 15, 2005: City Council approved a Site Plan for Harkins Theatres (Case Number S050103).

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The Concept Plan depicts the following:

· 9.698 acres of multi-family use at a density of 42 dwelling units per acre;

· 401 multi-family units in five buildings, one of which wraps around three sides of a five-level structured
parking garage;

· 11.936 acres of commercial uses including a 40,700 sq. ft. cinema and almost 50,000 sq. ft. of retail and
restaurants.

The focal point of the development is the Grand Lawn, a centrally located open space amenity. The three use
components-multi-family, retail/restaurant, and cinema-are physically and functionally organized around the
Grand Lawn. Buildings frame the space to create a consistent edge and screen surface parking from the open
space. Restaurants with outdoor dining areas face the Grand Lawn. Wide textured crosswalks will make it
easy for people living in the apartments to walk to and use the Grand Lawn. The cinema includes an outdoor
screen for outdoor viewing of movies on the Grand Lawn.

The entrance to the five-level wrapped parking garage is shown off of Bardin Road. There is a possibility that a
vehicle that is denied entry to the garage could cause the queuing of vehicles onto Bardin Road. This potential
issue will need to be addressed with the Site Plan.

Traffic Impact Analysis

The applicant submitted a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) to estimate the impact of the proposed development on
traffic operations.  The TIA includes the findings listed below.

· The intersection of I-20 Eastbound Frontage Road and Endicott Drive will continue to operate

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 2 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9405, Version: 1

efficiently and at good Levels of Service.

· The driveways are anticipated to operate at good Levels of Service.

· Traffic operations at Bardin Road and Magna Carta Boulevard are anticipated to reach poor Levels of
Service during peak hours and cannot be mitigated without the addition of a traffic signal; however, the
projected traffic volumes are not sufficient to meet traffic signal warrants for the intersection.

· Future improvements to upgrade Bardin Road from a two-lane roadway to a four-lane roadway and
installation of traffic signals will allow the intersections of Bardin Road at the frontage roads to operate
at good Levels of Service.

· The intersection of Bardin Road at SH-360 Northbound Frontage Road currently operates at
unacceptable Levels of Service. The addition of projected growth and site-related traffic will further
degrade operations.

The TIA recommends installation of traffic signals at the Bardin Road and SH-360 interchange in order to
provide acceptable traffic operations. While the proposed development will not cause the degraded operations,
it will contribute. The Transportation Department recommends that the developer participate in the cost of
signalizing the intersection of Bardin Road and SH-360.

CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:

The 2018 Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designation for this location is
Commercial/Retail/Office. A request to change the FLUM to Mixed Use is under concurrent review
(CPA190601).

Mixed-use areas are intended to provide flexibility in order to encourage innovative, unique, and sustainable
developments. Areas designated for Mixed Use include a mixture of non-residential and residential uses and
require a well thought-out, master planned approach. Additionally, these developments should be designed
around the pedestrian, with walkable connections to shopping and dining as key components.

The proposal is consistent with goals, policies, and objectives in the 2010 and 2018 Comprehensive Plans,
including:

· Encourage development that will reduce urban sprawl;

· Encourage land use patterns that reflect a mix of integrated community uses;

· Locate higher density residential uses along roadways designated as minor arterials, principle arterials
or limited access thoroughfares.

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS:

The applicant is proposing General Retail (GR) and Multi-Family Three (MF-3) as the base zoning districts.

Commercial development will be subject to uses and development requirements for GR with the following
changes:

· Prohibit the following uses which are currently allowed with a Specific Use Permit: boat dealer,
motorcycle dealer, laundry (self-serve), mini storage, auto parts sales (new), and variety store.

· Allow a Restaurant with Alcohol Sales Including Entertainment and Brewpub by right.

· Allow a Brewpub with one of the characteristics described in Article 11 of the UDC with approval of a
Specific Use Permit.

· Increase the maximum allowable height to 60 ft. for the cinema.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 3 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9405, Version: 1

· Allow a 120 ft. multi-tenant monument sign.

Multi-Family development will be subject to development standards for MF-3 with the following changes:

· Increase the allowable density to 42 dwelling units per acre.

· Increase the maximum allowable height to allow building three to be constructed at a height of 66 ft.

· Allow construction without a perimeter fence and gated entry.

· Provide at least 50% of required parking spaces in a structured parking garage and tuck-under garages
instead of a combination of garages (30%) and carports (20%).

ANALYSIS:

The subject property is currently zoned PD-140 for commercial uses. The applicant is proposing a more
restrictive base zoning district and to allow a Restaurant with Alcohol Sales Including Entertainment and
Brewpub by right. These uses are consistent with developer’s vision for a mixed-use destination. The
applicant is also proposing to increase the maximum allowable height to 60 ft. to for the cinema. This exceeds
the maximum height for GR but is less than the 10 stories allowed by PD-140.

The developer has requested that the 120 ft. sign be considered as a part of the zoning request. Variances to
sign requirements are typically processed separately from the zoning request as a Unified Signage Plan.

The subject property is currently zoned PD-140 and residential uses-Community Unit Development and Condo
High-Rise-are allowed at this location. The definition of Community Unit Development does specify a
particular housing type and states that the density should not vary from that of the district in which it is located.
Condo High-Rise is defined as multi-family units with a condominium regime/association and higher than 75
feet. PD-140 does not establish a specific density. Staff’s interpretation written in 1994 states that while
residential uses are allowed, the location, type and density must be approved as part of a Planned Development
approval.

Establishing MF-3 as the base zoning district for this property will bring the zoning closer to conformance with
current standards.  The applicant is requesting four variances from MF-3:

1. Density: The proposed density of 42 dwelling units per acre exceeds the density of 26 dwelling units per
acre allowed in MF-3.

2. Height: The proposed height for building three is 66 ft. It exceeds the maximum height of 60 ft.
allowed in MF-3 but is less than the minimum height for Condo High-Rise allowed in PD-140.

3. Perimeter Fence and Gated Entry: A variance to this requirement will allow the multi-family to function
as an integrated component of a walkable, mixed-use development.

4. Carports: The proposal does not include carports. Appendix W requires that carports account for 20%
of required parking spaces and garages account for 30% of required parking spaces. The Concept Plan
depicts a five-level parking garage and tuck-under garages that account for more than 50% of the
required parking spaces.

The proposed development is the type and quality of place that Appendix F is intended to produce. The mix
and integration of uses and presence and design of usable open space will create a unique destination.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval of the Zoning Change/Concept Plan with
the following conditions:

1. That the applicant participates in the cost of a traffic signal at the intersection of Bardin Rd and 360.

2. That variances to sign requirements be requested through a Unified Signage Plan following approval of the
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 4 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9405, Version: 1

2. That variances to sign requirements be requested through a Unified Signage Plan following approval of the
zoning change.

3. That the final design of the parking garage entry be configured so that garage traffic does not back up onto
Bardin Rd.

Body

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 5 of 5

powered by Legistar™



W Ih 20 Eb  

S H
wy

 36
0 S

b  

W Ih 20 Wb  

W Bardin Rd

S H
wy

 36
0 N

b  

Outlet Pkwy

En
di

co
tt 

Dr

Fenwick St

Earle Dr

Mag
na

 Ca
rta

 Bl
vd

Linden Ln

North Hampton Dr

W
als

h L
n

La
Va

lse
St

Sonata St

Ta
rp

on
 Ln

Stinwick Ln

Serenade StRh
ap

so
dy

 St

Spinner Ln

Pl
ym

ou
th

 D
r

Ke
nt

sh
ire

 D
r

CASE LOCATION MAPCase Number Z191003/CP191003
Bardin Road Mixed Use ´

Planning and Development
(972) 237-8257
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 1 of 2



Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 2 of 2



Exhibit B - Concept Plan
Page 1 of 2



Exhibit B - Concept Plan
Page 2 of 2



Exhibit C - Conceptual Images
Page 1 of 9



Exhibit C - Conceptual Images
Page 2 of 9



Exhibit C - Conceptual Images
Page 3 of 9



Exhibit C - Conceptual Images
Page 4 of 9



Exhibit C - Conceptual Images
Page 5 of 9



Exhibit C - Conceptual Images
Page 6 of 9



Exhibit C - Conceptual Images
Page 7 of 9



Exhibit C - Conceptual Images
Page 8 of 9



Exhibit C - Conceptual Images
Page 9 of 9



City Hall
317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 119-9406 Name: CPA191003 – Comprehensive Plan Amendment -
Riverside Mixed Use

Status:Type: Agenda Item Public Hearing

File created: In control:9/26/2019 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:10/7/2019

Title: CPA191003 - Comprehensive Plan Amendment - Riverside Mixed Use (City Council District 1).
Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Open Space/Drainage to Mixed Use.  Lot 1-R, Block 1,
Riverside Club Addition and an unplatted remainder situated in the N. Underwood Survey, Abstract
No. T1582, the J. Estill Survey, Abstract No. 491, and an unknown survey, abstract No. T1904, City of
Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas. Zoned LI, Light Industrial within the SH 360 Overlay District and
addressed as 3000 Riverside Parkway, Grand Prairie, Texas.
City Council Action: October 15, 2019

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Chris Hartmann

Title

CPA191003 - Comprehensive Plan Amendment - Riverside Mixed Use (City Council District 1).
Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Open Space/Drainage to Mixed Use.  Lot 1-R, Block 1, Riverside Club
Addition and an unplatted remainder situated in the N. Underwood Survey, Abstract No. T1582, the J. Estill
Survey, Abstract No. 491, and an unknown survey, abstract No. T1904, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County,
Texas. Zoned LI, Light Industrial within the SH 360 Overlay District and addressed as 3000 Riverside Parkway,
Grand Prairie, Texas.
City Council Action: October 15, 2019

Presenter

David P. Jones, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

Comprehensive Plan Amendment to change the Future Land Use Map designation from Open Space/Drainage
to Mixed Use. Lot 1-R, Block 1, Riverside Club Addition and an unplatted remainder situated in the N.
Underwood Survey, Abstract No. T1582, the J. Estill Survey, Abstract No. 491, and an unknown survey,
abstract No. T1904, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas. Zoned LI, Light Industrial within the SH 360

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9406, Version: 1

abstract No. T1904, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas. Zoned LI, Light Industrial within the SH 360
Overlay District and addressed as 3000 Riverside Parkway, Grand Prairie, Texas.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of the request is to amend the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) so that the FLUM is consistent with
a development proposed at this location. The development will include hotel and multi-family residential uses
along with the balance of the existing golf course.

ANALYSIS:

The Open Space/Drainage Land Use category primarily consists of floodplains located along the many
waterways running through Grand Prairie. These areas should be preserved as public and neighborhood-
oriented open spaces, and incorporate trails and drainage corridors which are left in a naturalistic state. Impacts
on these areas should be closely considered when intense uses are proposed within close proximity.

The proposal is consistent with goals, policies, and objectives in the 2010 and 2018 Comprehensive Plans,
including:

· Leverage the construction of frontage roads to encourage commercial development, including hotels.
“Restaurants, retail, and hotels incorporated into the highway frontage capitalizes on tourist traffic
visiting attractions in Grand Prairie as well as those in Arlington and Dallas” (p. 124).

· Achieve a broad housing selection for a diverse population. Currently, 2/3rds of housing in Grand
Prairie consists of detached single-family;

· Provide housing options that serve the needs of the population throughout the stages of their lives;

· Locate higher density residential uses along roadways designated as minor arterials, principle arterials
or limited access thoroughfares, such as SH 360.

The designation of Open Space/Drainage for this property does not currently match the definition of OS/D in
the Comprehensive Plan. While the golf course does partially sit within a floodplain, it is not in a natural state.
Amending the designation to Mixed Use would bring an underdeveloped site at a highway intersection into
alignment with its potential, as well as alignment with neighboring development consisting of multi-family,
office, lodging, recreation, and industrial. Furthermore, the proposed development would actually fulfill a key
characteristic of the OS/D designation, since it would sit in close proximity to existing and proposed regional
veloweb connections in Arlington and Fort Worth.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval.

Body

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



�� 

t�l
PLANNING 

CASE LOCATION MAP D. 
Case Number:  CPA191003 N 

Riverside Mixed Use 

City of Grand Prairie 
Planning and Development 

� (972) 237-8257 Swww.gptx.org 

Exhibit A - Location Map



City Hall
317 College Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 119-9407 Name: Z191004/CP191004 - Riverside Hotel and
Apartments

Status:Type: Ordinance Public Hearing

File created: In control:9/26/2019 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:10/7/2019

Title: Z191004/CP191004 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan - Riverside Hotel and Apartments (City Council
District 1).  Zoning Change and Concept Plan to rezone approximately 260 acres of land from LI, Light
Industrial to a Planned Development for Hotel, Apartment, and Golf Course uses.  Lot 1-R, Block 1,
Riverside Club Addition and an unplatted remainder situated in the N. Underwood Survey, Abstract
No. T1582, the J. Estill Survey, Abstract No. 491, and an unknown survey, abstract No. T1904, City of
Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas. Zoned LI, Light Industrial within the SH 360 Overlay District and
addressed as 3000 Riverside Parkway, Grand Prairie, Texas. The owner is Howard Porteus.
City Council Action: October 15, 2019

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map

Exhibit B - Proposed PD

Exhibit i - Shared Parking Analysis

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Chris Hartmann

Title

Z191004/CP191004 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan - Riverside Hotel and Apartments (City Council District 1).
Zoning Change and Concept Plan to rezone approximately 260 acres of land from LI, Light Industrial to a
Planned Development for Hotel, Apartment, and Golf Course uses.  Lot 1-R, Block 1, Riverside Club Addition
and an unplatted remainder situated in the N. Underwood Survey, Abstract No. T1582, the J. Estill Survey,
Abstract No. 491, and an unknown survey, abstract No. T1904, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas.
Zoned LI, Light Industrial within the SH 360 Overlay District and addressed as 3000 Riverside Parkway, Grand
Prairie, Texas. The owner is Howard Porteus.
City Council Action: October 15, 2019

Presenter

David P. Jones, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

Request to rezone approximately 260 acres of land from LI, Light Industrial to a Planned Development for

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 1 of 6

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9407, Version: 1

Request to rezone approximately 260 acres of land from LI, Light Industrial to a Planned Development for
Hotel, Apartment, and Golf Course uses. Lot 1-R, Block 1, Riverside Club Addition and an unplatted remainder
situated in the N. Underwood Survey, Abstract No. T1582, the J. Estill Survey, Abstract No. 491, and an
unknown survey, abstract No. T1904, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas. Zoned LI, Light Industrial
within the SH 360 Overlay District and addressed as 3000 Riverside Parkway, Grand Prairie, Texas.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of the request is to create a planned development district for hotel, conference center, and multi-
family use on approximately 23 acres west of SH 360 and north of Riverside Pkwy.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North Arlington; Fort Worth Trinity River; Centreport Station

South PD-211 Multi-Family Residential

West City of Arlington Viridian; Veloweb trail

East LI, Light Industrial Floodplain/Floodway; Great Southwest Industrial Park

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The zoning change would allow for construction of a 250 key hotel up to 8 stories tall along with a conference
center approximately 20,000 square feet in size and multi-family at a density of 80 dwelling units per acre. The
current golf course clubhouse and parking area would be removed and replaced by a proposed hotel/conference
center, while the existing cart barn would be remain. Current access from Riverside Pkwy would remain as a
public street providing access and circulation for the development, and additional access points would be
constructed to provide access from SH 360.

CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:

The 2018 Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designation for this location is Open
Space/Drainage. A request to change the FLUM to Medium Density Residential is under concurrent review
(CPA191003).

The proposal is consistent with goals, policies, and objectives in the 2010 and 2018 Comprehensive Plans,
including:

· Leveraging the construction of frontage roads to encourage commercial development, including hotels.
“Restaurants, retail, and hotels incorporated into the highway frontage capitalizes on tourist traffic
visiting attractions in Grand Prairie as well as those in Arlington and Dallas” (p. 124).

· Achieve a broad housing selection for a diverse population. Currently, 2/3rds of housing in Grand
Prairie consists of detached single-family;

· Provide housing options that serve the needs of the population throughout the stages of their lives. The
development contemplates both multi-family and townhouse residential uses;

· Encourage development that will reduce urban sprawl. The development makes use of the undeveloped
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 2 of 6

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9407, Version: 1

· Encourage development that will reduce urban sprawl. The development makes use of the undeveloped
portion of an existing golf course, utilizing existing infrastructure;

· Encourage land use patterns that reflect a mix of integrated community uses. The development will
utilize the undeveloped portion of an existing golf course, enhancing the viability of both existing and
new elements;

· Locate higher density residential uses along roadways designated as minor arterials, principle arterials
or limited access thoroughfares.

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS:

The applicant is proposing a mixed use zoning to allow for retail commercial development including a hotel
and conference center, limited retail, restaurants, mixed-use buildings with bottom floor residential (minimum
15%), wrap-style multi-family with structured parking, and urban townhomes.

Table 2: Dimensional Standards

MF-3 Multi-Family Proposed Commercial Proposed

Height 60 feet 4 stories min/15 max 50 feet Unlimited

Min Unit Size 600 SF 350 SF (avg. unit 700) N/A N/A

Density 26 DU/acre 80 DU/acre N/A N/A

Front Setback 5’ (if units front street) 15 feet 30 feet 15 feet

Interior Setback 15 feet 5 feet 10-40 feet* 5 feet

*Based on building height

Uses allowed include the following as outlined in the PD document:

Table 3: Allowed Uses

Use Proposed MF-3 C

MF- APARTMENTS By Right By Right Prohibited

MIXED RETAIL & RESIDENTIAL By Right Prohibited Prohibited

ACCESSORY BLDG / STRUCTURE By Right By Right By Right

RELIGIOUS ASSEMBLY By Right By Right By Right

EMS By Right Prohibited SUP

BANK By Right Prohibited By Right

SAVINGS & LOAN By Right Prohibited By Right

ATM By Right Prohibited SUP

MISCELLANEOUS OFFICES By Right Prohibited By Right

BAKERY (RETAIL) By Right Prohibited By Right

HOTEL / MOTEL * By Right Prohibited SUP

KIOSK (SERVICE ) By Right Prohibited By Right

LAUNDRY DROP OFF / PICK-UP By Right Prohibited By Right

PRIVATE CLUB (W/ ALCOHOL ) By Right Prohibited SUP

RESTAURANT By Right Prohibited By Right

RESTAURANT WITH DRIVE THROUGH WINDOW By Right Prohibited SUP

RESTAURANT (75% OR MORE ALCOHOL SALES) By Right Prohibited SUP

RESTAURANT (ALCOHOL SALES NO ENTERTAINMENT) By Right Prohibited By Right

RESTAURANT (ALCOHOL SALES INCL ENTERTAINMENT) By Right Prohibited SUP

KIOSK RESTAURANT By Right Prohibited By Right

ACCESSORY AUTO PARKING By Right Prohibited SUP

STRUCTURED PARKING By Right Prohibited By Right

TAXI STAND By Right Prohibited By Right

CONCRETE BATCH PLANT (TEMPORARY) Council Approval SUP SUP

ON SITE CONSTRUCTION OFFICE CBO Approval CBO CBO

SURFACE OIL / GAS EXTRACTION ** Not Allowed By Right By Right

ART GALLERY ( NON RETAIL ) By Right Prohibited By Right

GOLF COURSE By Right By Right By Right

HEALTH CLUB By Right Prohibited By Right

SPECIAL EVENTS (TEMP - NOT SPECIAL EVENTS CENTER) CBO Approval Prohibited SUP

SWIMMING POOL By Right By Right By Right

PERFORMING ARTS THEATER By Right Prohibited By Right

CELL EQUIPMENT WITH NO TOWER SUP Only By Right By Right

CELL TOWER < 85’ SUP Only By Right By Right

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 3 of 6

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9407, Version: 1

Table 3: Allowed Uses

Use Proposed MF-3 C

MF- APARTMENTS By Right By Right Prohibited

MIXED RETAIL & RESIDENTIAL By Right Prohibited Prohibited

ACCESSORY BLDG / STRUCTURE By Right By Right By Right

RELIGIOUS ASSEMBLY By Right By Right By Right

EMS By Right Prohibited SUP

BANK By Right Prohibited By Right

SAVINGS & LOAN By Right Prohibited By Right

ATM By Right Prohibited SUP

MISCELLANEOUS OFFICES By Right Prohibited By Right

BAKERY (RETAIL) By Right Prohibited By Right

HOTEL / MOTEL * By Right Prohibited SUP

KIOSK (SERVICE ) By Right Prohibited By Right

LAUNDRY DROP OFF / PICK-UP By Right Prohibited By Right

PRIVATE CLUB (W/ ALCOHOL ) By Right Prohibited SUP

RESTAURANT By Right Prohibited By Right

RESTAURANT WITH DRIVE THROUGH WINDOW By Right Prohibited SUP

RESTAURANT (75% OR MORE ALCOHOL SALES) By Right Prohibited SUP

RESTAURANT (ALCOHOL SALES NO ENTERTAINMENT) By Right Prohibited By Right

RESTAURANT (ALCOHOL SALES INCL ENTERTAINMENT) By Right Prohibited SUP

KIOSK RESTAURANT By Right Prohibited By Right

ACCESSORY AUTO PARKING By Right Prohibited SUP

STRUCTURED PARKING By Right Prohibited By Right

TAXI STAND By Right Prohibited By Right

CONCRETE BATCH PLANT (TEMPORARY) Council Approval SUP SUP

ON SITE CONSTRUCTION OFFICE CBO Approval CBO CBO

SURFACE OIL / GAS EXTRACTION ** Not Allowed By Right By Right

ART GALLERY ( NON RETAIL ) By Right Prohibited By Right

GOLF COURSE By Right By Right By Right

HEALTH CLUB By Right Prohibited By Right

SPECIAL EVENTS (TEMP - NOT SPECIAL EVENTS CENTER) CBO Approval Prohibited SUP

SWIMMING POOL By Right By Right By Right

PERFORMING ARTS THEATER By Right Prohibited By Right

CELL EQUIPMENT WITH NO TOWER SUP Only By Right By Right

CELL TOWER < 85’ SUP Only By Right By Right

A use not shown in this table is prohibited, even if allowed in the MF-3 or C districts in the Unified
Development Code. Drive thru windows will only be permitted within 500 feet of the 360 frontage road.

PARKING:

The applicant is proposing a shared parking formula that accounts for time of day to determine parking
demand. This approach is similar though not directly comparable to the shared parking requirements found in
Article 10 of the Unified Development Code, though some of the morning and midday factor calculations will
result in increased required parking than required under the UDC (a comparison of shared parking formulas can
be found in Exhibit i).

LANDSCAPING AND SCREENING:

One tree will be required per 20 parking spaces within a lot, and at least 15 percent of the parking lot must be
landscaped. No run of parking spaces will exceed 10 without at least one tree island. Street trees will be
required along all streets. Applicant requests to waive all other requirements of Article 8, Landscaping and
Screening Standards except for rooftop, loading, and dumpster screening requirements.

In addition to landscaping, connectivity to the regional veloweb will be provided. Staff is recommending the
provision of additional small public greenspaces on site.

BUILDING STANDARDS AND MATERIALS:

The proposed PD will require the use of articulation, windows, and materials consistent with the requirements
of Appendix F. Council designated this district as architecturally and aesthetically significant by the city prior to
April 1, 2019.

Depending on building size, all buildings will require four to six of the following features:

a. Arcades.

b. Canopies, archways, covered walkways, or porticos.

c. Awnings.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 4 of 6

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9407, Version: 1

d. Courtyards.

e. Cupolas.

f. Balconies.

g. Tower elements.

h. Recesses, projections; columns; pilasters projecting from the planes; offsets; reveals; or projecting ribs
used to express architectural or structural bays.

i. Varied roof heights for pitched, peaked, sloped, or flat roof styles.

j. Articulated cornice line.

k. Arches.

l. Display windows, faux windows, or decorative glass windows.

m. Architectural details, such as tile work and molding, or accent materials integrated into the building
façade.

n. Integrated planters or wing walls that incorporate landscaping and sitting areas or outdoor patios.

o. Integrated water features; or

p. Other similar architectural features approved by the Planning Director, or designee.

REQUESTED VARIANCES:

1. Density: The proposed density of 80 dwelling units per acre exceeds the density of 26 dwelling units per
acre allowed in MF-3. Staff is comfortable with this density if development is accompanied by
construction of the 360 Frontage Road to provide additional entry points.

2. Height: The proposed height for multi-family is 15 stories which exceeds the maximum height of 60 ft.
allowed in MF-3. The proposed height of non-residential is unlimited which could result in a building
exceeding the maximum 50 foot height in the C, Commercial district. This site has no residential
adjacency and sits along the SH 360 corridor close to the American Airlines HQ buildings and other
office high-rises.

3. Perimeter Fence and Gated Entry: A variance to this requirement will allow the multi-family to function
as an integrated component of a walkable, mixed-use development.

4. Parking: Some shared parking factors may result in a 5% increase in required parking over base UDC
standards. Staff is comfortable with this variance given the potential use of the site as a convention
center and also the possible mix of intensity of retail and restaurant uses.

5. Landscaping: Only parking lot landscaping and street trees required, existing trees and golf course will
be used as perimeter buffer. Staff is comfortable with waiving screening requirements because this is an
integrated development that is bounded by the golf course and the Trinity river.

6. Drive-thru widows by right: Staff is comfortable with this allowance as long as the business associated
with the drive thru window is a coffee shop or primarily sit-down oriented restaurant, is not a quick-

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 5 of 6

powered by Legistar™



File #: 19-9407, Version: 1

with the drive thru window is a coffee shop or primarily sit-down oriented restaurant, is not a quick-
serve restaurant (QSR), and is part of a mixed-use building.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval with the following conditions:

1. That multiple public open spaces be provided that are a minimum 100 feet x 50 feet.

2. That drive-thru windows be restricted to coffee shops and “fast casual” restaurants offering a printed
menu of foods prepared after ordering and served at a table on non-disposable dishware.

Body

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 10/4/2019Page 6 of 6

powered by Legistar™



Exhibit A - Location Map



1 

 

ORDINANCE N O . _________ 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE UDC AND MAP TO REZONE 

259 ACRES OF LAND SITUATED ON TWO TRACTS. TRACT ONE 13 ACRES OF 

LAND SITUATED IN THE NORMAN UNDERWOOD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 1582, 

TARRANT COUNTY TEXAS, AND BEING ALL OF THAT CERTAIN PARCEL 

CALLED TRACT ONE AS CONVEYED BY DEED TO CPG RIVERSIDE, L.P., AS 

RECORDED IN VOLUME 17362, PG. 58, DEED RECORDS, TARRANT COUNTY 

TEXAS AND TRACT TWO 246 ACRES OF LAND SITUATED IN THE J.J. 

GOODFELLOW SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 1582, THE JONATHAN BROWN SURVEY, 

ABSTRACT NO. 110, THE J. BURNETT SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 178 AND THE E. 

JONES SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 842, TARRANT COUNTY TEXAS, AND BEING ALL 

OF THAT CERTAIN PARCEL CALLED TRACT TWO AS CONVEYED BY DEED TO 

CPG RIVERSIDE, L.P., AS RECORDED IN VOLUME 388-193, PG. 58, PLAT RECORDS, 

TARRANT COUNTY, TEXAS AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN 

EXHIBIT B, AND GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF 

RIVERSIDE PARKWAY AND TX-360 IN GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, FROM LIGHT 

INDUSTRIAL TO A PLANNED DEVELOPMENT FOR MIXED-USE HOTEL, 

COMMERCIAL, AND MULTI-FAMILY USES; REVISING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP 

IN ACCORDANCE THEREWITH; PROVIDING DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS OF THE 

DISTRICT; PROVIDING THAT THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE CUMULATIVE OF ALL 

ORDINANCES; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS 

CLAUSE; PROVIDING A PENALTY FOR VIOLATIONS HEREOF; PROVIDING FOR 

PUBLICATION; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN 

CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND TO BECOME EFFECTIVE UPON ITS PASSAGE AND 

APPROVAL. 
 

WHEREAS, the owners of the property described herein below filed application with the City of 

Grand Prairie, Texas, petitioning an amendment of the UDC and map of said city so as to rezone and 

reclassify said property from its classification of Light Industrial to a Planned Development for 

Mixed-use Hotel, Commercial, and Multi-Family Uses; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of Grand Prairie,  Texas, held a public hearing on 

said application on Month  DD,  YYYY, after written notice of such public hearing  before  the  

Planning and Zoning Commission on the proposed rezoning had been sent to owners  of  real property 

lying within 300 feet of the property on which the change of classification is proposed, said Notice 

having been given not less than ten (10) days before the date set for hearing to all such  owners who 

rendered their said property for City taxes as the ownership appears on  the  last approved City Tax 

Roll, and such Notice being served by depositing the same, properly addressed and postage paid, in the 

City Post Office; and 
 

WHEREAS, after consideration of said application, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City 

of Grand Prairie, Texas voted 7 to 0 to recommend to the City Council of Grand Prairie, Texas, that 

the hereinafter described property be rezoned from its classification of Light Industrial to a Planned 

Development for Mixed-use Hotel, Commercial, and Multi-Family Uses; and 

WHEREAS, Notice was given of a further public hearing to be held by the City Council of the City 

of Grand Prairie, Texas, in the City Hall Plaza Building at 6:30 o'clock P.M. on Month  DD,  YYYY, 

to consider the advisability of amending the UDC and Map as recommended by the Planning and 

Zoning Commission, and all citizens and parties at interest were notified that they would have an  

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 1 of 47



2 

 

Ordinance No. _____________ 

opportunity to be heard, such Notice of the time and place of such hearing having been given at least 

fifteen (15) days prior to such hearing by publication in the Fort Worth Star Telegram, Grand Prairie, 

Texas, a newspaper of general circulation in such municipality; and 

 
WHEREAS, all citizens and parties at interest have been given an opportunity to be heard on all the 

matter of the proposed rezoning and the City Council of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, being 

informed as to the location and nature of the use proposed on said property, as well as, the nature and 

usability of surrounding property, have found and determined that the property in question, as well as, 

other property within the city limits of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, has changed in character since 

the enactment of the original UDC from its classification of Light Industrial to a Planned Development 

for Mixed-use Hotel, Commercial, and Multi-Family Uses; and, by reason of changed conditions, does 

consider and find that this amendatory Ordinance should be enacted since its provisions are in the 

public interest and will promote the health, safety and welfare of the community. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1. THAT Ordinance Number ____, being the UDC and Map of the City of Grand Prairie, 

Texas, showing the locations and boundaries of certain districts, and said UDC and Map having been 

made a part of an Ordinance entitled: 

 

"AN ORDINANCE AMENDING IN ITS ENTIRETY CHAPTER 28 OF THE CODE 

OF ORDINANCES KNOWN AS THE UDC OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, 

TEXAS, AS PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL ON THE 20TH 

DAY OF NOVEMBER, 1990, TOGETHER WITH ALL AMENDMENTS 

THERETO AND ENACTING A REVISED ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING AND 

PROVIDING FOR ZONING REGULATIONS; CREATING USE DISTRICTS IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH A COMPREHENSIVE PLAN... " 
 

and passed and approved November 20, 1990, as amended, is hereby further amended so as to rezone 

from its classification of Light Industrial to a Planned Development for Mixed-use Hotel, Commercial, 

and Multi-Family Uses; as depicted in Exhibit “A” - Location Map and as legally described in attached 

Exhibit “C” – Legal Description. 

 

SECTION 2. PURPOSE AND INTENT 

 

The purpose of this Planned Development is to create a quality mixed-use development, as further 

described in the Development Standards attached hereto as Exhibit “E”. 

 

SECTION 3. DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

 

The Development Standards (Planned Development Standards) for the Property, 

attached hereto as Exhibit “E” are hereby approved. 

 

SECTION 4. THAT a site plan shall be reviewed and approved by the City Council prior to the 

issuance of any building permits. 

 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 2 of 47



3 

 

T 

Ordinance No. ________ 

 

SECTION 5. THAT it is further provided, that in case a section, clause, sentence, or part of this 

Ordinance shall be deemed or adjudged by a Court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, then 

such invalidity shall not affect, impair, or invalidate the remainder of this Ordinance.  

 
SECTION 6. THAT all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are specifically 

repealed. 

 

SECTION 7. THAT this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 

approval. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND 

PRAIRIE, TEXAS, ON THIS THE __ DAY OF _______, 201_. 

 

APPROVED: 

 

                     

                    _________________________________________ 

                    Ron Jensen, Mayor 

  
              ATTEST: 

 

 

  _____________________________ 

  City Secretary 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ______________ 

ZONING CASE NO. _____________ 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT NO. _____ 

 APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

__________________________________________ 

City Attorney     

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 3 of 47



4 

 

LIST OF TABLES AND EXHIBITS 

 

Table VII-1 – Building Setbacks and Height Restriction .................................................................... 24 

Table XIII-1 – Minimum Parking Requirements ................................................................................. 33 

Table XIII-2 – Shared parking Requirements ...................................................................................... 35 

Table XIII-3 – Uses within Each Shared Parking Category ................................................................ 38 

 

Exhibit A – Location Map ..................................................................................................................... 5 

Exhibit B – Concept Plan ....................................................................................................................... 6 

Exhibit C – Legal Description ............................................................................................................... 7 

Exhibit D – Permitted Uses Table  ....................................................................................................... 12 

Exhibit E – Planned Development Standards ...................................................................................... 14 

Exhibit F – Building Articulation ........................................................................................................ 41 

Exhibit G – Street Section Table.......................................................................................................... 42 

Exhibit H – Pedestrian and Street Lighting Standards ......................................................................... 45 

Exhibit I – Architectural Styles ............................................................................................................ 46 

 

 

 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 4 of 47



5 

 

   
EXHIBIT A 

 

LOCATION MAP 

 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 5 of 47



6 

 

EXHIBIT B 

 

CONCEPT PLAN – CONCEPT 

CASE NUMBER Z191004/CP191004 

  

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 6 of 47



7 

 

EXHIBIT C 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY 

 

Tract 1: 

Being a 12.82 acre tract of land situated in the Norman Underwood Survey, Abstract No. 1582, 

Tarrant County, Texas and being all of that certain parcel called Tract One as conveyed by deed to 

CPG Riverside, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership, as recorded in Volume 17362, Page 58, Deed 

Records, Tarrant County, Texas, and being more particularly described as follows: 

BEGINNING at a point for corner, said point being the northeast corner of said Tract One, and being 

the intersection of the southerly right-of-way line of Riverside Parkway (a variable width R.O.W.) as 

dedicated to the City of Grand Prairie by plat, as recorded in Volume 388-145, Page 74, Plat 

Records, Tarrant County, Texas and the west right-of-way line of State Highway 360 (a variable 

width R.O.W.), said point also being the beginning of non-tangent curve to the right having a radius 

of 5554.58 feet, a central angle of 12°21 '58" and a long chord which bears South 07°06'13" West, 

1196.51 feet; 

THENCE southwesterly, along said west right-of-way line of State Highway 360 and said non-

tangent curve to the right, an arc distance of 1198.94 feet to a set 1 /211 iron rod for corner; 

THENCE South 13°17'5211 West, continuing along said west right-of-way line, for a distance of 

143.65 feet to a found 1/211 iron rod for corner, being the northeast corner of Lot 1, Block A of 

Towns of Riverside Addition, as recorded in Instrument No. D206314578, Deed Records, Tarrant 

County, Texas; 

THENCE North 06°33'2811 West, leaving said west right-of-way line and following along the 

common line of said CPG Riverside tract and Towns of Riverside Addition, for a distance of 125.81 

feet to a found 1/2" iron rod for corner; 

THENCE North 14°45'1011 West, continuing along said common line, for a distance of 172.08 feet 

to a found 1/2" iron rod for corner; 

THENCE North 64°35'0711 West, continuing along said common line, for a distance of 502.71 feet 

to a set 1/211 iron rod for corner; 

THENCE North 81 °43'5911 West, continuing along said common line, for a distance of 45.05 feet 

to a found 1/2" iron rod for corner, being in said southerly right-of-way line of Riverside Parkway; 

THENCE North 13°18'1711 East, leaving said common line and following along said southerly 

right-of-way line of Riverside Parkway, for a distance of 342.29 feet to a found 1/2" iron rod for 

corner, being the beginning of a tangent curve to the right having a radius of 650.00 feet, a central 

angle of 51 °55'31 11 and a long chord which bears North 39°15'3611 East, 569.12 feet; 

THENCE northeasterly, along said southerly right-of-way line and said curve to the right, an arc 

distance of 589.07 feet to a found 1/211 iron rod for corner; 

THENCE North 65°13'21 11 East, continuing along said southerly right-of-way line, for a distance of 

8.05 feet to a found 1/2" iron rod for corner, being the beginning of a tangent curve to the right 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 7 of 47



8 

 

having a radius of 400.00 feet, a central angle of 24°59'12", and a long chord which bears North 

77°42'57" East, 173.06 feet; 

THENCE northeasterly, along said southerly right-of-way line and said curve to the right, an arc 

distance of 174.44 feet to a found 1/2" iron rod for corner; 

THENCE South 89°47'27" East, continuing along said southerly right-of-way line, for a distance of 

122.50 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and CONTAINING 558,418 square feet or 12.82 acres 

of land, more or less. 

Tract 2: 

BEING a 246.52 acre tract of land situated in the J.J. Goodfellow Survey, Abstract No. 1904, the 

Jefferson Estill Survey, Abstract No. 491, the Norman Underwood Survey, Abstract No. 1582, the 

Jonathan Brown Survey, Abstract No. 110, the J. Burnett Survey, Abstract No. 178 and the E. Jones 

Survey, Abstract No. 842, Tarrant County, Texas, and being all of that certain parcel called Tract 

Two as conveyed by deed to CPG Riverside, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership, as recorded in 

Volume 17362, Page 58, Deed Records, Tarrant County, Texas, and being all of Lot 1-R, Block 1, 

Riverside Club, as recorded in Volume 388-193, Pg. 53, Plat Records, Tarrant County, Texas. Said 

246.52 acres being more particularly described as follows: 

BEGINNING at a found 1/2" iron rod for corner, said point being the most easterly northeast corner 

of said Tract Two, and being the intersection of the northerly right-of-way line of Riverside Parkway 

(a variable width R.O.W.) as dedicated to the City of Grand Prairie by plat, as recorded in Volume 

388-145, Page 74, Plat Records, Tarrant County, Texas and the west right-of-way line of State 

Highway 360 (a variable width R.O.W.); 

THENCE South 89°55'45" West, along said northerly right-of-way line of Riverside Parkway, for a 

distance of 19.92 feet to a set 1 /2 inch iron rod for corner; 

THENCE South 90°00'00" West, continuing along said northerly right-of-way line, for a distance of 

2.01 feet to a set ½ inch iron rod for corner, being the beginning of a tangent curve to the left having 

a radius of 530.00 feet, a central angle of 24°46'12" and a long chord which bears South 77°36'54" 

West, 227.35 feet; 

THENCE westerly, along said northerly right-of-way line and said curve to the left, an arc distance 

of 229.13 feet to a set 1/2-inch iron rod for corner; 

THENCE South 65°13'45" West, continuing along said northerly right-of-way line, for a distance of 

96.10 feet to a set ½ inch iron rod for corner, being the beginning of a tangent curve to the left having 

a radius of 750.00 feet, a central angle of 51°55'29" and a long chord which bears South 39°16'01" 

West, 656.67 feet; 

THENCE southwesterly, along said northerly right-of-way line and said curve to the left, an arc 

distance of 679.69 feet to a set 1 /2 inch iron rod for corner; 

THENCE South 13°18'17" West, continuing along said northerly right-of-way line, for a distance of 

352.53 feet to a found 1 /2 inch iron rod for corner; 

THENCE North 81 °43'59" West, leaving said northerly right-of-way line, for a distance of 37.50 

feet to a set 1/2 inch iron rod for corner; 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 8 of 47



9 

 

THENCE South 89°12'21" West, for a distance of 276.52 feet to a found 1/2 inch iron rod for corner; 

THENCE South 69°18'58" West, for a distance of 712.41 feet to a set 1/2 inch iron rod for corner; 

THENCE South 14°01'09" West, for a distance of 1742.22 feet to a found 1/2 inch iron rod for 

corner; 

THENCE South 29°43'59" West, for a distance of 2579.44 feet to a set 1/2 inch iron rod for corner; 

THENCE South 52°52'18" East, for a distance of 814.88 feet to a set 1/2 inch iron rod for corner; 

THENCE South 69°30'14" East, for a distance of 74.85 feet to a set 1/2 inch iron rod for corner; 

THENCE South 89°30'59" West, for a distance of 1139.92 feet to a set 1/2 inch iron rod for corner; 

THENCE North 00°52'14" West, for a distance of 1186.23 feet to a set 1/2 inch iron rod for corner; 

THENCE South 87°30'46" West, for a distance of 680.51 feet to a point for corner, being in the 

approximate limits of the Trinity River; 

THENCE the following calls along said approximate limits of the Trinity River: 

North 05°15'52" East, for a distance of 468.44 feet to a point for corner; 

North 64 °03'46" East, for a distance of 234.19 feet to a point for corner; 

South 49°31 '14" East, for a distance of 540.00 feet to a point for corner; 

South 86°46'14" East, for a distance of 250.00 feet to a point for corner; 

North 06°13'46" East, for a distance of 970.00 feet to a point for corner; 

South 65°50'20" East, for a distance of 410.22 feet to a point for corner; 

South 64 °52'58" East, for a distance of 204.80 feet to a point for corner; 

North 27°20'59" East, for a distance of 619.00 feet to a point for corner; 

North 15°21 '55" East, for a distance of 156.45 feet to a point for corner; 

North 15°08'27" West, for a distance of 165.15 feet to a point for corner; 

North 64°32'31" West, for a distance of 379.31 feet to a point for corner; 

North 34°37'46" West, for a distance of 407.97 feet to a point for corner; 

North 33°22'52" East, for a distance of 289.17 feet to a point for corner; 

South 76°58'54" East, for a distance of 473.01 feet to a point for corner; 

North 14 °29'37" East, for a distance of 541 .65 feet to a point for corner; 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 9 of 47



10 

 

North 10°23'42" East, for a distance of 388. 71 feet to a point for corner; 

North 08°09'09" East, for a distance of 708.08 feet to a point for corner; 

North 00°19'13" West, for a distance of 212.01 feet to a point for corner; 

North 12°53'10" West, for a distance of 345.58 feet to a point for corner; 

North 03°08'11" West, for a distance of 302.24 feet to a point for corner; 

North 08°19'16" West, for a distance of 200.65 feet to a point for corner; 

North 18°04'02" West, for a distance of 145.50 feet to a point for corner; 

North 25°11'36" West, for a distance of 148.14 feet to a point for corner; 

North 06°03'49" East, for a distance of 115.85 feet to a point for corner; 

North 77°03'40" East, for a distance of 119.64 feet to a point for corner; 

South 80°32'52" East, for a distance of 206.34 feet to a point for corner; 

South 73°50'18" East, for a distance of 241 .21 feet to a point for corner; 

South 53°06'55" East, for a distance of 305.31 feet to a point for corner; 

North 87°34'42" East, for a distance of 106.09 feet to a point for corner; 

North 27°53'02" East, for a distance of 118.42 feet to a point for corner; 

North 06°41'39" East, for a distance of 186.01 feet to a point for corner; 

North 13°24'38" West, for a distance of 97.67 feet to a point for corner; 

North 43°11'36" West, for a distance of 273.62 feet to a point for corner; 

North 18°59'04" West, for a distance of 73.00 feet to a point for corner; 

North 01 °42'02" East, for a distance of 76.95 feet to a point for corner; 

North 41 °02'58" East, for a distance of 125.39 feet to a point for corner; 

North 67°29'14" East, for a distance of 108.40 feet to a point for corner; 

North 88°28'56" East, for a distance of 255.06 feet to a point for corner; 

North 54°43'24" East, for a distance of 85.96 feet to a point for corner; 

North 27°48'29" East, for a distance of 127.36 feet to a point for corner; 

North 07°17'18" East, for a distance of 129.87 feet to a point for corner; 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 10 of 47



11 

 

North 24°28'38" West, for a distance of 148.45 feet to a point for corner; 

North 18°02'39" West, for a distance of 185.16 feet to a point for corner; 

North 39°04'14" West, for a distance of 105.83 feet to a point for corner; 

North 42°48'23" West, for a distance of 281.46 feet to a point for corner; 

North 25°49'10" West, for a distance of 230.16 feet to a point for corner; 

North 20° 43'05" East, for a distance of 194.1 0 feet to a point for corner; 

North 05°42'00" East, for a distance of 125.46 feet to a point for corner; 

North 16°32'27" East, for a distance of 128.04 feet to a point for corner; 

North 21 °17'35" East, for a distance of 172.36 feet to a point for corner; 

North 66°31 '11" East, for a distance of 218.37 feet to a point for corner; 

South 59°53'53" East, for a distance of 58.57 feet to a point for corner; 

THENCE North 00°02'39" West, leaving said approximate limits, for a distance of 49.63 feet to a set 

1/2 inch iron rod for corner; 

THENCE North 89°54'21" West, for a distance of 282.16 feet to a set 1/2 inch iron rod for corner; 

THENCE North 01 °56'58" East, for a distance of 659.26 feet to a set 1/2 inch iron rod for corner, 

being the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the right having a radius of 11309.20 feet, a central 

angle of 0°29'11" and a long chord which bears North 87°58'33" East, 95.98 feet; 

THENCE northeasterly, along said non-tangent curve to the right, an arc distance of 95.98 feet to a 

set 1/2 inch iron rod for corner, being in said west right-of-way line of State Highway 360; 

THENCE South 30°24'11" East, along said west right-of-way line, for a distance of 1492.61 feet to a 

set 1/2 inch iron rod for corner, being the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the right having a 

radius of 5554.58 feet, a central angle of 29°45'22" and a long chord which bears South 15°23'27" 

East, 2852.43 feet; 

THENCE southeasterly, along said west right-of-way line and said non-tangent curve to the right, an 

arc distance of 2884.74 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and CONTAINING 10,738,538 square 

feet or 246.52 acres of land, more or less. 

  

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 11 of 47



12 

 

EXHIBIT D 

 

PERMITTED USES TABLE 

 

FAMILY LIVING RESIDENTIAL 

  NAICS CODE PD-____ 

MF- APARTMENTS NA P 

MIXED RETAIL & RESIDENTIAL  NA P 

ACCESSORY BLDG / STRUCTURE NA P 
 

  

RECREATION & CULTURAL USES 

  NAICS CODE PD-____ 

PERFORMING ARTS 611610 P 

RELIGIOUS ASSEMBLY  P 

   

PUBLIC UTILITY USES     

  NAICS CODE PD-____ 

EMS 621910 P 

   

GOVERNMENT, OFFICES & BUSINESS 

  NAICS CODE PD-____ 

BANK 522110 P 

SAVINGS & LOAN 522120 
P 

ATM 334119 P 

MISCELLANEOUS OFFICES 561110 P 

   

RETAIL AND COMMERCIAL USES 

  NAICS CODE PD-____ 

BAKERY (RETAIL) 722213 P 

HOTEL / MOTEL * 721110 P 

KIOSK (SERVICE ) 812990 P 

LAUNDRY DROP OFF / PICK-UP 812230 P 

PRIVATE CLUB (W/ ALCOHOL ) 722410 P 

RESTAURANT 721110 P 

RESTAURANT WITH DRIVE THROUGH WINDOW 721110 P 

RESTAURANT (W/ EQUAL TO OR EXCEEDING 75% 

ALCOHOL SALES) (See Section 4.8.6) 
721110 

P 

RESTAURANT (W/ ALCOHOL SALES NO 

ENTERTAINMENT) (See Section 4.8.6) 
721110 

P 

RESTAURANT (W/ ALCOHOL SALES INCLUDING 

ENTERTAINMENT) (See Section 4.8.6) 
721110 

P 

KIOSK RESTAURANT 722211 P 

   
AUTOMOTIVE 

*=Subject to Ch. 13, Article XX – “Automotive Related Business Regulations” 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 12 of 47



13 

 

OPERATIONS AND PARKING NAICS CODE PD-____ 

ACCESSORY AUTO PARKING NA P 

STRUCTURED PARKING NA P 
  

 

TRANSPORTATION & LOGISTICS 

  NAICS CODE PD-____ 

TAXI STAND 485310 P 

   

MANUFACTURING / MINING AND CONSTRUCTION 

  NAICS CODE PD-____ 

CONCRETE BATCH PLANT (TEMPORARY) 327320 
REQUIRES APPROVAL BY 

THE CITY COUNCIL 

ON SITE CONSTRUCTION OFFICE 811310 
REQUIRES THE APPROVAL 

OF THE CHIEF BUILDING 

OFFICIAL 

SURFACE OIL / GAS EXTRACTION ** 211111 PROHIBITED 

   

ENTERTAINMENT USES 

  NAICS CODE PD-____ 

ART GALLERY ( NON RETAIL ) 712110 P 

GOLF COURSE 713910 P 

HEALTH CLUB 713940 P 

SPECIAL EVENTS (TEMP.) 713990 
SEE THE CHIEF BUILDING 

OFFICIAL 

SWIMMING POOL 713940 P 

PERFORMING ARTS THEATER 711310 P 

   

TELECOMMUNICATIONS     

  NAICS CODE PD-____ 

CELL EQUIPMENT WITH NO TOWER 513322 S 

CELL TOWER < 85’ 513322 S 

   

Chart Symbols:   

P: Permitted Use  

PD: Planned Development District   

*: Site Plan Required   

S: Specific Use Permit Required   

**: Must Comply With All Local and State Regulations   

 

  

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 13 of 47



14 

 

EXHIBIT E 

 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS: 

 

 
I. APPLICABLE REGULATIONS  

II. CONCEPT PLAN  

III. DEFINITIONS  

IV. PD AMENDMENT AND SITE PLAN REVIEW PROCEDURES 

 

 

 

V. PERMITTED USES  

VI. RESTRICTIONS ON MULTI-FAMILY  

VII. BUILDING SETBACK, AREA, AND BULK REQUIREMENTS  

VIII. DESIGN STANDARDS  

IX. GRANT OF PERMISSION FOR USE OF RIGHT-OF-WAY  

X. LANDSCAPING  

XI. TREE PRESERVATION  

XII. SCREENING  

XIII. PARKING  

XIV. OFF-STREET LOADING FOR NON-RESIDENTIAL USES  

XV. SIGNS  

XVI. OPEN SPACE  

XVII. RECREATIONAL AND SOCIAL AMENITIES  

XVIII

. 

STREET AMENITY DESIGN PACKAGE  

XIX. STREET SECTIONS  

XX. PEDESTRIAN AND STREET LIGHTING STANDARDS  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 14 of 47



15 

 

I. Applicable Regulations. 

a. In the event of a conflict between this PD and or the UDC and or the Unified Development 

Code (UDC) or any other City ordinance imposing zoning regulations, this PD shall 

control. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, if this PD addresses a topic of 

regulation, that topic shall be addressed exclusively by the PD. By way of example, this 

PD addresses building design standards; therefore, the building design standards in this PD 

are the exclusive building design standards applicable to the Property. 

 

b. Development of the Property shall be subject to ordinances that the City is required by 

state or federal law to adopt and apply uniformly to all property within its corporate limits, 

regardless of whether such ordinances conflict with this PD. 

 

c. Article 8 [Landscape and Screening] of the Unified Development Code (UDC) does not 

apply (i.e. Section 10 Fencing in the UDC specifically related to Fencing adjacent to 

residential properties shall not apply). 

 

d. Article 7 [Special Districts] of the UDC does not apply to the creation of this PD, but future 

amendments to this PD are governed by Article 7, paragraph 7.1.3, “Procedures” of the 

UDC, except as otherwise provided in this PD.  
 

e. ALTERNATIVE EQUIVALENT COMPLIANCE  

 

1. Purpose: Alternative equivalent compliance is a procedure that allows development 

to meet the intent of the design-related provisions of this PD through an alternative 

design. An alternative equivalent compliance approach is designed to provide 

flexibility in order to respond to unique site conditions or abutting or surrounding 

uses, and must not result in reductions in the amount or quality of the particular 

standard. This procedure is not intended as a substitute for a variance or administrative 

modification, or as a vehicle for relief from or waiver of the standards in this PD. 

 

2. Approval Procedures: The Planning Director, or designee shall review the request and 

approve, approve with conditions, or deny the request for alternative equivalent 

compliance. 

 

3. Criteria: To grant a request for alternative equivalent compliance, the Planning 

Director, or designee shall find that the following criteria are met: 
 

a. The proposed alternative design is original, innovative, or exceptional, and 

achieves the intent of the subject design standard to the same or better degree than 

the subject standard; 

b. The proposed alternative design achieves the goals and objectives of the Design 

Guidelines to the same or better degree than the subject standard; 

c. The proposed alternative design results in benefits to the community that are 

equivalent to or better than compliance with the subject design standard; and 

d. The proposed alternative design imposes no greater effects on adjacent properties 

than would occur through compliance with specific requirements of the Design 

Guidelines. 

 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 15 of 47



16 

 

4. Scope of Approval: Alternative equivalent compliance shall apply only to the specific 

site for which it is requested and does not establish a precedent for assured approval 

of other requests. Written approval does not authorize any development activity, but 

rather authorizes the applicant to prepare a commercial site plan, building permit, or 

sign permit application that incorporates the approved alternative equivalent 

compliance, and authorizes the decision-making body to review the commercial site 

plan or building permit application for compliance with the approved alternative. 

 

5. Expiration: An approved alternative equivalent compliance plan shall expire if one 

year passes following its approval and no building or sign permit that implements the 

plan has been issued. One one-year extension may be issued by the Planning Director, 

or designee provided that a written request has been received prior to the expiration 

of the plan, and the Planning Director, or designee determines that no major changes 

in the Design Guidelines have occurred. 

 

 

II. Concept Plan. 

Use of the Property shall comply with the Concept Plan attached as Exhibit B, as it may be amended 

in accordance with this section, and with the use chart as set forth in Exhibit D. Any major change to 

the Concept Plan must be submitted to the administrative official to ensure it is in compliance with 

this section, and the amended Concept Plan will become a part of the permanent file maintained by 

the administrative official for this PD. All parts of the property outside the floodplain are to be 

considered Mixed Use. The golf course is located inside the floodplain area. 

III. Definitions 

A. Definitions. 

 

Terms used within this PD, including its exhibits, shall be defined as stated below. If a term is not 

listed below, the definition in the UDC shall apply (specifically Article 30 – Definitions). 

 

1. Accessory Community Center, Private – A private accessory community center as 

defined in the UDC except as provided in Section V.b.2 of this PD. 

 

2. Active Park – A park intended to support activities and equipped with improvements to 

promote activities, such as picnic tables, shade structures, dog parks and playgrounds. 

 

3. Alley – A private access easement that functions similar to a traditional alley. 

 

4. Block face – One side of a block between two streets. 

 

5. Boulevard – A street divided by a median. 

 

6. Code – The Code of the City of Grand Prairie 

 

7. Community Center – A facility that is used as a place of meeting, recreation, or social 

activity but not primarily to render a service that is customarily carried on as a business. 

 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 16 of 47



17 

 

8. Facade – Any separate face of a building that encloses or covers usable space. A roof is 

not a facade. 

 

9. Farmers Market – The indoor or outdoor retail sale, by individual vendors, of farm 

products such as fruits, vegetables, herbs, spices, edible seeds, nuts, live plants, flowers, 

and honey. 

 

10. Floor Area – An air-conditioned floor space. 

 

11. Gas Well Drilling and Production – The development, exploration, and production of 

natural gas. 

 

12. General Retail Store, Other Than Listed – A facility or area for the retail sale of general 

merchandise or food, but does not include uses specifically listed in this PD. 

 

13. Height – The vertical distance measured from grade to the highest point of a structure 

(including a sign). 

 

14. Hotel, Full Service – A building or group of buildings providing transient lodging 

accommodations to the general public for compensation, where each guest room is 

accessed from an interior corridor, and that includes ancillary facilities and services such 

as restaurants, meeting rooms, personal services, recreational facilities, daily 

housekeeping service, and 24-hour front desk service. 

 

15. Masonry – Stone or brick laid up unit by unit and set in mortar, or cultured stone, cast 

stone, stucco or natural stone panels. 

 

16. Mixed-use Building – A building that contains two or more uses from a different land use 

category, with one land use category occupying at least fifteen percent of the occupiable 

ground floor gross floor area (excluding parking areas) of the building or 15,000 square 

feet (whichever is less) and the other land use category occupying at least five percent of 

the ground floor gross floor area (excluding parking areas) of the building or 10,000 

square feet (whichever is less). 

 

17. Multi-Family – A building used or designed as a residence for three or more families or 

households living independently of each other on the same lot. 

 

18. Non-residential building or non-residential development - A building or a lot containing 

one or more uses that are not single family or multi-family. 

 

19. Non-residential use – A use that is not exclusively single family, or multi-family. 

 

20. Open Space – A property that is at least 0.25 acres and is one of the following: a public 

park, a private park accessible to residents living on the Property, or an undeveloped 

space open to the sky and accessible by the public and located on private property, such 

as native mitigation areas or trails, except for development allowed in open space in this 

PD. 

 

21. Parkway – means the area between a sidewalk and the back of curb. 

 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 17 of 47



18 

 

22. PD – means this Planned Development District (PDXX-XX: Ordinance no. XX-XXX, 

adopted Month Day Year). 

 

23. Personal Services – means a facility or area for the sale of personal services, such as a spa 

or salon, a tailor, a florist, or a pet grooming shop. 

 

24. Property – means the property depicted on the attached Exhibit B and described by metes 

and bounds on the attached Exhibit C. 

 

25. Radio, Television, or Microwave Tower – means a structure supporting antennae that 

transmit or receive any portion of the electromagnetic spectrum. 

 

26. Residential Building or Residential Development – means a building or a lot with multi-

family use. 

 

27. Residential Use – A single-family or multi-family use. 

 

28. STC – Sound Transmission Class, which is commonly accepted integer-number rating of 

how well a building partition attenuates airborne sound, and is used to rate interior walls, 

ceilings/floors, doors, windows and exterior wall configurations. 

 

29. Stealth Towers – A communications tower that is effectively camouflaged or concealed 

so that it blends in with the natural surroundings or the built environment. 

 

30. Temporary – Of limited duration; not permanent. 

 

31. Temporary Asphalt or Concrete Batch Plant – A temporary facility or area for mixing 

concrete or asphalt to be used for new construction on the Property. 

 

32. Temporary Construction Field Office – A facility or area used as a temporary field 

construction office. 

 

33. Temporary Construction Storage Yard – A facility or area for the temporary outside 

storage of construction equipment and materials associated with an active permit to 

demolish or construct. 

 

34. Temporary Outdoor Sales – An area used for the temporary outdoor sale of general 

merchandise or seasonal merchandise to the public. 

 

35. Utility Lines, Towers, or Metering Station – This use is defined as set forth in the UDC. 

In addition, this use may include windmills and solar-powered panels. 

 

36. Wireless Communications Facilities – Meaning Telecommunication towers, antennas, 

and other facilities regulated by Article 24 [Wireless Telecommunications Facilities] of 

the UDC.  

 

37. UDC – meaning Chapter 28 of the Code of Ordinances known as the UDC of the City of 

Grand Prairie, TX, as passed and approved by the City Council on the 20th day of 

November, 1990. 

 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 18 of 47



19 

 

IV. PD Amendment and Development Review Procedures 

a. Zoning Change 

1. Property Owner Consent for PD Amendments. PD amendments are authorized for all or a 

portion of the land governed by this PD. With the exception of PD amendments initiated by 

the City, all requests to amend this PD shall only be accompanied by the written consent of 

the owners of the land that is the subject of the amendment, to the extent permitted by law. 

A request to amend or an amendment to this PD with respect to a portion of the Property 

shall not affect this PD as it applies to the remainder of the Property, unless otherwise 

provided by law. A request to amend specific provisions of this PD (regardless of the portion 

of the Property to which the amendment applies) shall not affect the remaining provisions of 

this PD, unless otherwise provided by law. 

 

2. Approval Authority. The Planning Director, or designee has the authority to authorize minor 

amendments as provided by this PD. 

 

3.  Specific Use Permits. The provisions of Article 5 [Specific Uses] of the Unified 

Development Code (UDC), as well as all definitions in Article 30 [Definitions] of the UDC 

pertaining thereto, shall apply to all requests for Specific Use Permits, except that any 

applicable landscape requirements shall be in compliance with the standards of this PD, not 

the standards of Article 8 [Landscape and Screening] of the UDC specifically related to 

Landscaping. 

b. Site Plan Approval 

1. Approval Required. Prior to the submittal of an application for a preliminary plat for any 

portion of the Property, a Site Plan for that portion of the Property must be submitted to City 

Council for consideration in accordance with this Section IV.b  

 

2. Procedures. Site Plan shall be sent to Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council for 

approval. Plans with no variances shall be placed on the agenda for ministerial or non-

discretionary approval. 

3. Site Plan Content. A Site Plan must include the following information: 

a. Proposed land use including the approximate number of dwelling units, bed count, 

and square footage of each type such as Multi-family and hotel. 

b. The percentage of each type of dwelling unit compared to all dwelling units in this 

PD, considering the units requested and all units approved in previous Site Plans 

(based on the approximate numbers provided in (a). 

c. The location and width of proposed thoroughfares, and a designation of the streets as 

boulevards or non-boulevards. 

d. The location, of proposed landscaping within common areas and public right-of-way. 

e. The location and size of proposed parks and open space areas. 

f. The location and width of proposed trails.  

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 19 of 47



20 

 

g. Elevations that generally depict representative architecture along a typical block face 

within the Site Plan area. A separate elevation shall be submitted for each building 

type proposed within a Site Plan area. For purposes of this paragraph, the following 

are considered building types: multi-family (not in a mixed-use building); a mixed-

use building that includes multi-family uses; and a non-residential building. The 

applicant may submit additional materials depicting the typical architecture within the 

Site Plan area for the City Council’s consideration. All required elevations shall 

include sufficient detail to allow the City Council to evaluate the general style and 

architecture of the development within the Site Plan area, including, but not limited 

to, identification of predominant exterior building materials and the proposed color 

palette. Samples of the detail that should be provided in elevations are illustrated in 

Exhibit I. 

h. A comprehensive fence plan indicating fencing materials, colors, heights, and general 

locations. 

4. Approval Criteria. 

a. The City Council shall approve a Site Plan if it complies with this PD and all other 

applicable City ordinances. Except as expressly stated in Section IV.b.4.b, the City 

Council shall not impose conditions on the approval of a Site Plan other than 

conditions that bring a Site Plan into compliance with this PD and all other applicable 

City ordinances. 

b. The City Council may deny approval of elevations or impose reasonable conditions 

on representative building elevations required by Section IV.b.3.i to assure that 

buildings within the Site Plan area (i) include adequate articulation; (ii) include a 

sufficient mix of design features to avoid monotony; (iii) incorporate design features 

oriented to pedestrians at street level; and (iv) are high quality. 

5. Effect of Site Plan Approval. 

Development of the Property shall substantially comply with approved Site Plans.  A Site 

Plan must be approved prior to plat approval for that portion of the Property. In determining 

substantial compliance, elevations that are part of an approved Site Plan are intended to 

illustrate representative architectural styles and typical implementation of PD design 

standards and shall not be interpreted to require buildings to be constructed with identical 

elevations.  

6. Amendments.  

Minor amendments to an approved Site Plan may be approved by the Planning Director, or 

designee pursuant to Article 7 [Special Districts] of the Unified Development Code (UDC) 

(i.e. Section 1 in the UDC specifically related to Planned Development District). Any other 

amendments to an approved Site Plan shall be processed in the same manner as the original 

Site Plan, but amendments are not required to be submitted in connection with a plat. 

(Changes to Plat does not necessarily require update of the Site Plan, but changes to the Site 

Plan that affect Platting may require amendment to a Plat. 

The Site Plan review procedures set forth in this article are the exclusive Site Plan review 

procedures applicable to the Property. 

 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 20 of 47



21 

 

V. Permitted Uses.  

No land shall be used, and no building shall be erected or converted to any use other than the 

following: 

a. Principal Uses. 

1. Permitted Uses Table. See the permitted use table titled Exhibit D. The principal uses 

followed by “P” are permitted by right. Uses followed by “S” are permitted by Specific 

Use Permit (SUP) and “C” Special Conditions. Special conditions are indicated in the 

Notes column and in the lettered noted following the Table. Except as otherwise 

provided in Subsection 2 below for similar uses, all uses not listed in Exhibit D are 

prohibited. 

2.   Similar Uses Allowed. Uses not specifically listed in Exhibit D, but of a similar type and 

nature to those uses listed in Exhibit D, are permitted as determined by the 

administrative official.  

3.   Prohibition of Certain Gas-Related Uses. Surface extraction and associated accessory 

uses such as tanks and pipelines, all uses related to gas compression, processing, and 

storage (including, but not limited to, compression facilities and saltwater disposal 

wells) are expressly prohibited. 

b.  Accessory Uses. Accessory uses are permitted. However, no accessory use is permitted 

without a primary use. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the following 

accessory uses are permitted: 

 1. Accessory caretaker’s quarters. 

 2. Accessory Community Center, Private. 

An accessory community center may include a restaurant open to members and their guests. 

An accessory community center may also include banquet facilities that may be rented for 

special occasions, such as wedding receptions and parties. 

 3. Accessory Garage, Private. 

 4. Accessory Outside Display and Sales. 

When in connection with non-residential uses, outdoor display of merchandise shall be 

limited to the area immediately along the front of the building, extending no further than ten 

feet from the front of the building. All incidental outdoor displays shall be located on 

hardscape areas. No merchandise may be displayed in any landscaped area, or areas not hard 

surfaced. Incidental displays shall be removed at the end of each business day, providing that 

a display may be placed again the next day. Incidental display of seasonal items, such as 

plants, lawn/garden supplies, firewood, Christmas trees and similar goods may be conducted 

for periods longer than one business day during the season in which the product is used. 

 5. Accessory Outside Storage: 

 

When in connection with a non-residential uses and visible from ground level on an adjacent 

street, this use shall be screened with a masonry wall that is a minimum of six feet in height, 

and none of the items stored may project above the screening wall. The perimeter of the 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 21 of 47



22 

 

screening wall shall be landscaped with a minimum 12-inch-wide landscape strip containing 

shrubs, vines, or a combination of both. 

 

6. Accessory Swimming Pool, Private.  

 

 7. Amenity Center. 

 

c. Special Conditions Applicable to Certain Uses. 

 

1. Gas Well Drilling and Production. 

 

 Gas well drilling and production is permitted on the Property subject to the Gas drilling in 

all areas is permitted by SUP only. 

 

2. General Retail Store, Other Than Listed. 

 

Without limiting the generality of the definition of this use in Section III.A of this PD, this 

use may include the sale of wine, beer, and liqour for off-premise consumption, as well as 

on-premise consumption of wine, beer, and liquor in compliance with all applicable local, 

state, and federal regulations. 

 

3. Temporary Asphalt or Concrete Batch Plant. 

 

This use is permitted on the Property in connection with the issuance of a construction 

permit. This use may include associated temporary buildings, such as trailers. This use shall 

cease operation upon completion of construction on the Property. This use must be in 

compliance with all applicable local, state, and federal regulations. 

 

4. Temporary Construction Field Office 

This use is permitted on the Property in connection with the issuance of a permit authorizing 

the construction of structures or infrastructure improvements. 

 

This use may be operated from a temporary building, such as a trailer. This use shall cease 

operation, and the building shall be removed, upon completion of construction of 

improvements or structures on the Property. 

 

5. Temporary Construction Storage Yard. 

 

This use is permitted on the Property in connection with the issuance of a permit authorizing 

the construction of structures or infrastructure improvements. This use may include 

associated temporary buildings, such as trailers. This use shall cease operation upon 

completion of construction of improvements or structures on the Property. 

 

6. Temporary Outdoor Sales. 

 

This use may include a temporary farmers market. For the sale of seasonal merchandise, this 

use shall not exceed 90 days. For the sale of non-seasonal merchandise, this use shall not 

exceed 14 days. 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 22 of 47



23 

 

 

7. Wireless Communications Facilities. 

 

Except as otherwise provided in this section, the provisions of Article 24 [Wireless 

Telecommunications Facilities] of the Unified Development Code, as well as all definitions 

in the Unified Development Code pertaining thereto, apply. Mounted antennas may be 

located on mixed-use and non-residential buildings. Unless towers are stealth towers or 

micro towers, towers are permitted only in the area identified on Exhibit E. Stealth towers 

and micro towers are permitted at any location on the property. All towers are subject to the 

height restrictions and SUP requirements set forth in Article 24 of the UDC (i.e. Table 1 in 

the UDC specifically related to Summary of Wireless Telecommunication Facilities). 

 

VI. Restrictions on Multi-Family 

 

a. Multi-family development shall be restricted as follows: 

 

1. Maximum density for Multi-Family development is 80 units per acre. 

 

2. Garden-Style Multi-family. 

 

Garden-Style Multi-family is not allowed in this PD. Garden-Style multi-family is multi-

family development that consists of a maximum of ten dwelling units on a platted lot, all of 

which shall be in a single building. Garden-Style multi-family does not include multi-family 

within a mixed-use building.  

 

3. Multi-family. 

 

Multi-family is multi-family development that is a minimum of four stories in height. Multi-

family buildings also include buildings designed as Mixed-Use. Requirements of this PD 

that apply to Multi-family buildings also apply to Mixed-Use Multi-Family.Mixed-Use 

Multi-family consists of multi-family development within a mixed-use building. To qualify 

as a mixed-use building the building must include a second use that occupies at least 15% of 

the occupiable ground floor gross area (excluding parking areas) and must be built as, or 

convertible to, non-residential or have multi-family related uses other than dwelling units 

(including, but not limited to, any apartment related support facilities on the first floor. i.e. 

coffee shop, leasing office, fitness room, laundry room, etc.). 

 

b. Multi-family dwelling units shall have no stairwells visible from outside the property line of the 

multi-family dwelling units. 

 

c. The minimum dwelling unit area for multi-family dwelling units is 350 square feet; however, 

the minimum dwelling unit area must average a minimum of 700 square feet when considering 

all dwelling units within a multi-family building. 

 

VII. Building Setback, Area, and Bulk Requirements 

 

A. Requirements for Multi-Family, Mixed-use Buildings and Non-Residential Development. 

 

1. Requirements 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 23 of 47



24 

 

a. The requirements in the table below are the exclusive building setback, area, and bulk 

requirements applicable to multi-family buildings, mixed-use, and non-residential 

buildings, and any related accessory buildings. 

 

b. Without limitation, Article 8 [Landscape and Screening] of the UDC relating to the 

building setback, area, bulk and design requirements does not apply to any structures 

other than fences and retaining walls, except to the extent Article 8 cannot be varied 

by this PD.  
 

c. The Planning Director, or designee may approve alternative materials and methods to 

the fence and retaining wall restrictions in Article 8 to the extent the alternate materials 

or methods are equal or better in function and durability (i.e. Section 10 of the Unified 

Development Code specifically related to Fencing.) 

 

d. Swimming pools shall have a minimum five-foot setback from rear and side property 

lines; however, such setback applies only to the swimming pool, and not to associated 

decking or paving around the pool. 

 

Table VII-1: Building Setbacks and Height Restrictions 
 

 Multi-Family Mixed-use, and Non-Residential Development 

Maximum 

Setback from a 

Street 

Street frontages (ft) 

     Minimum – 15’ 

Interior, min. (ft) 

     Side and/or rear – 5’ 

Maximum 

Height 

15 stories. 

Exceptions: 

a) No height limit for a Full-Service Hotel. 

 

 

 

VIII. Design Standards 

A. Applicability of Other Design Standards. 

 

1. The design standards published in the Grand Prairie Unified Development Code, Appendix 

F: Corridor Overlay District Standards, Section 7 – Building Design, dated. March 19, 2019 

will apply to all Non-residential, Multi-family buildings except as noted in Section VIII of 

this PD.  

 

2. In any conflict between the text of this article, and the UDC, this article shall prevail 

 

B. Approved Building Materials. 

 

 In the context of approved building materials, a facade does not include doors, fascia, windows, 

chimneys, dormers, window box-outs, bay windows, soffits, eaves, and outdoor fireplaces. 

Multiple buildings on the same lot will each be deemed to have separate facades. 

 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 24 of 47



25 

 

1. Non-Residential and Multi-Family buildings shall comply with the approved building 

materials listed in Appendix F, Section 7, paragraph C of the UDC, dated March19, 2019 

with the following exceptions:  

 

a. Exterior Insulation and Finish System (EIFS). EIFS is not permitted. 

 

2. Residential buildings other than Multi-Family buildings shall comply with the approved 

building materials listed in Appendix W, Section 3, paragraph I of the UDC, dated March 

20, 2018 with the following exceptions:  

 

a. Exterior Insulation and Finish System (EIFS). EIFS is not permitted. 

 

b. Cementitious fiber board is permitted subject to the following conditions: the style 

and color of a building using this product must be approved as part of a Site Plan, 

must not be visible from the street, and limited to court yards with interior exposure 

only.  

c. Paragraph I. A. 9. of Appendix W, Section 3 of the UDC regarding roof design and 

treatments does not apply. 

 

 

C. Roofing Design and Materials. 

 

1. Roofing materials for sloped roofs shall be selected from the following list: 

 

a. Asphalt shingles. 

 

b. Industry approved synthetic shingles. 

 

c. Standing seam metal roofs / alternate style metal roofs. 

 

d. Tile roofs (concrete or clay). 

 

e. Slate roofs. 

 

f. LEED-certified roofing materials; or 

g. An alternative material approved by the Planning Director, or designee based on a 

finding that it is of a quality equal to or better than the materials listed above in 

durability. 

 

2. All pitched roofs of non-residential buildings shall have a minimum pitch of 4:12, and all 

pitched roofs of residential buildings shall have a minimum pitch of 6:12. Roofs covering 

porches and other architectural elements are excluded from this requirement. The Planning 

Director, or designee may approve a roof that does not meet these requirements based on a 

finding that a different roof pitch is appropriate for the proposed architectural style. 

 

3. Flat roofs require parapet screening, a minimum of two feet, eight inches in height, that 

adheres to vertical articulation requirements for the facade. 

 

4. Parapets shall require cornice detailing. 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 25 of 47



26 

 

 

D. Design Features for Multi-Family  and Non-Residential Buildings 

1. The design standards published in the Grand Prairie Unified Development Code, Appendix 

F: Corridor Overlay District Standards, Section 7 – Building Design, dated. March 19, 2019 

will apply to all Non-residential, Multi-family buildings except as noted in Section VIII D 

of this PD.  

 

2. The design standards in this article are the exclusive design standards applicable to the 

Property. Subsequent changes to the UDC will not apply. 

 
3. Non-residential, and Multi-family buildings shall comply with the following requirements: 

 

1. Cladding materials used on a facade shall extend a minimum of 20 feet around building 

corners onto adjacent facades, other than facades abutting an alley. 

 

2. All buildings must include at least four of the following design features, and buildings that 

are greater than 20,000 square feet in floor area must include at least six of the following 

design features: 

 

a. Canopies, archways, covered walkways, or porticos. 

 

b. Awnings. 

 

c. Arcades. 

 

d. Courtyards. 

 

e. Cupolas. 

 

f. Balconies. 

 

g. Tower elements. 

h. Recesses, projections; columns; pilasters projecting from the planes; offsets; reveals; or 

projecting ribs used to express architectural or structural bays. 

 

i. Varied roof heights for pitched, peaked, sloped, or flat roof styles. 

 

j. Articulated cornice line. 

 

k. Arches. 

 

l. Display windows, faux windows, or decorative glass windows. 

m. Architectural details, such as tile work and molding, or accent materials integrated into 

the building façade. 

 

n. Integrated planters or wing walls that incorporate landscaping and sitting areas or 

outdoor patios. 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 26 of 47



27 

 

 

o. Integrated water features; or 

 

p. Other similar architectural features approved by the Planning Director, or designee. 

 

E. Drive-Through Windows. 

 

Drive-through windows associated with restaurants are permitted only within 500 feet of the 360 

Frontage Road. Drive through windows associated with all other uses are limited to the area 

illustrated on the Concept Plan or the area within 500 feet of the 360 Frontage Road. 

 

F. Entries. 

1. Non-residential  and Multi-family buildings shall comply with the following requirements: 

 

a. All ground floor entrances shall be covered or inset. 

b. Building entrances shall be articulated with architectural elements such as columns, 

porticos, porches, and overhangs. 

 

G. Building Articulation. 

Non-residential  and Multi-family buildings shall comply with the following articulation 

requirements: 

 

1. All facades adjacent to and facing a street or public open space shall comply with the 

following standards, as illustrated on Exhibit F: 

 

a. No building facade shall extend for a distance greater than three times the mean height 

of the facade without having an offset of 15 percent of more of the mean height of the 

facade. This off-set shall extend for a distance equal to at least 25 percent of the length 

of the adjacent plane described in the preceding sentence. 

 

b. No portion of a horizontal facade that is the same height shall extend for a distance 

greater than three times that height without changing height by a minimum of 15 percent. 

This height change shall continue for a distance equal to at least 25 percent of the length 

of the adjacent plane described in the preceding sentence. 

 

2. Facades adjacent to and facing a street or public open space shall include material changes 

or changes in relief such as columns, cornices, bases, fenestration, and fluted masonry. 

 

3. The top floor of any building shall contain a distinctive finish, consisting of a cornice, 

banding, or other architectural termination. In addition, the bottom one-third of any building 

exceeding six stories shall be distinguished from the remainder of the building by providing 

a distinctive level of detail, such as columns, pilasters, masonry base rustication, unique 

masonry detailing, unique fenestration, or other distinctive material or color variation. 

 

H. Transparency. 

1. At least 25 percent of each residential multi-family facade (excluding mixed-use buildings) 

adjacent to and facing a street or public open space shall contain windows or doorways. 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 27 of 47



28 

 

 

2. At least 40 percent of each facade in non-residential buildings or mixed-use buildings 

(excluding multi-family), adjacent to and facing a street or public open space shall contain 

windows or doorways, except that on a mixed-use building containing residential uses, at 

least 40 percent of the first floor of each facade adjacent to a street or public open space shall 

contain windows or doorways, and at least 25 percent of the upper floors of each facade 

adjacent to a street or public open space shall contain windows or doorways. 

 

I. Outdoor Storage. 

 

Outdoor storage is prohibited in connection with a non-residential use unless the Planning 

Director, or designee approves it based upon a finding that the adverse effects of such storage 

have been mitigated through adequate restrictions regarding the storage location and type of 

screening. This provision does not apply to accessory outside storage, which is required to be 

screened in accordance with Section V.b.5 of this PD. 

 

With the exception of temporary construction fencing, the following types of fences are 

prohibited: chain link, barbed wire, pipe, vinyl, and razor wire fences. 

 

J. Pedestrian Connectivity. 

 

When a block face developed with non-residential uses or mixed-use buildings exceeds 500 feet 

in length, pedestrian access through the block shall be provided. Such access may be provided 

through a pedestrian access easement, a business open to the public, or any other means that 

provides pedestrian access during regular business hours. 

 

 

IX. Grant of Permission for use of Right-Of-Way 

 

A. Grant of permission. 

 

The Council hereby grants a non-exclusive revocable permission subject to an easement use 

agreement for each named improvement to each owner of land and tenant within the Property 

boundaries to use the public right of way within the Property boundaries for the exclusive 

purpose of constructing, operating, repairing and maintaining the following improvements and 

any improvements reasonably related thereto or necessary for the operation thereof: 

 

1. Street and pedestrian lighting, 

 

2. Public seating areas, 

 

3. Landscaping and related amenities, including fountains, 

 

4. Monuments, statues, or other public artwork, 

 

5. Street furniture, including benches, 

 

6. Drinking fountains, 

 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 28 of 47



29 

 

7. Trash containers, 

 

8. Tunnels; 

 

9. Security cameras, 

 

10. Bollards, 

 

11. Temporary construction barricades, 

 

12. Underground duct banks, 

 

13. Pedestrian bridges and overpasses, 

 

14. Arches, 

 

15. String lighting, and 

 

16. Wiring 

 

The Planning Director, or designee may authorize additional items (other than those enumerated 

in this Section A above) to be included in the permission if such items do not interfere with the 

public use of the right of way. 

 

B. Limitations. 

 

This permission will not terminate at the end of any specific time period, however, the Council 

reserves and has the absolute right to terminate this permission at will, by adoption of a 

resolution, at any time such termination becomes necessary. Written notice shall be provided to 

the abutting property owner as listed on the current tax roll 15 days in advance of the Council 

meeting. 

 

The determination by the City of the necessity of the termination is final and binding, and the 

City is entitled to possession of the premises without giving any additional notice and without 

necessity of legal proceedings to obtain possession thereof, when in its judgment, the purpose or 

use of this permission is inconsistent with the public use of the right-of-way or the purpose or 

use of this permission is likely to become a nuisance or a public safety issue. 

 

Upon termination of the permission by the Council, each owner or tenant shall remove all 

improvements and installations in the public right-of-way to the satisfaction of the Director of 

Public Works and Transportation. 

 

The City reserves the right to require the relocation of improvements and encumbrances at the 

owners’ or tenants’ expense for any construction project within the right of way, as determined 

by the Director of Public Works and Transportation, or when in the City’s sole discretion it is 

warranted by the public health, safety and welfare. 

 

C. Insurance Required. 

 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 29 of 47



30 

 

Upon the conducting of any activities or installing any of the improvements described in Section 

A, it is a condition to continuation of the license that there be in place commercial general 

liability insurance coverage with an insurance company authorized to do business in the State of 

Texas and otherwise acceptable to the City, covering, but not limited to, the liability assumed 

under the license granted under this section, with combined single limits of liability for bodily 

injury and property damage of not less than $1,000,000 for each occurrence, $2,000,000 annual 

aggregate. Coverage under this liability policy must be on an “occurrence” basis and the City 

shall be named as additional insured. Proof of such insurance must be sent to: Viridian Golf LP; 

and the policy must provide for thirty days prior written notice to the Office of Risk Management 

of cancellation, expiration, non-renewal, or other material change in coverage. All subrogation 

rights for loss or damage against the City are hereby waived to the extent same are covered by 

the liability insurance policy. In the event there is more than one license holder, such holders 

shall be individually, and not joint and severally, liable hereunder. 

 

D. Maintenance. 

 

Each owner or tenant placing permitted improvements in the right-of-way shall be responsible 

for obtaining all required construction and building permits and maintaining and keeping the 

improvements safe and from deteriorating in value or condition at no expense to the City. The 

City shall be absolutely exempt from any requirement to make repairs to or to maintain the 

permitted improvements. 

 

E. Staff Review. 

1. The Director of Public Works and Transportation shall review all proposed improvements 

described by Section A, and shall approve a proposed improvement if: 

 

a. The improvement will not unreasonably interfere with pedestrian or vehicular traffic, the 

design and location of the improvement includes all reasonable planning to  minimize 

potential harm or injury to or interference with the public in the use of the public street, 

and the improvement will not create any hazardous condition or obstruction of vehicular 

or pedestrian travel upon the public street; and 

b. There is clear, continuous, and unobstructed passageway for pedestrians that is a 

minimum of five feet in width with a minimum vertical clearance of eight feet, provided, 

however, that where unusual circumstances exist, the requirement could be less than five 

feet in width where it is certain that public safety would not be jeopardized 

 

2. The Planning Director, or designee shall review all proposed improvements described by 

Section A in the context of land use compatibility, architectural consistency, character of the 

development, and pedestrian mobility. If the Planning Director, or designee determines that 

a permitted improvement is inappropriate based on the foregoing standards, an applicant  

may appeal that determination to the Zoning Board of Adjustment within 15 days after the 

decision in accordance with the procedures set forth in Article 2 [Authority] of the Unified 

Development Code (i.e. Section 5.1 in the UDC specifically related to Zoning Board of 

Adjustment and Appeals). 

 

X. Landscaping 

A. The landscape requirements in this article are the exclusive landscaping requirements applicable 

to the Property. Unless otherwise stated in this article, the requirements of Article 8 of the UDC 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 30 of 47



31 

 

(Landscape and Screening) do not apply. (i.e. Sections 9 and 10 of Article 8 of the UDC 

specifically related to Screening, and Fencing do not apply). 

 

B. Parkways adjacent to multi-family and non-residential buildings shall be landscaped in 

accordance with Appendix F, Section 10 of the UDC, dated March19, 2019. 

 

Except as follows: 

a. The tree planting requirement of the UDC does not apply (i.e., Appendix F Section 

10 Paragraph B.2 does not apply.) 

 

b. The landscape setback shall be measured from the inside boundary line of the 

pedestrian access and utility easement (not the street-side boundary line). 

 

c. All required landscape materials shall be irrigated with an automatic irrigation system, 

however, landscaping in above ground planters may be irrigated by hand or with an 

automatic irrigation system. All automatic irrigation systems shall have rain and 

freeze sensors. 

 

C. Parking lots for multi-family  and non-residential buildings shall be landscaped as described 

below: 

 

a. A maximum of 10 uninterrupted parking spaces are permitted in a row before relieved 

by a landscaped island. 

 

b. Landscaped islands are required at the end of each parking aisle. 

c. All landscaped islands shall be a minimum of seven feet in width and the depth of a 

parking space. If a double row of parking is provided, the island shall be the depth of 

both rows. 

 

d. At least 15 percent of a parking lot shall be landscaped. 

 

e. Landscaped islands shall have at least one tree and shall be landscaped with ground 

cover. Trees shall be a minimum of three inches in caliper at the time of planting, 

except that trees located at the end of parking aisles must be a minimum of four inches 

in caliper at the time of planting. Trees may be located within landscaped islands, 

minimum four foot by four-foot landscape diamonds, or other landscaped areas within 

a parking lot. 

 

f. The total number of trees within a parking lot shall equal at least one tree for every 

20 parking spaces within the parking lot. 

 

g. All required landscape materials shall be irrigated with an automatic irrigation system, 

however, landscaping in above ground planters may be irrigated by hand or with an 

automatic irrigation system. 

 

D. All required trees must be of a species approved for planting under Article 8 of the Unified 

Development Code (i.e. the approved plant list in Article 8 Exhibit 5 in the UDC). 

 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 31 of 47



32 

 

XI. Tree Preservation 

A. This article contains the exclusive tree preservation requirements applicable to the Property. The 

property contains approximately 250 acres of landscaped golf course with naturally occurring 

and planted trees. Along with additional street trees, parking lot trees and landscaping, and other 

landscape improvements, the Design Guidelines of this PD replace the tree preservation 

standards of Article 8 [Landscape and Screening] in the Unified Development Code.  

 

XII. Screening 

A. Rooftop Equipment. 

 

Rooftop equipment shall be screened from view at ground level. (Parapet walls referenced in 

Section VIII C.3 shall fulfill this screening requirement (i.e. Article 8 Section 9.7.1 of the 

Unified Development Code, pertaining to Other Screening Requirements -Mechanical and 

Electrical Equipment). 

 

B. Trash Storage Areas. 

 

Outdoor trash storage areas visible from a street must be screened on three sides by a solid wall 

at least eight feet in height of a material that is consistent with the exterior building material of 

the main building that the storage area serves. Decorative metal opaque gates shall be used to 

access such trash collection areas. The perimeter of screening walls shall be landscaped with a 

minimum 12-inch wide landscape strip containing shrubs, vines, or a combination of both. 

 

C. Off-Street Loading and Service Areas. 

 

Off-street loading and service areas must be screened by walls consistent with the architectural 

style and materials of the associated building at least eight feet in height, and by planting 

evergreen plant material capable of growing to eight feet in height within 18 months after 

planting. For schools, decorative fencing, six feet in height, may be used in lieu of solid walls  

with planting material that meets transparency requirements for school security. 

 

XIII. Parking 

A. General Provisions. 

 

1. Except as otherwise provided in this paragraph, required parking must be off-street parking. 

Head-in and parallel parking spaces located on streets are permitted and count toward 

required parking. Head-in parking is not permitted if maneuvering is done on an arterial 

street, unless the maneuvering is done on a slip road. 

 

2. Unless otherwise stated, all parking spaces may be enclosed or unenclosed. 

 

B. Off-Premise Parking. 

Except as otherwise provided in this article, parking spaces must be located on the same platted 

lot as the use that they serve. 

 

C. Minimum Parking Requirements. 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 32 of 47



33 

 

 

See Table XIII.1 for the minimum parking requirements for each principal use. Parking is not 

required for floor area devoted to common areas, such as common areas associated with indoor 

malls and the lobbies of office buildings. If a use has a drive through window, a minimum of six 

stacking spaces shall be provided in addition to the parking requirements listed in Table XIII.1. 

 

Table XIII-1 Minimum Parking Requirements: 

PERMITTED USE MINIMUM PARKING REQUIREMENT
2
 

INSTITUTIONAL 

Religious Assembly 1 per 4 seats in sanctuary or auditorium 

Community Center 1:200 SF 

 

Government Administration and Civic Buildings 
To be determined by Planning Director, or designee based 

on most similar use 

OFFICES 

  

Offices, Government and Business 3:1,000 SF 

RECREATION AND ENTERTAINMENT USES 

Country Club with Golf Course 1:300 SF 

Park, Playground, or Golf Course Golf course 9.8 per hole; otherwise none 

Private Club, Lodge, or Fraternal Organization 1:200 SF 

 

 

 

Recreation and Entertainment, Indoor 

Theater – 1 per 4 seats; Bowling Alley – 6 per lane; 

Pool Halls and Other Commercial Amusements (Indoor) 

– 1:100 SF; Racquetball Court – 4 per court; Health 

Club – 1:200 SF 

 

 

 

 

 

RESIDENTIAL AND LODGING USES 

 

 

 

Hotel, Full Service 

1 per guest room up to 100 rooms; then 0.75 per guest 

room over 100; 50 percent of these spaces may be 

counted to satisfy the parking requirements of accessory 

uses 

 

Multi-Family 
1.65 per dwelling unit for the first 50 dwelling units; 

1.50 per dwelling unit thereafter 

RETAIL AND PERSONAL SERVICE USES 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 33 of 47



34 

 

  

  

  

General Personal Services (Cleaning, Laundry) 3:1,000 SF 

General Personal Services (Copy Center) 3:1,000 SF 

Custom and Craft Work 1:400 SF 

Farmers Market 1:1,000 SF of site area 

General Retail Store, Other Than Listed 3:1,000 SF (1:400 SF for furniture sales) 

Open-Air Vending None 

Personal Services 3:1,000 SF 

Restaurant 1:150 SF 

TEMPORARY USES 

Temporary Asphalt or Concrete Batch Plant None 

Temporary Construction Field Office None 

Temporary Construction Storage Yard None 

Temporary Outdoor Sales None 

UTILITY, COMMUNICATION, AND TRANSPORTATION USES 

Electric Generating Plant None 

Electric Utility Substation None 

Utility Lines, Towers, or Metering Station None 

Wireless Telecommunication Facilities (Including Radio, 

Television, or Microwave Tower) 
 

None 

2 
Fractional parking requirements shall be rounded up to the nearest whole number. Unless otherwise stated, 

references to square footage are to floor area. 

 

D.  Mixed-use Parking. 

 

This Section D only applies to parking for a mixed-use building. 

 

1. Off-Premise Parking. 

 

a. Residential Uses. 

 

Required parking spaces for residential uses are not required to be located on the 

same lot as the use they serve; however, such spaces must be within 300 feet of the 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 34 of 47



35 

 

use they serve if they are not located on the same lot. 

 

b. Non-Residential Uses. 

 

Parking spaces for non-residential uses, whether required or excess, are not 

required to be located on the same lot as the use that they serve; however, such 

spaces must be within 600 feet of the use they serve if they are not located on the 

same lot. 

 

2. Shared Parking. 

 

The minimum parking requirements above may be reduced using the occupancy rates 

in Table XIII.2 below to calculate the adjusted parking requirements, and the parking 

requirement shall be determined by the adjusted off-street parking calculation: 

 

Table XIII-2: Shared Parking Requirements 
 

Time of Day Weekday   Weekend   

Use 
12am – 

8am 8am – 6pm 
6pm – 

12am 

12am – 

8am 8am – 6pm 
6pm – 

12am 

Office 5% 100% 20% 5% 5% 5% 

Restaurant 10% 70% 100% 20% 70% 100% 

Retail 5% 90% 80% 5% 100% 70% 

Entertainment 10% 40% 100% 50% 80% 100% 

Hotel 100% 70% 100% 100% 70% 100% 

Institutional (non- 

church) 5% 100% 20% 5% 10% 10% 

Institutional 

(church) 
5% 10% 5% 5% 100% 50% 

Conference / 

Meeting Room 5% 100% 100% 5% 100% 100% 

Residential 100% 60% 100% 100% 80% 100% 

All other uses 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

 

3. Calculation of the adjusted off-street parking requirements will be as follows: 

 

a. Determine the parking requirements for each use within the PD. 

 

b. Multiply the parking requirement calculated per Table XIII.1 by the occupancy rate for 

that category of use in Table XIII.2. See Table XIII.3 for the shared parking category 

of use for each land use listed in Table XIII.1. 

 

c. Total the time of day columns for both weekday and weekend to determine the parking 

demand at each time of day. 

 

d. The column with the largest sum is the adjusted off-street parking requirement. 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 35 of 47



36 

 

 

4. Example of adjusted parking calculations: 

 

a. 50,000 sq. ft. office, 30,000 sq. ft. retail and 20,000 sq. ft. restaurant, respectively. 

b. Individual office parking requirements: (3 spaces/1,000 sq. ft.)(50,000 sq. ft.) = 150 

spaces 

 

c. Individual retail parking requirements: (3 spaces/1,000 sq. ft.)(30,000 sq. ft.) = 90 spaces 

 

d. Individual restaurant requirements: (1 space/100 sq. ft.)(20,000 sq. ft.) = 200 spaces 

 

e. Total: 150 + 90 + 200 = 440 total spaces 

 

f. Adjusted parking calculation for weekdays and weekends is as follows: 
 

 

g. Solution to example calculation: 

 

371 spaces required, i.e., the highest total for any time period both weekday and 

weekend (Allows a 16 percent savings from 440 spaces). The categories of shared 

parking attributable to each use are identified in Table XIII.3. 

 

Table XIII-3: Uses within Each Shared Parking Category 
 

Weekday 

Time of Day 

12mid - 8am 8am - 6pm 6pm - 12mid 

Office (.05)(150) =8 (1.0)(150)=150 (0.2)(150)=30 

Retail (.05)(90) =5 (0.9)(90) =81 (0.8)(90)=72 

Restaurant (0.1)(200)=20 (0.7)(200) =140 (1.0)(200)=200 

Total 33 371 302 

Weekend 

Time of Day 

12mid-8am 8am - 6pm 6pm-12mid 

Office (.05)(150)=8 (.05)(150)=8 (.05)(150)=8 

Retail (.05)(90)=5 (1.0)(90)=90 (0.7)(90)=63 

Restaurant (0.2)(200)=40 (0.7)(200)=140 (1.0)(200)=200 

Total 53 238 271 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 36 of 47



37 

 

PERMITTED USE SHARED PARKING CATEGORY
1

 

INSTITUTIONAL  

Religious Assembly Not Eligible 

Community Center Not Eligible 

Government Administration and Civic Buildings Institutional (non-church) 

 

PERMITTED USE SHARED PARKING CATEGORY3 

OFFICES  

Offices Office 

RECREATION AND ENTERTAINMENT  

Country Club with Golf Course Not Eligible 

Nightclub Entertainment 

Park, Playground, or Golf Course Not Eligible 

Private Club, Lodge, or Fraternal Organization Institutional (non-church) 

Recreation and Entertainment, Indoor Entertainment 

RESIDENTIAL AND LODGING  

 

Hotel, Full Service 

Hotel or Conference/Meeting Room (As 

Applicable) 

Multi-Family Residential 

RETAIL AND PERSONAL SERVICE  

Bar Entertainment 

Catering Service Retail 

General Personal Services (Cleaning, Laundry) Retail 

General Personal Services (Copy Center) Retail 

Custom and Craft Work Retail 

Farmers Market Retail 

General Retail Store, Other Than Listed Retail 

Open Air Vending Not Eligible 

Personal Services Retail 

Restaurant Restaurant 

TEMPORARY  

Temporary Asphalt or Concrete Batch Plant Not Eligible 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 37 of 47



38 

 

Temporary Construction Field Office Not Eligible 

Temporary Construction Storage Yard Not Eligible 

Temporary Outdoor Sales Not Eligible 

UTILITY, COMMUNICATION, AND TRANSPORTATION  

Electric Generating Plant Not Eligible 

Utility Lines, Towers, or Metering Station Not Eligible 

Wireless Telecommunication Facilities (Including Radio, 

Television, or Microwave Tower) 

 

Not Eligible 

Electric Utility Substation Not Eligible 

1
Uses identified as “other” are not permitted to have reduced parking requirements through a shared parking 

arrangement (i.e., they are deemed to have a 100 percent occupancy). 

 

5. Master Parking Plan. 

 

a. Applicability. 

 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this subsection, only uses that utilize 

off- premise or shared parking are required to demonstrate parking requirements 

through a master parking plan. 

 

b. Initial Master Parking Plan. 

 

Prior to the issuance of the first building permit to construct new floor area served 

by off-premise or shared parking, an initial master parking plan shall be provided to 

the Planning Director, or designee. 

 

c. Periodic Updated Master Parking Plans Required. 

 

Except as otherwise provided below, the initial master parking plan shall be updated, 

and an updated plan submitted to the Planning Director, or designee, prior to any of 

the following: 

 

(1) Issuance of any subsequent building permits to construct new floor area 

served by off-premise or shared parking; 

 

(2) Issuance of a demolition permit to demolish existing floor area served by off- 

premise or shared parking; 

 

(3) Issuance of a certificate of occupancy that allows a new use or changes an 

existing use served by off-premise or shared parking; and 

 

(4) Making any change to a mixed-use building that increases or decreases the 

existing parking requirement if that building is served by off-premise or 

shared parking, regardless of whether such change requires a building permit 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 38 of 47



39 

 

or certificate of occupancy. 

 

d. Contents of Master Parking Plan. 

Both the initial and updated master parking plans shall contain the following 

information: 

 

(1) A tabulation box that includes the basis for the calculation of the parking 

requirement (e.g., amount of floor area; number of dwelling units, guest 

rooms, or beds) for each existing and proposed use served by off-premise or 

shared parking, and the resulting calculation of the parking requirement for 

such uses; 

The general location4 of all required parking identified under the preceding 

paragraph (the boundaries of the parking area and the total number of spaces 

within such area shall suffice); and 
 

(2) Identification of the particular parking spaces devoted to each mixed-use 

building containing a residential use for the purpose of confirming such 

parking spaces are within the required distances from the uses they serve. Only 

the parking spaces devoted to the residential portion must be identified. 

 

XIV. Off-Street Loading for Non-Residential Uses 

Off-street loading facilities may be accessed from a street or a private service drive or may 

consist of a berth within a structure. Off-street loading facilities shall be screened in accordance 

with the applicable provisions of this PD. On-street loading is permitted in designated loading 

zones. 

 
4 
It is not necessary to show each individual parking space. The outline of the parking lot, or the footprint of the 

parking garage, along with a notation regarding the number of parking spaces in such lot or garage, is sufficient. 

 

XV. Signs 

 

The Council may approve different sign regulations than the regulations in the UDC by 

approving an alternate sign package (i.e. Article 9 in the UDC specifically related to Sign 

Standards).  

 

XVI. Open Space 

 

A. The property contains approximately 250 acres of landscaped golf course. The Golf Course area 

will be considered the main open space for this zone. Additional parks and open space areas 

shall be designated on approved plats for the Property. 
 

B. A Final Park and Open Space Concept Plan shall be submitted to the City prior to submittal of a 

preliminary plat for any portion of the Property. 

 

XVII. Street Amenity Design Package 

A. The following street amenities will be provided in areas shown on the Concept Plan: pedestrian 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 39 of 47



40 

 

streetlamps, bike racks, litter containers, and street seating. Such amenities shall be installed 

concurrently with required landscaping.  

 

B. A street amenity design package shall be submitted along with the Site Plan for the portion of 

the Property being developed. The design package shall, at a minimum, include designs for 

pedestrian street amenities that are consistent with accepted urban design principles and 

compatible with the theme or architecture of the development depicted in the Site Plan 

application. The design package shall indicate the general location of street amenities proposed 

on or adjacent to the portion of the Property that is the subject of the Site Plan, and future Site 

Plans shall also show the proposed locations of street amenities. 

 

XVIII. Street Sections 

 

Streets must be provided in accordance with the proposed street sections shown on Exhibit G; 

however, this PD shall not be construed to modify the City’s standard minimum requirements for 

street construction and the dedication of public right-of-way. 

 

XIX. Pedestrian and Street Lighting Standards 

Street lighting and pedestrian lighting shall be provided in accordance with Exhibit H. 

  

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 40 of 47



41 

 

EXHIBIT F 

BUILDING ARTICULATION 

 

 No building facade shall extend for a distance greater than three times the mean height of the 

facade without having an off-set of 15 percent of more of the mean height of the facade. This off-

set shall extend for a distance equal to at least 25 percent of the length of the adjacent plane 

described in the preceding sentence. 

 

 No portion of a horizontal facade that is the same height shall extend for a distance greater than 

three times that height without changing height by a minimum of 15 percent. This height change 

shall continue for a distance equal to at least 25 percent of the length of the adjacent plane 

described in the preceding sentence. 
 

 

 

  

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 41 of 47



42 

 

EXHIBIT G  

STREET SECTION TABLE 

 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 42 of 47



43 

 

 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 43 of 47



44 

 

 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 44 of 47



45 

 

EXHIBIT H 

PEDESTRIAN AND STREET LIGHTING STANDARDS 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1A lower average pole height may be approved by the Director of Public Works upon a finding that 

the lower height will provide adequate lighting. 
2Different spacing may be approved by the Director of Public Works upon a finding that the 

alternative spacing will provide adequate lighting.  
3Illuminating Engineering Society of North America  

 

  

 

INDIVIDUAL STREET 

LIGHT 

INDIVIDUAL 

PEDESTRIAN LIGHT 

COMBINATION POLE 

FOR STREET & 

PEDESTRIAL LIGHT 

PEDESTRIAN 

LIGHTING IN PARKS 

Applicability For boulevards, street 

lighting shall be provided 

within the medians 

For boulevards, 

pedestrian lighting shall 

be provided along 

sidewalks 

For non-boulevards, 

combination pedestrian 

and street light poles 

shall be provided along 

sidewalks 

For public parks, 

pedestrian lighting 

shall be provided 

along trails and on 

bridges 

Maximum 

Illumination Level 

(Foot-candle) 

Per IESNA3 Per IESNA3 Per IESNA3 Per IESNA3 

Average Pole Height 

(Measured Along a 

Street within the 

Property)1 

20 feet 12 feet 20 feet for street lights 

and 12 feet for 

pedestrian lights 

12 feet 

Average Spacing2 180 feet 90 feet 90 feet 90 feet 

Location Criteria Centered in the median. 

Refer to the Standard 

Specification for Street 

Lighting, Department of 

Public Works & 

Transportation 

Al least four feet from 

back of curb. Centered 

between street trees. 

Average one light every 

15 feet on center 

At least four feet from 

back of curb. Centered 

between street trees. 

Average one light every 

15 feet on center. 

A maximum of one 

foot off the edge of a 

trail.  

Pole / Post 

Specification 

Capacity to 

accommodate vertical 

banner signs (twin 

banner arm) 

Capacity to 

accommodate vertical 

banner signs (twin 

banner arm) 

Capacity to 

accommodate vertical 

banner signs (twin 

banner arm) 

Capacity to 

accommodate 

vertical banner signs 

(twin banner arm) 

Light Source Type (HPS) and wattage to be determined by Photometric Mapping / Study. Luminaire shall meet 

cutoff classification and prevent unwanted light from spilling onto neighboring property. Lighting 

design shall meet IESNA's recommendations to uniformity and glare control. All streetlights are 

required to be LEDs.  

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 45 of 47



46 

 

EXHIBIT I 

ARCHITECTURAL STYLES 

Elevations that generally depict representative architecture along a typical block face within the Site 
Plan area. A separate elevation shall be submitted for each building type proposed within a Site Plan 
area.  

Single Family Townhomes 

 

 

 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 46 of 47



47 

 

Single Family Townhomes (Continued) 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit B - Proposed PD Document 
Page 47 of 47



 

 

UDC Shared Parking scheme (Article 10, UDC) 

 

 

Example of Shared Parking Calculations: 

 

A. Mixed use development - office, retail, restaurant: 50,000 sq. ft. office, 20,000 sq. ft. retail, and 8,000 sq. 

ft. restaurant, respectively. 

 

B. Individual parking requirements: 

 

  Office:  (1 space/375 sq. ft.) for (50,000 sq. ft.) = 133 Spaces 

  Retail:  (1 space/275 sq. ft.) for (20,000 sq. ft.) = 73 Spaces 

  Restaurant:  (1 space/100 sq. ft.) for (8,000 sq. ft.) = 80 Spaces 

                                                  

  Total:  133 + 73 + 80 = 286 Spaces 

 

C. Shared Parking Calculation are as follows: 

 

 

Time of Day Office Spaces Retail Spaces Restaurant Spaces Total Spaces 

6 a.m to 12 noon 1.00 * 133 = 133 0.97 * 73 = 71 0.50 * 80 = 40 244 

12 noon to 1 p.m. 0.90 * 133 = 120 1.00 * 73 = 73 0.70 * 80 = 56 249 

1 p.m. to 4 p.m. 0.97 * 133 = 129 0.97 * 73 = 71 0.60 * 80 = 48 248 

4 p.m. to 6 p.m. 0.47 * 133 = 63 0.82 * 73 = 60 1.00 * 80 = 80 203 

6 p.m. to 8 p.m. 0.07 * 133 = 9 0.89 * 73 = 65 1.00 * 80 = 80 154 

8 p.m. to 12 a.m. 0.03 * 133 = 4 0.61 * 73 = 45 1.00 * 80 = 80 129 

Table 11, Article 10, UDC 

249 spaces required, i.e., the highest total for any time period (Allows a 13 percent savings from 286 spaces). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Time of Day Office Retail Restaurant 

6 a.m to 12 noon 1.00 0.97 0.50 

12 noon to 1 p.m. 0.90 1.00 0.70 

1 p.m. to 4 p.m. 0.97 0.97 0.60 

4 p.m. to 6 p.m. 0.47 0.82 0.90 

6 p.m. to 8 p.m. 0.07 0.89 1.00 

8 p.m. to 12 a.m. 0.03 0.61 1.00 

Exhibit i - Shared Parking Analysis 
Page 1 of 2



Developer Shared Parking Scheme 
 

Example of Shared Parking Calculations: 

 

A. Mixed use development - office, retail, restaurant: 50,000 sq. ft. office, 20,000 sq. ft. retail, and 8,000 sq. 

ft. restaurant, respectively. 

 

B. Individual parking requirements: 

 

  Office:  (3 spaces/1,000 sq. ft.) for (50,000 sq. ft.) = 150 Spaces 

  Retail:  (3 spaces/1,000 sq. ft.) for (20,000 sq. ft.) = 60 Spaces 

  Restaurant:  (1 space/100 sq. ft.) for (8,000 sq. ft.) = 80 Spaces 

                                                  

Total:  150 + 60 + 80 = 290 total spaces 

 

 

D. Shared Parking Calculation are as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
260 spaces required, i.e., the highest total for any time period both weekday and weekend (Allows a 10.5 percent 

savings from 290 spaces). 

 

 

Weekend 

Time of Day 

12mid-8am 8am - 6pm 6pm-12mid 

Office (.05)(150) = 7.5  (.05)(150) = 7.5 (.05)(150) = 7.5 

Retail (.05)(60) = 3 (1.0)(60) = 60 (0.7)(60) = 42 

Restaurant (0.2)(80) = 16 (0.7)(80) = 56 (1.0)(80) = 80 

Total 27 124 130 

Weekday 

Time of Day 

12mid - 8am 8am - 6pm 6pm - 12mid 

Office (.05)(150) = 7.5 (1.0)(150) = 150 (0.2)(150) = 30 

Retail (.05)(60) = 3 (0.9)(60) = 54 (0.8)(60) = 48 

Restaurant (0.1)(80) = 8 (0.7)(80) = 56 (1.0)(80) = 80 

Total 19 260 158 

Exhibit i - Shared Parking Analysis 
Page 2 of 2


	legistar.com
	Meeting Agenda
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 19-9394
	19-9394 - PZ Draft Minutes 09-09-19.pdf
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 19-9395
	19-9395 - Exhibit A P191001 Location Map
	2935-00-01 Final Plat (no contours).pdf
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 19-9396
	19-9396 - Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf
	19-9396 - Exhibit B - Amending Plat.pdf
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 19-9408
	19-9408 - Exhibit A P191004 Location Map
	Burney_FP_1066_100119.dgn
	Burney_FP_1066_100119.dgn
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 19-9397
	19-9397 - Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf
	19-9397 - Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf
	19-9397 - Exhibit C - Operational Plan.pdf
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 19-9398
	19-9398 - Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf
	19-9398 - Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf
	19-9398 - Exhibit C - Building Elevations.pdf
	19-9398 - Exhibit D - Landscape Plan.pdf
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 19-9399
	19-9399 - Exhibit A - Boundary Description.pdf
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 19-9400
	19-9400 - Exhibit A - Boundary Description.pdf
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 19-9401
	19-9401 - Exhibit A - Boundary Description.pdf
	19-9401 - Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf
	19-9401 - Exhibit C - Building Elevations.pdf
	19-9401 - Exhibit D - Landscape Plan.pdf
	19-9401 - Exhibit E - Appendix F Checklist.pdf
	19-9401 - Exhibit F - Operational Plan.pdf
	19-9401 - Exhibit i - Hotel Height and FAR Comparison.pdf
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 19-9402
	19-9402 - Exhibit A- Location Map
	19-9402 - Exhibit B- Land Use Map
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 19-9403
	19-9403 - Exhibit A- Location Map
	C-2.0 SITE PLAN
	190426
	190426
	Layout1
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=7756681&GUID=0427DA87-843A-4B8A-A05C-2C314267B2C3
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=7756682&GUID=5F8E621B-092F-4D7D-893B-65CDF9BAA10E
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 19-9404
	19-9404 - Exhibit A - Boundary Description.pdf
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 19-9405
	19-9405 - Exhibit A - Boundary Description.pdf
	19-9405 - Exhibit B - Concept Plan.pdf
	19-9405 - Exhibit C - Conceptual Images.pdf
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 19-9406
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=7755425&GUID=BBA32ED2-030A-4649-890C-C9BCF7139B0C
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 19-9407
	Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=7756504&GUID=D18FCFF5-B99B-4B4C-948E-FC585928E851
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=7756606&GUID=9F4D9008-6609-4663-B538-28EC3A5ED02E




